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·1· · · · · · ·MR. MOLINA:· I will tell you this, because

·2· ·I'm talking just about the facts; right, is that when

·3· ·they submitted a request for fencing, they wanted to do

·4· ·a chain link fence.· And the city code very clearly

·5· ·says that you have to actually comply with the site

·6· ·development review standards for fencing for your

·7· ·community.

·8· · · · · · ·You can't just put up a fence that's not the

·9· ·same.· So they asked them to submit an application for

10· ·fencing that's not just chain link fence, and they just

11· ·never followed through.

12· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· Okay.

13· · · · · · ·MR. MOLINA:· That's it.· This is all in

14· ·Peter Lowenstein's declaration.· It's attached to our

15· ·exhibits.· He goes through all of the fencing and

16· ·access issues.· He explains why they requested that

17· ·Mr. Lowie actually apply through this procedure for

18· ·fencing and access, and then he just never did.

19· · · · · · ·And that's the theme of all of this, is that

20· ·the City has rules and procedures for how you're

21· ·supposed to apply for things.· And Mr. Lowie and his

22· ·land use counsel, Chris Kaempfer and Stephanie Allen,

23· ·had a different feeling about it.· They didn't think he

24· ·needed to do different things.· There's specific issues

25· ·on each property.



·1· · · · · · ·With respect to the 35-acre property, you

·2· ·actually had -- they had a general plan amendment

·3· ·application, but it was on 166 acres, not just the

·4· ·35 acres.· And so they didn't have applications in the

·5· ·pipeline for the remaining 130 acres of that.· They had

·6· ·just the stand-alone GPA.

·7· · · · · · ·And the density that was requested was up to

·8· ·5.49 units per acre.· And the City said, well, we're

·9· ·not going to approve a general plan on 166 acres when

10· ·you're only applying for site development review and

11· ·tentative map applications on 35 acres, unless we see

12· ·what you're going to do with the other 133 acres.

13· · · · · · ·And why are you applying for entitlements

14· ·that are in excess of the density that you said you

15· ·were going to build and that we were negotiating in the

16· ·development agreement?

17· · · · · · ·And so that was the real issue there, was he

18· ·didn't want to submit a GPA just for that property.

19· ·And he wouldn't, you know, make the density consistent

20· ·with what they were negotiating in the development

21· ·agreement, as he said he was going to do.

22· · · · · · ·So there's all of these little --

23· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· Was there any problem with the

24· ·R-PD7?

25· · · · · · ·MR. MOLINA:· Let's get back to that.· Okay.



·1· ·So if you notice here in the City's general plan, they

·2· ·talk about density categories and they talk about three

·3· ·types of RPDs.· And we're dealing just with residential

·4· ·planing development.· And in an ARPD you can have

·5· ·50 percent high-density housing.· In a BRPD, you can

·6· ·have 10 percent medium density.

·7· · · · · · ·And so these are the mix of land uses that

·8· ·you can put into a residential planning district is

·9· ·what they use RPD for.· But it's pretty confusing

10· ·because it's very similar to residential planning

11· ·development.

12· · · · · · ·So this is the table in the 1975 general

13· ·plan.· And the reason why this is relevant is because

14· ·McCauley, William McCauley, ends up submitting an

15· ·application for rezoning the master plan in 1981.· And

16· ·this is the general plan that's in effect when he does

17· ·that.

18· · · · · · ·And this is a little bit more of the tables

19· ·that are in the 1975 general plan.· All of this is

20· ·attached to our appendix.· It's attached to the current

21· ·community development director's declaration.· And this

22· ·is just really to give you an understanding of how the

23· ·City looked at things from a planning perspective.

24· · · · · · ·Because there was no zoning tool for a master

25· ·planned community in the 1980s.· They hadn't really



·1· ·gotten that far.· And so they had to use the toolbox

·2· ·that they had to create a master planned community.

·3· ·And this is, essentially, part of the tools that they

·4· ·had, was looking at the different densities, how much

·5· ·high-density housing can you have within a given square

·6· ·mile, what's the population capacity that you can have

·7· ·in that given square mile.· And what are the other

·8· ·supporting uses, like parks, recreation, facilities,

·9· ·open space, neighborhood service centers that would

10· ·reduce the amount of land that you would need to have

11· ·or could have for a high density or low density

12· ·housing.

13· · · · · · ·So this is sort of the framework that the

14· ·City used to make zoning decisions in the 1980s when

15· ·William McCauley came to the City.

16· · · · · · ·And this is just the parks and recreation

17· ·element.· This is really just a policy.· It's not a

18· ·specific regulation.· But there are aspects of the

19· ·City's general plan that are, you know, sort of

20· ·aspirational policies.· And then there are aspects of

21· ·the City's general plan that are actually regulatory in

22· ·nature.· And, specifically, what I'm referring to is

23· ·the land use plan.

24· · · · · · ·And then the 1975 general plan ended with

25· ·this idea that they recognized it's very hard to plan



·1· ·out an entire city all at once, but you could

·2· ·potentially come up with a better plan if you focused

·3· ·on special areas, smaller areas, geographically, and

·4· ·just kind of identified what was in those areas, you

·5· ·know, breaking things up into sort of logical kind of

·6· ·units.

·7· · · · · · ·And so what they said here is that, you know,

·8· ·in the next 10 years, before you got the next general

·9· ·plan, we are going to come up with a more precise

10· ·planning process.· And, in fact, they did in 1980.

11· · · · · · ·And this is the letter that William McCauley

12· ·wrote.· This is Exhibit A in our appendix.· And

13· ·William McCauley asked the mayor, he says, we want to

14· ·annex our 2,200 acres into the City of Las Vegas and

15· ·with the cooperation of the City of Las Vegas we would

16· ·like to go forward with the master plan of the entire

17· ·parcel.

18· · · · · · ·So he wants to master plan the entire parcel

19· ·and the question is how does he do it?

20· · · · · · ·So now we'll actually pull the actual

21· ·exhibits up.· I will let my paralegal take over the

22· ·screen here.

23· · · · · · ·This is the 2,200 acres that McCauley annexed

24· ·into the City of Las Vegas.· And this is the property

25· ·that was in the plat, all Section 5, all Section 6 --



·1· ·he actually gave this to his brother -- and the south

·2· ·three-quarters of Sections 31 and 32.

·3· · · · · · ·And if you look at this area over here, this

·4· ·is the boundaries of the -- actually, this is 1989.

·5· ·This is his land in 1981 right after he annexes it.

·6· ·Those are the boundaries.· That lines up.

·7· · · · · · ·Now, if you go to the next page in Exhibit A,

·8· ·this is the discussion about the annexation.· And in

·9· ·the middle paragraph, you know, McCauley is talking

10· ·about annexing it and being a part of Las Vegas and

11· ·planning the property with the City.

12· · · · · · ·And they're all excited about this because

13· ·this is the largest annexation in City history.

14· ·They've never done this before.· And the only, you

15· ·know, largest annexation after that was the Suma

16· ·Corporation, which was the Hughes site, the Howard

17· ·Hughes property.

18· · · · · · ·So let's go to Exhibit B.

19· · · · · · ·And I want to kind of show the pattern here

20· ·of how the City applied these zoning tools that were

21· ·available to them at the time.· The first thing that

22· ·they did, after McCauley annexed his property, was they

23· ·adopted the general plan.· They amended the general

24· ·plan.· You have to zone in accordance with the

25· ·comprehensive plan so they amended their general plan



·1· ·and they extended the suburban development west and

·2· ·that will be relevant later on because it will tell us

·3· ·sort of what the density is.

·4· · · · · · ·Now, on the next page, Item 14.

·5· · · · · · ·Then they adopted a generalized land use

·6· ·plan.· So they extend what the City called suburban.

·7· ·They moved it west because there was nothing out there

·8· ·at the time.· And then they adopted this plan.· So

·9· ·first you adopt the general plan.· And then they did

10· ·this basically like a specific plan that they kind of

11· ·thought was possible during the 1975, when they came up

12· ·with the 1975 general plan.

13· · · · · · ·And McCauley says, we want to zone the entire

14· ·property in accordance with this plan.· So that tells

15· ·you right there that he's asking for planned unit

16· ·development zoning.· I want to zone the entire parcel

17· ·of land.· I want to get all of this property zoned all

18· ·at once.

19· · · · · · ·How is the City going to do that unless you

20· ·tell them what your plans look like.· This is the

21· ·difference between single-lot zoning and zoning of

22· ·large subdivisions.

23· · · · · · ·And if we go to page 4.· This is the city

24· ·council or the city commission.· Still a couple years

25· ·before they came city council.· And you'll see the way



·1· ·they have these agenda items on there.· The general

·2· ·plan amendment first, and then the generalized land use

·3· ·plan.· So the planning commission approved the

·4· ·generalized land use plan amendment and then the City

·5· ·approved it.

·6· · · · · · ·Let's go to 6.· These are, essentially, the

·7· ·staff reports, very early version of this.· And it,

·8· ·basically, explains, you know, why do we do this.

·9· ·Well, there was no land use plan when the property was

10· ·annexed into the city.

11· · · · · · ·The next item says, "McCauley intends to

12· ·start development on this property as soon as possible

13· ·and wishes to have it rezoned from end use, non-urban,

14· ·to various residential densities and for commercial use

15· ·in the immediate future.· A separate generalized land

16· ·use plan would provide a guide for the zone change that

17· ·will be requested on the entire parcel as soon as the

18· ·general plan is amended."

19· · · · · · ·So you have to plan before you zone.

20· ·Otherwise, you're not zoning in accordance with the

21· ·comprehensive plan and you're exceeding the enabling

22· ·acts, delegation of the police power, from the state to

23· ·the city.

24· · · · · · ·Let's go to page 7.

25· · · · · · ·So this is the general plan amendment.· And



·1· ·if you can see, this is very rudimentary.· It's not

·2· ·really sophisticated at all.· But these are the general

·3· ·plan, sort of, categories, that existed in 1981.· They

·4· ·just said, we're going to do suburban here.· We're

·5· ·going to do urban here.· We're going to do rural over

·6· ·here.· That's all they did with this is they moved the

·7· ·suburban west.

·8· · · · · · ·This is the generalized land use plan that

·9· ·the City approved.· And you have to plan where the

10· ·streets are.· You have to tell us what the densities

11· ·are going to be.· You have to tell us where you're

12· ·going to put commercial, all these things.· He's got

13· ·schools, neighborhood parks, things like that.· There's

14· ·a reservoir.· So this is a very early plan.

15· · · · · · ·And then -- go ahead.

16· · · · · · ·This is the area that was zoned.· That's it.

17· · · · · · ·So now he's gotten the general plan

18· ·amendment.· He's gotten his generalized land use plan.

19· ·Now he has to actually come and have the property

20· ·zoned.· And that's what happens.· He files Z3481.· The

21· ·way that the City used to do this is the last two

22· ·digits of this were the year when it was filed and the

23· ·first two digits were the number of the application

24· ·when it was filed.

25· · · · · · ·And I want to address what zoning was for the



·1· ·Badlands property in 1981 because it wasn't R-PD7.

·2· · · · · · ·But let's just go to the next.

·3· · · · · · ·This is Z3481.· This is just the zoning

·4· ·application.· They approved it.· This is minutes on,

·5· ·you know, what the basis was for this.· You've got

·6· ·Larry Miller, who is William McCauley's son-in-law, who

·7· ·is there explaining that they're going to reduce the

·8· ·density, and in favor and on behalf of property owners.

·9· ·The zoning is at its maximum density.· But there is a

10· ·possibility that it will be lowered as the property is

11· ·being built.· This will be called Venetian Foothills.

12· · · · · · ·Put up Exhibit 165.

13· · · · · · ·So the zoning map that was in that Z3481 case

14· ·law it's illegible; you can't read it.· But one of the

15· ·conditions of approval that they put on McCauley is

16· ·they said, you have to tell everybody where everything

17· ·is going.· You have to put up signs that are showing

18· ·what areas are actually being zoned.

19· · · · · · ·And he came back to the City and he says, I

20· ·don't actually want to put up these signs because

21· ·people just keep vandalizing them.

22· · · · · · ·So what he did was he proposed that instead

23· ·of putting up signs, he would have homeowners

24· ·acknowledge what the zoning was.· And if you go to 85

25· ·of this exhibit, and you zoom in on the left side, you



·1· ·can see it's actually R-PD8.· It's not R-PD7.· That

·2· ·didn't come until much later.· It was R-PD8.

·3· · · · · · ·So the City approves this under a resolution

·4· ·of intent.· Remember they don't actually rezone

·5· ·everything until the development is actually done.· And

·6· ·this never really got built out.· It never really even

·7· ·got started on this.· So there was no R-PD7 zoning at

·8· ·this point in time.

·9· · · · · · ·Let's go to Exhibit QQQQ2.

10· · · · · · ·This is again talking about residential

11· ·planning districts.· They're thinking about the city in

12· ·square miles.· They're not thinking about it in terms

13· ·of individual parcels.· And they're talking about what

14· ·we were just saying, there's the urban, suburban, and

15· ·rural.· They break it down.· What's the purpose of

16· ·these different things?

17· · · · · · ·Go to the next page.

18· · · · · · ·And then they talk about, okay, well, what's

19· ·the mix of density that you can have in an urban

20· ·neighborhood.· You can have 50 percent high density.

21· ·You can have 25 percent medium density.· You can have

22· ·25 percent medium low.· And so that was sort of the

23· ·idea here.

24· · · · · · ·Let's zoom in on the top paragraph that's

25· ·highlighted.



·1· · · · · · ·If one of the density categories is exceeded

·2· ·in any particular residential planning district, the

·3· ·difference must be made up from other density

·4· ·categories in order to maintain the same overall

·5· ·character and density pattern within the residential

·6· ·planning district.

·7· · · · · · ·So we're zoning for density.· We're not

·8· ·zoning for particular locations of structures.· We're

·9· ·zoning for density.· And that's the idea.· So if you

10· ·put -- if you want to put high-density housing on one

11· ·part of your property, you've got to reduce the density

12· ·somewhere else.

13· · · · · · ·Go to the last paragraph on that page.

14· · · · · · ·So the other thing here is they come up with

15· ·this community profile system.· This is consistent with

16· ·what they wanted to do under the 1975 general plan.

17· ·They wanted to basically have specific plans for

18· ·different communities.

19· · · · · · ·And later on, in 1992, when they adopt the

20· ·general plan that designates the Badlands Golf Course

21· ·PR-OS, all they do is they take these community profile

22· ·maps and they mush them together in one bigger map.· So

23· ·that's sort of what this is.

24· · · · · · ·Let's go to QQQQ4.

25· · · · · · ·So there's supposed to be these community



·1· ·profiles that were adopted at the same time as the 1985

·2· ·general plan.· The homeowners association or the

·3· ·Homebuilders Association of Southern Nevada was kind of

·4· ·against it so they wanted some more time.· But these

·5· ·are the community profile records that were in the

·6· ·minutes when they were adopted.· We don't know exactly

·7· ·what got adopted.· There's no records.

·8· · · · · · ·But if you go to page 116.

·9· · · · · · ·So this is community profile 13.· This is

10· ·where McCauley's property is.· It says it right here.

11· ·It says, most of the area between Sahara Avenue and

12· ·Angel Park has been master planned and is known as "The

13· ·McCauley Property."

14· · · · · · ·And go to the next page.

15· · · · · · ·And there it is.· And this is exactly what

16· ·that McCauley land use plan that the City approved in

17· ·1981 looked like.· So they just took that and they put

18· ·it into this community profile map, and they said, this

19· ·is our general plan now; okay.

20· · · · · · ·So in 1986 -- go to Exhibit C -- McCauley

21· ·goes back to the City.· And he says, I have a new plan.

22· ·And I want to do this different layout.· Looks

23· ·completely different.· I want two golf courses.· And

24· ·I'm going to reduce the overall size of the master plan

25· ·because I had a falling out with Canyon Gate, the guy



·1· ·who owns Canyon Gate.· There was issues with that.

·2· · · · · · ·The key thing to note here, though, is when

·3· ·you look at the land use tables, you have zoning by

·4· ·density.· And they talk about what are the land uses.

·5· ·So custom, single family, single-family homes, patio

·6· ·homes, single family.

·7· · · · · · ·Then you get all the way down to

·8· ·open space/golf course.· You see the zoning it's RPD.

·9· ·It's RPD because it's part of that residential planning

10· ·district.· You're zoning that entire parcel.· And that

11· ·golf course is going to be part of the community.· Open

12· ·space is going to be part of the community.

13· · · · · · ·So it doesn't have a density on it.· It

14· ·doesn't have any number of units.· But we have acres

15· ·and we have RPD zoning for open space and golf course.

16· ·And it's the same thing down here.· If you look at the

17· ·future phases, so this master plan came with the

18· ·rezoning application for phase one.

19· · · · · · ·But if you look at the future phases, you've

20· ·got open space and golf course down here, 200 acres, no

21· ·density.· There's no residential density next to that

22· ·piece.

23· · · · · · ·So let's go into the -- this is the

24· ·narrative; right?· And he explains it.· He says -- this

25· ·is Wayne Smith, his planner, his company did planning



·1· ·for most of McCauley Ranch.· He says this master plan

·2· ·approval includes circulation, land use, overall

·3· ·density.· The zoning approvals requested are RPD for

·4· ·residential uses and densities ranging from 2.2 to 22

·5· ·dwelling units per acre.· C1 for the commercial sites,

·6· ·PR for the office sites.

·7· · · · · · ·Then he says the zoning for a resort, tennis

·8· ·club, casitas, and golf course is also desired under an

·9· ·RPD designation.· The RPD category is requested at the

10· ·direction of the planning staff, as it allows the

11· ·developer flexibility and the City design control.

12· · · · · · ·So everybody knew that the golf course was

13· ·going to be zoned RPD.· That was just -- that's how

14· ·everybody understood and interpreted and applied the

15· ·RPD zoning at this time.

16· · · · · · ·Let's go on to page 6.

17· · · · · · ·It says, "The focal point of Venetian

18· ·Foothills is the 18-hole golf course and clubhouse,

19· ·which is centrally located and easily viewed throughout

20· ·the development.· The golf course open space system

21· ·provides open space buffers between differing land uses

22· ·and will create a pleasant and attractive environment.

23· ·On-site retention is maintained by the golf course

24· ·open-space system" -- he's talking about water --

25· ·"utilizing the existing washes throughout the golf



·1· ·course directs the flow of water that historically

·2· ·flows from the foothills to Angel Park."

·3· · · · · · ·And then -- let's go to the next page.

·4· · · · · · ·These are the land use tables.· Again, you've

·5· ·got types of land uses, types of zoning.· So custom,

·6· ·single-family, RPD.· How many units per acre, 2.5.

·7· ·You've got single-family, RPD, 7 dwelling units per

·8· ·acre.· Down below you've got open space/golf course,

·9· ·198.· And this one doesn't actually say it, but go to

10· ·the next page.· Doesn't have the zoning.

11· · · · · · ·Open space/golf course.· We know that they

12· ·included this because it was on the master plan.· They

13· ·included that within the RPD designation.· It said it

14· ·on the beginning of the page.· So you've got 200 acres

15· ·of open space and golf course that's zoned RPD with

16· ·zero residential density.

17· · · · · · ·Go to the next page.

18· · · · · · ·And this is just the summary of the whole

19· ·place.· So he was originally contemplating doing two

20· ·golf courses.· He wanted 400 acres of open space.· They

21· ·didn't end up developing that much, but that was sort

22· ·of the intent.

23· · · · · · ·Let's keep going.

24· · · · · · ·He presents the master plan to the planning

25· ·commission.· The planning commission approves the



·1· ·master plan.· And they put all these conditions in

·2· ·there, things that you would expect a master developer

·3· ·to do.· Construction of flood controls, and, you know,

·4· ·changing the streets, things like that.

·5· · · · · · ·And then after they approved the master plan,

·6· ·then they file a zoning application.· And this is the

·7· ·same thing that they did in 1981.· They filed a master

·8· ·plan or a land use plan, and then they filed a zoning

·9· ·application, because you have to zone in accordance

10· ·with a comprehensive plan.

11· · · · · · ·And this just tells you what they are.· And

12· ·if you note the conditions of approval, there's a

13· ·resolution of intent.· And remember, in 1981, there was

14· ·a resolution of intent to rezone the property.· This

15· ·changed the zoning and the resolution of intent and it

16· ·expunged all previous resolutions of intent.

17· · · · · · ·And then the other condition of approval was

18· ·that you have to conform to the master development

19· ·plan.

20· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· Sir, I think this is a good time

21· ·to break, don't you?

22· · · · · · ·MR. MOLINA:· Yeah.· Absolutely.

23· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· We're going to break right now.

24· ·It's 4:45.· We'll break for the evening.· Tomorrow

25· ·morning we'll reconvene at 9:30.· How is that?· And



·1· ·we'll have all day tomorrow if necessary.

·2· · · · · · ·MR. SCHWARTZ:· Thank you, Your Honor.

·3· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· Everyone enjoy your evening.

·4· · · · · · ·(Proceedings adjourned at 4:46 p.m.)

·5· · · · · · · · · · · · · · -o0o-

·6· ·ATTEST:· FULL, TRUE, AND ACCURATE TRANSCRIPT OF

·7· ·PROCEEDINGS.

·8

·9· · · · · · · · · · · · · ________________________________
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · /S/ Kimberly A. Farkas, RPR, CRR
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·1· · · · · · · · · ·P R O C E E D I N G S

·2· · · · · · · · · · · · ·* * * * * *

·3· · · · · · ·THE MARSHAL:· All rise.· Department 16 now in

·4· ·session.· The Honorable Timothy Williams presiding.

·5· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· All right.· You may be seated.

·6· ·And let's go ahead and set forth our appearances on the

·7· ·record.· We'll start first with plaintiff and move to

·8· ·the defense.

·9· · · · · · ·MR. LEAVITT:· Good morning, Your Honor,

10· ·James J. Leavitt on behalf of the plaintiff landowner

11· ·180 Land.

12· · · · · · ·MS. WATERS:· Good morning, Your Honor.

13· ·Autumn Waters on behalf of the landowners as well.· And

14· ·Elizabeth Ghanem Ham and Jennifer Knight are just

15· ·running a few minutes late, but we're ready to go.

16· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· I understand.

17· · · · · · ·MR. MOLINA:· Chris Molina on behalf of the

18· ·City.

19· · · · · · ·MR. SCHWARTZ:· Andrew Schwartz on behalf of

20· ·the City, Your Honor.

21· · · · · · ·MR. BYRNES:· Phil Byrnes on behalf of the

22· ·City.

23· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· Okay.· Once again, good morning.

24· ·So, sir, do we have something we need to address before

25· ·we get started?



·1· · · · · · ·MR. LEAVITT:· One thing, Your Honor.· I just

·2· ·wanted to make sure that I was clear on this yesterday.

·3· ·I'll just be very quickly with one matter.

·4· · · · · · ·We raised an objection yesterday.· I just

·5· ·wanted to make clear what our objection was.· I heard a

·6· ·little bit of conversation yesterday about the R-PD7

·7· ·zoning on the property.· In this very case, the

·8· ·landowners requested all of the historical records for

·9· ·the R-PD7 zoning from 1983 forward in requests for

10· ·production of documents, including applications,

11· ·minutes, drafts, memos, letters, correspondence,

12· ·everything the City had in regards to the R-PD7 zoning.

13· ·The City's response:· "Such records are not

14· ·proportionate to the needs of this case as the City

15· ·does not dispute the R-PD7 zoning."

16· · · · · · ·So we've had no discovery on the R-PD7 zoning

17· ·because the City did not dispute --

18· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· Sir, I mean, if that's the

19· ·response to the request --

20· · · · · · ·MR. LEAVITT:· It is, Your Honor.

21· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· -- that becomes part of the case.

22· ·And, ultimately -- I thought about this yesterday.  I

23· ·thought about it this morning.· And I have no -- I

24· ·think you've done a really good job of giving me a

25· ·historical oversight on land development in Las Vegas.



·1· ·But at the end of the day, when this 35-acre parcel was

·2· ·purchased, how was it zoned?

·3· · · · · · ·MR. MOLINA:· R-PD7.

·4· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· Okay then.· None of this other

·5· ·stuff matters, does it?

·6· · · · · · ·MR. MOLINA:· Well, absolutely it does.

·7· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· Tell me how.· Here's another

·8· ·question I have for you.

·9· · · · · · ·MR. MOLINA:· Sure.

10· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· Why wouldn't R-PD7 zoning be part

11· ·of the bundle of rights that have been accessed or that

12· ·are owned by 180 Land Company in this case?

13· · · · · · ·MR. MOLINA:· Well, because it's not an actual

14· ·entitlement in this case.· With respect to the specific

15· ·R-PD7 zoning on the Badlands golf course was not an

16· ·entitlement to build.· In any event --

17· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· Well, but, I mean, isn't it --

18· ·here's the thing about it.· I mean, if it's not an

19· ·entitlement to build, there's going to have to be a

20· ·pretty good reason as to why he couldn't have his

21· ·expectations met.· And I'm talking about 180 Land.  I

22· ·don't mind telling you that.

23· · · · · · ·Because you've got to give me some reasons.

24· ·Because, at the end of the day, and I understand this,

25· ·well, we have to do the whole parcel, this or that,



·1· ·but, you know what, this 35 acres was zoned; right?

·2· ·It's uncontroverted.· So we're going through this

·3· ·history.· How is that relevant?· It's zoned R-PD7.

·4· · · · · · ·MR. MOLINA:· Can I approach?

·5· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· I mean, you can, but is it zoned

·6· ·R-PD7?

·7· · · · · · ·MR. MOLINA:· There's no doubt about that.

·8· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· Okay.· Well, move on.· Tell me

·9· ·why Mr. Leavitt is wrong.· That's what I want to know.

10· · · · · · ·Sir, you can step up and do it.· He went

11· ·through a pretty comprehensive factual rendition as to

12· ·the basis for their motion for summary judgment; right.

13· ·He said, Judge, these are uncontroverted issues of

14· ·material fact in this case.· I get that.· And that's

15· ·what Rule 56 mandates.· Show me why he's wrong.

16· · · · · · ·MR. SCHWARTZ:· Your Honor, could I address

17· ·that?

18· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· I never cut anybody off, but at

19· ·the end of the day, I want to know why this is

20· ·relevant.

21· · · · · · ·MR. SCHWARTZ:· Can I address that,

22· ·Your Honor?

23· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· Absolutely.

24· · · · · · ·MR. SCHWARTZ:· We haven't even gotten to the

25· ·facts.



·1· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· We haven't what?

·2· · · · · · ·MR. SCHWARTZ:· We haven't gotten to the facts

·3· ·from 1990 forward.

·4· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· Okay.· But my question is this.

·5· ·When 180 Land Company purchased the 35 acres at issue,

·6· ·what was the zoning?

·7· · · · · · ·MR. MOLINA:· The zoning was R-PD7.· And

·8· ·that's why I'm trying to walk you through this, to

·9· ·explain what that means.

10· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· You can say what it means.· We've

11· ·had -- this isn't the first rodeo as far as the

12· ·hearings are concerned in this case.· It was explained

13· ·to me over a year ago what that means.· So if you want

14· ·to go over that again, that's okay.

15· · · · · · ·MR. MOLINA:· Okay.· And I need to make a

16· ·record.

17· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· I don't mind telling you this.  I

18· ·sat down and I thought about this.· We spent an hour

19· ·and a half yesterday, and none of the issues that are

20· ·important to this case have been addressed from the

21· ·defense perspective.

22· · · · · · ·MR. MOLINA:· I'm sorry, but I disagree.

23· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· Well, sir, I'm making the

24· ·decision.· I was a trial lawyer.· You've got to know

25· ·your audience.· That's why I'm telling you what I'm



·1· ·looking for.

·2· · · · · · ·MR. SCHWARTZ:· Your Honor, that's a legal

·3· ·issue, and I fully intend to address that issue.

·4· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· So, sir, it's a legal issue.

·5· ·When it comes to assessing the legal issues in this

·6· ·case, if the property, the 35 acres at issue, has been

·7· ·zoned R-PD7, yesterday, the facts that we went over

·8· ·yesterday, how is that relevant to the issues at hand

·9· ·right now?

10· · · · · · ·MR. SCHWARTZ:· It explains how R-PD7 zoning

11· ·works.· It explains the legal --

12· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· We never talked about how R-PD7

13· ·worked yesterday.

14· · · · · · ·MR. SCHWARTZ:· I know.· Because we're just

15· ·going through the facts --

16· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· I know how it works.· If you want

17· ·to spend 30 seconds saying, Judge, this is what R-PD7

18· ·zoning is, I'll listen to that.· But I'm talking about

19· ·the issues involved in this case involve a taking and

20· ·whether there was a taking or not; right.· And I asked,

21· ·I think it was a pretty good question, and I understand

22· ·bundle of rights.· I get that when it comes to real

23· ·property ownership.· And is R-PD7 part of that.

24· · · · · · ·MR. MOLINA:· No.

25· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· Tell me why.



·1· · · · · · ·MR. LEAVITT:· Your Honor, if I can --

·2· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· I'm going to give you a chance,

·3· ·Mr. Leavitt.

·4· · · · · · ·MR. SCHWARTZ:· Your Honor, Mr. Molina is

·5· ·going to explain what R-PD7 zoning is --

·6· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· Tell me now.· You know, I'm going

·7· ·to tell you this.· I did not -- I listened to it.  I

·8· ·thought it was enjoyable to listen to the lecture

·9· ·yesterday on the history of Las Vega city planning and

10· ·zoning and what's happened west of Rainbow and the

11· ·Peccole Family and all the wonderful things they've

12· ·done.· But that has no bearing on the decision I have

13· ·to make today.· I just want to tell you that.

14· · · · · · ·MR. SCHWARTZ:· Your Honor, Mr. Molina is

15· ·ready to proceed to explain what R-PD7 zoning is all

16· ·about, what it means, how it was used in this case.

17· ·This is directly relevant to the issues and he's about

18· ·ready to do that.

19· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· Okay.· We're going to back to

20· ·1800 or whatever.

21· · · · · · ·MR. MOLINA:· We're going to pick up right

22· ·where we left off yesterday, which is 1988.

23· · · · · · ·MR. LEAVITT:· Your Honor, if I could just say

24· ·one last thing because I just want to make my record

25· ·clear, with the Court's indulgence.



·1· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· Yes.

·2· · · · · · ·MR. LEAVITT:· The question is what does R-PD7

·3· ·mean.· We had extensive briefing on that.

·4· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· Absolutely.

·5· · · · · · ·MR. LEAVITT:· This Court entered an order and

·6· ·said, you have defined what R-PD7 is in your 10/12/2020

·7· ·order.· That's the law of the case.· Your Honor, I had

·8· ·no idea this was going to happen today.· I asked for

·9· ·their PowerPoint yesterday.· I still don't have it.

10· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· But you know what, that's not how

11· ·we do things.· We just don't do things the morning of a

12· ·hearing; right.· And my question is this.· What was

13· ·that discovery response that you had, sir?

14· · · · · · ·MR. LEAVITT:· The discovery response was the

15· ·records that we asked for are not proportionate to the

16· ·needs of the case as the City does not dispute that the

17· ·subject property is zoned R-PD7.· So what we did is at

18· ·the hearing we had, you defined R-PD7.· We heard all

19· ·these arguments.· And we now have an order that defines

20· ·that the R-PD7 says the landowners have the legal right

21· ·to develop residentially on their property.· And the

22· ·Nevada Supreme Court in the Alcantara v. Walmart said,

23· ·once that order is entered, the party is not permitted

24· ·to ambush another party at a hearing where it's not an

25· ·issue and reargue it because that would be -- this is



·1· ·the Court's statement -- harassment and oppressive.

·2· · · · · · ·So I have significant issues with being

·3· ·handed documents that I should have gotten during

·4· ·discovery --

·5· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· Mr. Leavitt, I don't want to cut

·6· ·you off, but we do have Rule 16.1; right.· We have a

·7· ·duty and responsibility to seasonably supplement all

·8· ·discovery and all documents in our possession.· Because

·9· ·understand, this is a trial court.· This isn't the

10· ·city council.· I just want to tell you that.· It's a

11· ·trial court.

12· · · · · · ·So if there's -- and right now -- let me see,

13· ·when was the discovery cutoff in this case?

14· · · · · · ·MR. LEAVITT:· Discovery cutoff occurred in --

15· · · · · · ·MR. MOLINA:· Your Honor, everything has been

16· ·produced.· Everything has been produced.

17· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· Wait.· I just asked a question.

18· ·I asked a question, sir.· When was the discovery

19· ·cutoff?

20· · · · · · ·MR. LEAVITT:· I believe, Your Honor, it was

21· ·July 22nd, 2021, discovery was cut off.

22· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· And my point is this.· Remember

23· ·this, under Rule 56, you're dealing specifically with

24· ·admissible evidence at the time of trial.· So my

25· ·question is this.· Has all this stuff that's being



·1· ·utilized been admitted -- I mean, been produced?· If it

·2· ·has, you can deal with it.· If it hasn't, I'm not going

·3· ·to consider it.

·4· · · · · · ·MR. MOLINA:· Okay.· That's fine.

·5· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· It's not fine.· That's the rule.

·6· · · · · · ·MR. MOLINA:· Yeah.· Can I ask a clarification

·7· ·on that because --

·8· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· Oh, I'll clarify it for you.

·9· · · · · · ·MR. MOLINA:· -- ordinances are laws; right.

10· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· But I didn't ask ordinances;

11· ·right.

12· · · · · · ·MR. MOLINA:· I know.· But that's --

13· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· No. I'm asking --

14· · · · · · ·MR. MOLINA:· I just want to make sure I can

15· ·present ordinances.

16· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· Sir, I'm not going to -- I don't

17· ·think there's any limitation under Rule 16.1 as it

18· ·deals with the law.

19· · · · · · ·MR. MOLINA:· Okay.· That's all I want to make

20· ·clear.

21· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· Right.· I mean, I thought that

22· ·was pretty basic.· There's nothing in Rule 16 that

23· ·deals with the law; right.· It deals with evidence.

24· · · · · · ·MR. MOLINA:· We're not using any other

25· ·evidence that hasn't been produced.· We've produced



·1· ·everything.

·2· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· So go ahead and tell me why.· I'm

·3· ·listening.

·4· · · · · · ·MR. MOLINA:· Okay.· Thank you.· And I just

·5· ·want to -- since you want to understand why I'm going

·6· ·through all of this.· If you look at this, this is a

·7· ·mathematical explanation of why the master plan matters

·8· ·and the City's general plan matters with respect to

·9· ·R-PD7 zoning.

10· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· When it comes to R-PD7 zoning,

11· ·the zoning in place, that wasn't in violation of the

12· ·master plan, was it?

13· · · · · · ·MR. MOLINA:· It was the master plan.

14· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· Okay.· All right.· I get that.

15· · · · · · ·MR. MOLINA:· Right.· So but here's what I'm

16· ·saying.· And this will make a lot of sense.· And we'll

17· ·go just through the documents that actually zoned the

18· ·property R-PD7.· And I want to explain why it matters

19· ·that the open space is defined in the initial master

20· ·plan.· Because if you take 100 acres and you zone them

21· ·R-PD7, you can build 700 units on 10 acres of that and

22· ·you have 90 acres of open space; okay.· It's 7 units

23· ·per acre.

24· · · · · · ·Now, if the first developer who got the

25· ·entitlements for that went and he sold the rest of the



·1· ·acres of open space to somebody else --

·2· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· When you say, "the entitlements

·3· ·for that," what do you mean?

·4· · · · · · ·MR. MOLINA:· The entitlements for the R-PD7

·5· ·on the initial 100 acres.

·6· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· So here's my question when it

·7· ·comes to that issue.· What does that mean,

·8· ·entitlements?· Is that part of the bundle of rights?

·9· · · · · · ·MR. MOLINA:· So there's this concept of

10· ·vested rights.· And you don't have vested rights until

11· ·you've actually gotten your building permit and you've

12· ·started to build.· That's just the -- the basic idea is

13· ·that -- it's like grandfathered rights.· You can't stop

14· ·somebody once they've already started use of a

15· ·property.· That doesn't necessarily mean that you have

16· ·to let them start a new use of property.

17· · · · · · ·So here we have historic use of the property

18· ·is golf course.· There's no grandfathered rights under

19· ·R-PD7 zoning to build houses.

20· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· Okay.· But here's my point.

21· ·We're talking about the 35 acres.· I want to be really

22· ·specific.· Because it's my recollection the 35 acres

23· ·was zoned R-PD7.

24· · · · · · ·MR. MOLINA:· Yes.· And I will walk you

25· ·through that.· But what I'm trying to illustrate here



·1· ·is why, when you're talking about plan development

·2· ·zoning, that if you don't do it in accordance with the

·3· ·plan, an overall plan, and you ignore that plan later

·4· ·on, what could potentially be here is that you can

·5· ·build -- let's say you build 700 units on the first

·6· ·10 acres.· You have 90 acres of open space.· It's

·7· ·7 units per acre.· So if you sold those 90 acres of

·8· ·open space to somebody else, they could build 630 units

·9· ·on 10 acres.· It would be 7 units per acre.

10· · · · · · ·And then if that person sold the remaining

11· ·70 acres of open space to somebody else, they could

12· ·build 560 units on 10 acres --

13· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· I understand hypotheticals.· What

14· ·are the facts of this case and what was proposed?

15· ·That's what I want to know.

16· · · · · · ·MR. MOLINA:· Let's go into the -- let's go

17· ·into the -- back into the evidence that's attached to

18· ·our motion that's been produced in discovery.· And what

19· ·I'm going to put up here is the 1986 master plan.· And

20· ·we'll actually just skip forward.· Let's go to

21· ·Exhibit E.

22· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· Let me follow you, sir.· And I

23· ·have it up here.

24· · · · · · ·MR. MOLINA:· It's in our appendix of

25· ·exhibits.· And I apologize.· We have 20 volumes of



·1· ·exhibits.· I didn't think it was practical to try to

·2· ·bring all of that into the court.

·3· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· Go ahead, sir.

·4· · · · · · ·MR. MOLINA:· So this is the Peccole Ranch

·5· ·master plan that was submitted to the City in 1988.· It

·6· ·was prepared by Wayne Smith.· It's by the Peccole Ranch

·7· ·Partnership, Triple 5 Corporation, and the Peccole

·8· ·Trust.· Triple 5 Corporation is the company that built

·9· ·Mall of America.· There's a lot of litigation and

10· ·history between these two parties.· They had a big

11· ·falling out.

12· · · · · · ·This is what they submitted to the City in

13· ·1988.· If you go to page 6 of our Exhibit E, it

14· ·describes the Peccole Ranch master plan.

15· · · · · · ·"The proposed overall 1716.3-acre Peccole

16· ·Ranch master plan is being submitted to Las Vegas" --

17· · · · · · ·THE COURT REPORTER:· I'm sorry, sir, could

18· ·you please read a little slower for me.

19· · · · · · ·MR. MOLINA:· -- "along with a rezoning

20· ·application on 448 acres on phase one."

21· · · · · · ·And I have that right here.· This is the

22· ·1716 acres.· There's the boundary right there.· Doesn't

23· ·include Canyon Gate.· Doesn't include the parcels that

24· ·have been sold off and developed by other builders.

25· · · · · · ·Now, we go to page 7 of Exhibit E.· Shows you



·1· ·the boundaries that I just outlined on this board.· And

·2· ·if you go to page 8 of Exhibit E, it will show you

·3· ·that's the Peccole Ranch master plan submitted in 1988,

·4· ·and there's no golf courses on this.

·5· · · · · · ·And where did the golf course come from;

·6· ·right?· And if you skip to page 18, just included this

·7· ·to show that they've got the planned unit development

·8· ·concept in mind.· They're doing open space.· They're

·9· ·clustering houses.

10· · · · · · ·And I'll show you on page 24 of Exhibit E, we

11· ·have the phase one land use data.· Phase one was

12· ·actually just from south of Charleston Boulevard west

13· ·of Fort Apache, north of Sahara Avenue, and cuts off

14· ·right through here on this street that kind of curves

15· ·around.· So that's phase one.· It's just 400 acres.

16· · · · · · ·So what you'll see here is this phase one

17· ·land use data.· You've got R-PD7 zoning on the single

18· ·family, and you also have R-PD7 zoning on the open

19· ·space and drainage.· Even the elementary school was

20· ·zoned RPD-7.

21· · · · · · ·So you've got a lot of different uses that

22· ·you can put in an R-PD7 zone.· Doesn't necessarily mean

23· ·that you have entitlements to build houses.· It's a

24· ·planned development.· How are they going to include all

25· ·of these uses?· You've got to have a plan.· And this is



·1· ·the plan.

·2· · · · · · ·If you go onto page 25 --

·3· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· So here's my question as far as

·4· ·whatever plan was submitted by 180 Land Company as it

·5· ·relates to the 35-acre parcel that is at issue in this

·6· ·case.· Would there have been a necessity for a variance

·7· ·of any sort?

·8· · · · · · ·MR. MOLINA:· Not a variance.· And I'll walk

·9· ·you through the specific entitlements that are

10· ·required.

11· · · · · · ·But the process has changed, and that's why I

12· ·want to show, sort of, all this background so you

13· ·understand that people were acting in good faith here.

14· ·There's a legitimate debate.· Reasonable people could

15· ·disagree.

16· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· But here's my question.· And I

17· ·actually thought about this, too, good faith, intent

18· ·and the like.· At the end of the day, if you take

19· ·somebody's property, you take somebody's property.· You

20· ·can say, you know what, we want to make this for the

21· ·public good; right.· And you can have good faith.· And

22· ·if you do that, of course, the private property owner

23· ·has some rights, too.

24· · · · · · ·MR. MOLINA:· Right.

25· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· And so if you say, this is what



·1· ·we want to do, we want to use it for this purpose, and

·2· ·it could be a great reason, for the best parks and

·3· ·recreation in Clark County, but you've got to pay the

·4· ·property owner.

·5· · · · · · ·MR. MOLINA:· Absolutely.· You're totally

·6· ·correct.· But there's --

·7· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· I'm going to tell everybody this.

·8· ·I'm not necessarily focusing -- you can address this if

·9· ·you want to.· I'm not as concerned as much as the

10· ·intent.· I'm concerned about paying back the property

11· ·owner.· I understand there's a lot of arguments there.

12· ·I'm going to listen to the evidence.· But at the end of

13· ·the day, what impact does this have on the rights, the

14· ·entitlements, the bundle of rights, that were owned by

15· ·the 180 Land Company vis-a-vis or is relating to the 35

16· ·acres.· So they can have all the goodwill and want to

17· ·do the right thing, but the bottom line is, there's

18· ·property rights here.

19· · · · · · ·MR. MOLINA:· And you're so dead on.· The

20· ·problem is, is that the developers argue that you have

21· ·to look at the aggregate of the City's actions.· And

22· ·you have to look at all this different evidence.· And

23· ·he's trying to vilify everybody that's involved in this

24· ·thing.

25· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· Well, I'm not looking at it from



·1· ·vilified.· I'm looking at the impact on his property

·2· ·rights.

·3· · · · · · ·MR. MOLINA:· Okay.· And that's great.· And

·4· ·we'll talk about that.· But what I really want to lay

·5· ·the foundation for is the process of obtaining

·6· ·entitlements.· Because until you have an entitlement

·7· ·and until you start to build in reliance on that

·8· ·entitlement, you don't have vested rights.· And the

·9· ·case law is super clear on this.

10· · · · · · ·Stratosphere says, zoning does not confer

11· ·vested rights.· So that's the distinction here, is that

12· ·you have to have a vested right in order to base a

13· ·taking claim on that right.· And you don't have a

14· ·vested right just in the mere fact that the property is

15· ·zoned.· You have to go through the process --

16· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· They have a vested right based

17· ·upon the ownership of a property; right?· They have a

18· ·vested right based upon real property ownership; right?

19· · · · · · ·MR. MOLINA:· They don't have a vested right

20· ·to build whatever they want.

21· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· But here's the thing.· You say

22· ·they don't have a vested right to build whatever they

23· ·want.· And that's why I asked the one question as it

24· ·pertained to whether a variance would be necessary as

25· ·it relates to their project.



·1· · · · · · ·MR. MOLINA:· It's not a variance.· There's

·2· ·other entitlements that you would need to get, but it's

·3· ·not a variance.

·4· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· But you're not answering my

·5· ·question.· In essence, this was not a nonconforming

·6· ·use.

·7· · · · · · ·MR. MOLINA:· It wasn't a use.· It didn't

·8· ·exist.

·9· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· Wait.· Their application was not

10· ·a nonconforming use.· They didn't need to get a

11· ·variance; right?

12· · · · · · ·MR. MOLINA:· A nonconforming use is a

13· ·specialized term that means that a use that has been

14· ·allowed, but then it's no longer allowed under a

15· ·subsequent version of the code.

16· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· No.· No.· No.· Answer my

17· ·question.

18· · · · · · ·Would they have to get any variance based

19· ·upon their application?

20· · · · · · ·MR. MOLINA:· So our position is that --

21· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· Wait.· Wait.· That's a yes or no.

22· ·That's a fact.· It's not your position.· Would they

23· ·have had to get a variance?

24· · · · · · ·MR. MOLINA:· I'm trying to explain it's

25· ·not --



·1· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· Wait.

·2· · · · · · ·MR. MOLINA:· No.· The answer is no.

·3· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· Okay.· Here's the thing.· You've

·4· ·got to understand this.· I'm going to make the

·5· ·decision.

·6· · · · · · ·MR. MOLINA:· Yeah.

·7· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· So if you can't answer my

·8· ·questions and you're going to beat around the bush,

·9· ·that's going to impact my decision.· I don't mind

10· ·telling you that.

11· · · · · · ·MR. MOLINA:· I want to answer all of your

12· ·questions, but what I'm trying to say -- I'm not trying

13· ·to beat around the bush.· I'm trying to explain that

14· ·you have to have a general plan amendment at a minimum

15· ·because the general plan is parks, recreation, and open

16· ·space, which is consistent with the master plan that

17· ·the City approved.· You have to have a site development

18· ·review application, which is, essentially, you're

19· ·showing the City the plans, you're showing them the

20· ·layout, you're showing them where you're going to put

21· ·the landscaping, you know, what kind of units you're

22· ·going to have.· Then you have to have a tentative map.

23· ·You have to have a subdivision approval.

24· · · · · · ·So in this case, they filed a general plan

25· ·amendment, but it wasn't specific to the 35-acre



·1· ·property.· It was on 166 acres.· And that's the issue,

·2· ·is that they were asking for density of up to 5 units

·3· ·per acre, while at the same time, they were negotiating

·4· ·their development agreement that was saying that we're

·5· ·going to build 1 acre per lot.· So if you're going to

·6· ·ask for 5 units per acre under the general plan

·7· ·designation, why are you telling us that you're going

·8· ·to build one acre per lot?· If you go through the

·9· ·application history, what happened is they came in --

10· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· I want to make sure I'm clear.

11· ·If it was 1 acre per lot, would that have been in

12· ·conformance with R-PD7?

13· · · · · · ·You know what, sir, I don't know if you

14· ·litigate a lot, but most litigators don't do that.

15· ·They answer the judge's questions; right.· So my

16· ·question is this.· And I don't want any benign or

17· ·whatever.· Answer my question, please.· Because that

18· ·doesn't happen very often.· I don't mind telling you I

19· ·handle very complex cases.

20· · · · · · ·MR. MOLINA:· I know.· I know you do.· And

21· ·what I'm trying to explain here is that unless there's

22· ·a plan that contemplates housing in that area that's

23· ·been designated for it -- actually, let me back up.

24· · · · · · ·No, it doesn't comply with R-PD7 zoning.· And

25· ·the reason why is R-PD7 zoning only allows the amount



·1· ·of housing that's allowed under the general plan

·2· ·designation.· And the City's code is clear on that.

·3· ·The general plan controls the density limitations.· The

·4· ·ROS has zero residential density.

·5· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· Continue on, sir.

·6· · · · · · ·MR. MOLINA:· Okay.· Just going back -- we're

·7· ·going to get to all this.· I promise you.· I'm going to

·8· ·get to all of your questions.· My thought here is that

·9· ·we put it all in order so it makes sense in a logical

10· ·fashion.

11· · · · · · ·And this is the overall master plan land use

12· ·data.· Like I was saying on the previous page, it

13· ·showed that there was open space, schools, other uses

14· ·that are zoned R-PD7.· This also shows you've got open

15· ·space and drainage, but there's no residential density.

16· · · · · · ·That's the golf course.· It's zoned -- the

17· ·open space is zoned R-PD7, but it's no density.· And

18· ·that's what I'm saying is that you have to look at the

19· ·plan.· The plan says zero density on the golf course.

20· ·Of course you can't build houses on a golf course.

21· · · · · · ·And I'll just --

22· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· But this wasn't part of the

23· ·golf course, the 35 acres; right?

24· · · · · · ·MR. MOLINA:· It's part of a 9-acre

25· ·golf course.



·1· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· I thought the 35 acres was

·2· ·separate from the rest of the golf course.

·3· · · · · · ·MR. MOLINA:· This is the 35 acres right here.

·4· ·It's a golf course.

·5· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· Is that true?

·6· · · · · · ·MR. MOLINA:· Yes.

·7· · · · · · ·MR. LEAVITT:· Your Honor, the answer is this:

·8· ·Under the Peccole Ranch concept plan, absolutely not

·9· ·part of the golf course.· Number two, the Peccole Ranch

10· ·concept plan that counsel is going through with you was

11· ·abandoned.

12· · · · · · ·It's disturbing what's happening here, Judge.

13· ·This plan was abandoned.· And he's taking you through

14· ·an abandoned plan.

15· · · · · · ·We went through all this, Judge, at the

16· ·motion to determine property interest hearing.· And

17· ·that's why the Court didn't follow this plan, because

18· ·it was abandoned.· Disturbing what's happening.· For

19· ·counsel to testify to this plan is not evidence.

20· · · · · · ·MR. MOLINA:· I'm not -- I'm showing you the

21· ·evidence.· This is a golf course.· This is an aerial

22· ·map showing a golf course.· How can we deny this is a

23· ·golf course?

24· · · · · · ·MR. LEAVITT:· Your Honor, the 35-acre

25· ·property was part of the interim golf course that was



·1· ·used in the past.· But under this plan that counsel is

·2· ·showing you, this property was not part of this

·3· ·golf course in this plan, number one.· Number two, this

·4· ·plan was abandoned.· We have the documentation showing

·5· ·this plan was abandoned.

·6· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· Was the plan abandoned or not?

·7· · · · · · ·MR. MOLINA:· No.

·8· · · · · · ·MR. LEAVITT:· We'll show that to you, Your

·9· ·Honor.

10· · · · · · ·MR. MOLINA:· Can I just give my presentation?

11· · · · · · ·MR. SCHWARTZ:· Your Honor, we've ought to be

12· ·allowed --

13· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· Sir, you can go ahead and say

14· ·what you want to say.· I'm listening.

15· · · · · · ·MR. SCHWARTZ:· I think we should be allowed

16· ·to present our case without --

17· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· Well, you know what, I'm going to

18· ·push back on that, sir, respectfully.· I've never not

19· ·permitted someone to present their case.· However, when

20· ·I ask questions, I don't expect rolling of the eyes

21· ·and/or facial expressions that I can see from the

22· ·lecturn, and putting the hands up in the air.· I don't

23· ·expect that either.· I've had some fantastic lawyers

24· ·appear in front of me, and I've asked them some really

25· ·tough questions.· And you know what they would do, they



·1· ·would answer the question.

·2· · · · · · ·MR. SCHWARTZ:· Apologies, Your Honor.· We

·3· ·would just like to go through the facts of the general

·4· ·plan and the zoning of this property.· This factual

·5· ·recitation is an answer to the Judge's question.· We

·6· ·just need to be allowed to go through it.

·7· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· I mean, go through it.· And I

·8· ·will make a determination as to whether my question is

·9· ·asked or not.· At the end of the day, I keep coming

10· ·back to I wanted to know what the zoning was as it

11· ·relates to the 35 acres at issue.· And I guess the

12· ·answer would be it was R-PD7; right?

13· · · · · · ·MR. MOLINA:· That's correct.· Okay.

14· ·Thank you.· So I'm going to go to page 31 on Exhibit E.

15· ·This is planning commission minutes for the master

16· ·development plan that we just went through.· What I was

17· ·explaining yesterday is the City always followed the

18· ·same process.· You approve a plan, and then you rezone

19· ·the property in accordance with the plan.

20· · · · · · ·So on January 12th, 1989, the City planning

21· ·commission approved the master development plan.· And

22· ·subject to a maximum of 3,150 dwelling units be allowed

23· ·for phase one.· And the plan director says in that

24· ·first paragraph on the right-hand margin, he says, "The

25· ·application involves a large parcel that's had several



·1· ·master plans in the past.· There are some major

·2· ·drainage channels going through the area.· The exterior

·3· ·treatment will be similar to Canyon Gate."

·4· · · · · · ·And so then you go onto page 33 of

·5· ·Exhibit E., and there's a rezoning application.· They

·6· ·approved a plan.· Then they approved a rezoning

·7· ·application.· And it says Z139-88.· And it's subject to

·8· ·a resolution of intent with 12-month time limit.· And

·9· ·this is just the phase one property.

10· · · · · · ·If you go on to page 34 of Exhibit E,

11· ·paragraph 10 down at the bottom says, "The existing

12· ·resolution of intent is expunged under approval of this

13· ·application."

14· · · · · · ·The reason why I keep pointing that out,

15· ·because the property is not officially zoned R-PD7

16· ·until the development is done in 2000.· And we'll get

17· ·to that.

18· · · · · · ·So that was the planning commission.

19· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· I get that.· But, once again, I

20· ·think -- and I keep coming back to this.· And correct

21· ·me if I'm wrong if I'm missing a point, but when the

22· ·applications were made in this case, the 35 acres at

23· ·issue was zoned R-PD7; right?

24· · · · · · ·MR. MOLINA:· Yes.

25· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· I'm trying to figure out why does



·1· ·all this other stuff matter?

·2· · · · · · ·MR. MOLINA:· Because you're in an existing

·3· ·planned development.

·4· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· I mean, I get that.· I do.· Tell

·5· ·me that, hey, Judge, this is why that doesn't matter.

·6· ·Go ahead.

·7· · · · · · ·MR. MOLINA:· Thank you.

·8· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· Tee that up for me.

·9· · · · · · ·MR. MOLINA:· I'm going to show you some other

10· ·communities in town.· There's five or six other

11· ·communities, big, large, master planned communities

12· ·with golf courses, man-made lakes, big open water

13· ·features that are zoned R-PD7.· And they're designated

14· ·PR-OS in the City's general plan.

15· · · · · · ·So what I'm trying to explain here is that in

16· ·the '90s, they used this R-PD7 as flexible zoning.

17· ·They're looking at the number of units.· They're

18· ·looking at the density.· They're giving the developer

19· ·flexibility to basically put things, you know,

20· ·different uses in different places, depending on how

21· ·they want to do it subject to the City's discretionary

22· ·control.

23· · · · · · ·And every time they approve one of these

24· ·zoning applications, the developer still doesn't have

25· ·an entitlement to build.· They have to come back to the



·1· ·City later on and get an entitlement on each individual

·2· ·parcel.· And back then they called it a plot plan

·3· ·review.· I'm not going to go through a plot plan review

·4· ·for every single one of these because it's voluminous.

·5· · · · · · ·But my point is that the zoning establishes

·6· ·an R-PD7 district on the entire property.· And then the

·7· ·landowner has to come back and apply for plot plan

·8· ·review.· Goes through planning commission.· Sometimes

·9· ·it goes through city council on the individual parcels

10· ·for them to say, okay, we like the layout.· We like the

11· ·way you put this together.· We like the way that the

12· ·houses look.· There's aesthetic review as part of this.

13· · · · · · ·And that's the second step before you can

14· ·start applying for permits.· That's how they did this,

15· ·you know, in the '90s.· The application procedures

16· ·changed, you know, over time, but in the '90s, that's

17· ·how this worked.· And that's how this development

18· ·specifically was built out.

19· · · · · · ·So let's go to E36, page 36 of Exhibit E.

20· ·And this is the city council minutes for that master

21· ·development plan.· And first paragraph explains what

22· ·this says.· "This item was held in abeyance at the

23· ·request of the applicant --

24· · · · · · ·THE COURT REPORTER:· I'm sorry, sir.· You

25· ·have to read a little slower for me.



·1· · · · · · ·MR. MOLINA:· Sorry.· I've got so much to get

·2· ·through that I'm trying to --

·3· · · · · · ·THE COURT REPORTER:· It doesn't help if I

·4· ·can't keep up with you.

·5· · · · · · ·MR. MOLINA:· "This item was held in abeyance

·6· ·at the request of the applicant and as a revised master

·7· ·development plan for the Peccole property that is to be

·8· ·a planned community and named Peccole Ranch.· There is

·9· ·a related rezoning application involving 444 --

10· ·448.8 acres, gross acres, of the 1716 acres involved in

11· ·this development plan."

12· · · · · · ·Then on the third paragraph, it says, "The

13· ·phase one portion of this property is located west of

14· ·Fort Apache between Charleston Boulevard and

15· ·Sahara Avenue.· It's predominantly single-family use.

16· ·There's a mixed-use village in the center on the

17· ·settling portion of Sahara."

18· · · · · · ·Which is what I showed you that nice, green,

19· ·open space area with clustered apartments and, you

20· ·know, other housing.

21· · · · · · ·And then it says, "West of phase one similar

22· ·type of development."

23· · · · · · ·Talking about compatibility.

24· · · · · · ·"The entire development will be a walled-in

25· ·community with landscaping, a school site is proposed.



·1· ·The overall density is 6.7 units per gross acre that is

·2· ·compatible with the general plan, which recommends an

·3· ·average density of 7 units per acre.· Uses and the

·4· ·amount of acreage are as follows."

·5· · · · · · ·And you remember that I showed you that plan

·6· ·earlier.· It didn't have a golf course.· Well, it came

·7· ·back because they asked him to reduce the density and

·8· ·he brought the golf course back.· So you've got

·9· ·207.1 acres of golf course.

10· · · · · · ·And then if we go to page 38 of Exhibit E,

11· ·this is the master plan that the City approved, the

12· ·phase one master plan that the City approved.· Shows

13· ·the golf course has been added back to the north

14· ·portion, the phase two portion, of the master plan.

15· · · · · · ·And then if we go to page 41 of Exhibit E,

16· ·they have a rezoning application.· And the rezoning

17· ·application is in accordance with the master plan.· And

18· ·you'll see here that there's conditions of approval on

19· ·the bottom.· And no. 3 says, "Approval of plot plans

20· ·and elevation by the planning commission for each

21· ·parcel prior to development."

22· · · · · · ·So just because you get the zoning doesn't

23· ·necessarily mean that they have to approve your

24· ·development on a particular parcel.· You still have to

25· ·come back to the City and show them -- you have to



·1· ·apply for approval on each parcel.

·2· · · · · · ·Now, I'm going to flip to page 43 of

·3· ·Exhibit E.· And the third paragraph on that page says,

·4· ·"Initially, this phase had an overall density of 8.6

·5· ·dwelling units per acre, which exceeds the 7 units per

·6· ·gross acre density recommended in the general plan.

·7· ·The applicant has agreed to limit the maximum number of

·8· ·dwelling units to 3,150 that will reduce the density in

·9· ·accordance with the general plan.· There are no

10· ·development plans submitted at this time due to this

11· ·being a large-scale development.· And these will be

12· ·required to be approved by the planning commission

13· ·prior to development."

14· · · · · · ·Going to page 44 of Exhibit E.· This just

15· ·shows the phase one area that was rezoned.· Actually, I

16· ·want to zoom in on just the top portion of that bold

17· ·area.· You see how the City has designated the parcels

18· ·north of Charleston Boulevard with ROI?· It's a

19· ·resolution of intent.· So those properties have

20· ·resolution of intent zoning.

21· · · · · · ·And I'll just point out one other thing here.

22· ·Because we don't have GIS mapping at this point in

23· ·time.· We're keeping track of all this stuff by hand;

24· ·right.· So it's pretty burdensome for the City to try

25· ·to keep track of this kind of stuff.



·1· · · · · · ·Now we're going to get to the master plan

·2· ·that actually led to the zoning of the phase two

·3· ·property where the 35-acre property is located.· And

·4· ·that's in Exhibit F2.· And this is a letter from

·5· ·Wayne Smith, the planner that basically did all the

·6· ·planning for the Peccole Ranch master plan for the

·7· ·Peccole Family.

·8· · · · · · ·He says, "Enclosed per your requirements are

·9· ·an application for rezoning and 8 blue lines of the

10· ·master plan for the overall 1716.3 acres."

11· · · · · · ·And that is this one.· And, actually, I

12· ·apologize.· Go to page 3 of Exhibit F.· This was the

13· ·application where they added some property to

14· ·phase one.· It's basically overlooked, but it's, you

15· ·know, they added property to the phase one area.· This

16· ·piece right here that goes down the middle was added to

17· ·this part of phase one.

18· · · · · · ·Now, something important happened in 1989

19· ·that makes a big difference here.

20· · · · · · ·Go to the next exhibit.· Okay.· This is

21· ·Ordinance 3455.· And what this did is this established

22· ·a procedure for rezoning applications that deviate from

23· ·the general plan.· And what happened in 1989?· The

24· ·Nevada Supreme Court decided Nova Horizon v.

25· ·City of Reno.· The Nevada Supreme Court basically



·1· ·reversed a denial of an application because the City

·2· ·didn't accord deferens to their master plan.

·3· · · · · · ·And so after that decision, the City amends

·4· ·its laws and says, okay, we've got to actually start

·5· ·making sure that we insist on this master plan being

·6· ·followed.· And that's what this does.· So this

·7· ·establishes a procedure.· And all it said is if you're

·8· ·going to submit an application for development that's

·9· ·not consistent with the master plan, you've got to have

10· ·a good justification for it.

11· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· And I think, for the record,

12· ·that's why I asked the question as it relates to the

13· ·35 acres at issue in this matter.· Because it's my

14· ·understanding, and we can make sure the record is clear

15· ·on this, but the 180 Land didn't seek some sort of

16· ·variance or deviation from the existing zoning as it

17· ·pertained to the 35-acre property; is that correct?

18· · · · · · ·MR. MOLINA:· It's a general plan amendment,

19· ·not a variance.

20· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· Okay.· All right.

21· · · · · · ·MR. MOLINA:· So Exhibit G is another

22· ·ordinance, 1989 ordinance.· And this established a

23· ·gaming enterprise district in the City of Las Vegas.

24· ·And right there in the summary it says, "Establishes a

25· ·gaming enterprise district as of 1990 for nonrestricted



·1· ·gaming."

·2· · · · · · ·So if you want a casino, you have to be in

·3· ·the gaming enterprise district.

·4· · · · · · ·And then if we go to page 10 of Exhibit G.

·5· ·This is a memo from one of the planning staff to the

·6· ·department of planning.· The memo just explains what

·7· ·the next documents are.· Let's go to page 11.

·8· · · · · · ·This is the attachment A.· And what they

·9· ·determined -- and I'll show you some additional

10· ·evidence on this point.· But what they determined was

11· ·if we're going to have a gaming enterprise district,

12· ·we're going to have nonrestricted gaming all the way

13· ·out on the west side of Las Vegas, we need to make sure

14· ·that it's not just a standalone casino.· We're going to

15· ·make sure that you're a destination resort.

16· · · · · · ·And this is what defines a destination

17· ·resort.· A destination resort is designed as a hotel

18· ·with a minimum of 200 guest rooms and an 18-hole

19· ·golf course and the rest of these amenities.· So if

20· ·Peccole wanted to get into this, he needed an 18-hole

21· ·golf course.

22· · · · · · ·And then go to the next page, page 12 of

23· ·Exhibit G.· This is the gaming enterprise district map.

24· ·And zoom in a little bit to the bottom left-hand corner

25· ·there.· You can see that's the gaming enterprise



·1· ·district, the star.· "Each planned community is limited

·2· ·to one destination resort as defined on attachment A."

·3· · · · · · ·You have to have a golf course.

·4· · · · · · ·Go up a little bit.· There it is.

·5· ·Peccole Ranch, limited to one destination resort.

·6· · · · · · ·Go to page 15 of Exhibit G.· This is the

·7· ·background behind the ordinance that established the

·8· ·gaming enterprise district.· Just tells you what the

·9· ·law was, the state law, that says, "During its recently

10· ·enacted session, the Nevada legislature enacted Chapter

11· ·616 statutes in 1989.· The legislation provides that

12· ·beginning January 1, 1990, no state license for

13· ·nonrestricted gaming may be issued in such county

14· ·unless the property being licensed is located in an

15· ·area that has been designated as a gaming enterprise

16· ·district."

17· · · · · · ·So on page 17, you've got minutes of

18· ·city council regarding the Las Vegas gaming enterprise

19· ·district.· This is actually a special meeting of the

20· ·city council.· And it talks about areas recommended for

21· ·inclusion down in paragraph 4.· Says, "Peccole Ranch in

22· ·Summerlin Village 3 as outlined in the respective maps

23· ·with the qualification that each of those two

24· ·developments be limited to one destination resort as

25· ·defined in the attachment."



·1· · · · · · ·And then we've got, on page 18 of Exhibit G,

·2· ·we have the memo where they're talking about what's a

·3· ·destination resort.· They're saying, "Certain parties

·4· ·that are developing large master planned communities in

·5· ·the City of Las Vegas have requested Las Vegas Gaming

·6· ·Enterprise District Committee recommend that a portion

·7· ·of their master planned community be designated a

·8· ·gaming enterprise district."

·9· · · · · · ·If you were to go back to that map, you'd see

10· ·it's just the phase two property north of Charleston

11· ·Boulevard that says it is part gaming and part

12· ·district.

13· · · · · · ·So on page 23 of Exhibit G, we actually have

14· ·a transcript of this.· They talk about the Summerlin

15· ·and Peccole properties were discussed next.· Pointed

16· ·out the people were upset about this.· The two

17· ·properties that are being discussed are open space that

18· ·has been master planned and there were previous

19· ·designations of what would be a resort hotel.· And they

20· ·just make a motion for approval.

21· · · · · · ·And page 24 of Exhibit B is just sort of

22· ·ironic that the person who seconded that person was

23· ·Chris Kaempfer, the developer's attorney in the land

24· ·use.· So, you know, it's kind of a bait and switch.

25· ·You're telling the City that you're going to build an



·1· ·18-hole golf course so you can be included in a gaming

·2· ·enterprise district.· And if they hadn't built that

·3· ·golf course, there wouldn't be a Sun Coast Hotel.

·4· · · · · · ·So, you know, what happens if the golf course

·5· ·closes.· They're not going to close the Sun Coast now.

·6· ·But it's a bait and switch.

·7· · · · · · ·So now I'm going to go to Exhibit H.· And

·8· ·this is what I thought the previous one was.· But this

·9· ·is the submittal for the 1990 Peccole Ranch master

10· ·plan.· This is reduced acreage to 1569.6 acres.· And

11· ·we're going to get into this a little bit, into the

12· ·nitty gritty on this one, if you'll indulge me.

13· · · · · · ·On page 4 of Exhibit H, this is again just

14· ·the booklet that was submitted with this application.

15· ·It's prepared by Peccole Ranch Partnership.· As I

16· ·mentioned before, there's a falling out with the Triple

17· ·5 group.· They go their separate ways, but it is what

18· ·it is.

19· · · · · · ·Page 7 of Exhibit H is the explanation.· It

20· ·says, "The proposed 1569.6-acre Peccole Ranch master

21· ·plan is being submitted to the City of Las Vegas for

22· ·the approval of an amendment to the overall conceptual

23· ·master plan, along with the rezoning of the 996.4 acres

24· ·in phase two to R-PD7, R3 and C1 designations."

25· · · · · · ·So you finally get to R-PD7 on the 35-acre



·1· ·property.· And I apologize for how long it took me to

·2· ·get to this.

·3· · · · · · ·Going on to page 9.· Explains the proposed

·4· ·master plan incorporates office, neighborhood,

·5· ·commercial, nursing home, a bunch of other uses.· Then

·6· ·it says, "An extensive 253-acre golf course and linear

·7· ·open space system winding throughout the community

·8· ·provides positive focal point while creating a

·9· ·mechanism to handle drainage flows."

10· · · · · · ·So this was really smart for Peccole to use

11· ·the golf course as the drainage.· It's a win-win.· You

12· ·can knock out two birds with one stone.

13· · · · · · ·Going on to page 11.· And down at the bottom,

14· ·the last paragraph talks about the differences between

15· ·these two master plans, the one that was approved in

16· ·1988 --

17· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· I have a question as far as

18· ·draining.· There's no question Mr. Peccole, based upon

19· ·his actions in southern Nevada, was a forward-thinking

20· ·man.· But as far as the golf course is concerned, if

21· ·the City wants that to remain drainage, wouldn't the

22· ·City have for pay for that?

23· · · · · · ·MR. MOLINA:· I believe what you're asking is

24· ·whether or not that would be an exaction.· And I would

25· ·defer to Mr. Schwartz to answer that question.· That's



·1· ·just a little bit --

·2· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· But you understand what I mean?

·3· ·I mean, from a common good perspective, I get it, you

·4· ·know.· And I think that's one of the issues that the

·5· ·county and the City and so on have been very proactive

·6· ·from a historical perspective.· Because I've been here

·7· ·since the mid-'80s.· And I remember when -- it was

·8· ·actually before I got here, but I still remember when

·9· ·Caesars Palace flooded.· Everybody kind of knows that.

10· · · · · · ·And Las Vegas, the community leaders and, I

11· ·guess, also the engineers and planning, I think they

12· ·were forward thinking.· And I don't understand this

13· ·because I'm not an engineer, but they put in all the

14· ·different flood channels and all those things; right.

15· · · · · · ·But my point is this.· If there's a concern

16· ·as to the use of the golf course and they had a

17· ·secondary value as a flood channel, you know, for the

18· ·public good, and there was going to be a potential

19· ·change, and the City says, no, it should stay for this

20· ·purpose, shouldn't the City pay for that?

21· · · · · · ·MR. SCHWARTZ:· Your Honor, the answer is no.

22· ·And I can explain.

23· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· And make a note on it, sir.

24· ·Write it down and tell me why the City would not pay

25· ·for that.



·1· · · · · · ·MR. MOLINA:· I mean, this is pretty common;

·2· ·right.· Any development they have to address drainage.

·3· ·You just can't let properties get flooded.· That's not

·4· ·good for anybody.

·5· · · · · · ·So page 4 of Exhibit H -- I'm sorry.· I lost

·6· ·my place.· I'm sorry.· We are on page 11.

·7· · · · · · ·And I was saying it explains the difference

·8· ·is that there's been a refinement of the golf course

·9· ·and drainage-ways, shifting of parcels and parcel

10· ·boundaries, to better use open space areas.

11· · · · · · ·Going on to page 15 of Exhibit H, it talks

12· ·about this drainage issue a little bit more where it

13· ·says, "The focal point of Peccole Ranch phase two is

14· ·the 199.8-acre golf course and open space drainage

15· ·waste system, which traverses the site along with the

16· ·national wash system."

17· · · · · · ·It's a good thing to do drainage in a wash

18· ·for a lot of different reasons.· But it says, "All

19· ·residential parcels within phase two except for one

20· ·have exposure to the golf course and open space areas.

21· ·The single-family parcel, which is not adjacent to the

22· ·open space system borders Angel Park Golf Course."

23· · · · · · ·This was a big deal.· Open space was a big

24· ·deal.

25· · · · · · ·Page 17 of Exhibit H talks about the drainage



·1· ·even more.· The third paragraph from the top, it

·2· ·explains the pathway of the drainage flows.

·3· · · · · · ·So south of Charleston Boulevard the drainage

·4· ·flow through the washes initially enters the site in

·5· ·two locations along the western boundary at a peak rate

·6· ·of 800 cubic feet per second.· Two wash flows are then

·7· ·directed into the main drainage wash, which flows

·8· ·northeasterly towards the large Angel Park.

·9· · · · · · ·And then the last paragraph on page 17 says,

10· ·"Phase two.· Proposed Peccole Ranch master plan has

11· ·approximately 33.1 additional acres allotted for golf

12· ·course and drainage-ways.· The additional acreage

13· ·accommodates a clubhouse, driving range, centrally

14· ·located within the golf course and surrounding

15· ·residential community.· These features are also

16· ·accessible to visitors staying at the adjacent

17· ·destination resort casino."

18· · · · · · ·So this was all part of a big plan.· Page 23

19· ·of Exhibit H.· We'll go to the land use data.· And,

20· ·again, we've got 211.6 acres of golf course.· It's

21· ·going to be zoned R-PD7, but there's zero residential

22· ·density.· There's zero units.

23· · · · · · ·Page 24.· Same thing.· This is the land use

24· ·data for the overall master plan.· Got 253 acres of

25· ·golf course, open space, drainage, zero density.



·1· · · · · · ·All right.· Page 27 is the legal description

·2· ·for the parcel that included the 35-acre property.· And

·3· ·it's Lot 31 on the master plan map.· And we'll show

·4· ·that in a second.

·5· · · · · · ·But if you go to the next page, page 3 -- I'm

·6· ·sorry -- page 29 shows the acreage.· 519.87 acres for

·7· ·R-PD7 zoning.· This Lot 31 has R-PD7 zoning.

·8· · · · · · ·The City asked the developer to submit these

·9· ·legal descriptions so they could say which part is

10· ·going to be R-PD7, which part is going to be C1.· This

11· ·didn't subdivide the property.· It just gave the City

12· ·the legal description to know where the proposed uses

13· ·were going to go.

14· · · · · · ·And the thing that I'll point out about this

15· ·it that says 519.87 acres for R-PD7.· But if you went

16· ·back to the phase two land data, there's only 401 acres

17· ·of single-family residential.· So you've got

18· ·519.87 acres zoned R-PD7, but you only have 401 acres

19· ·planned for single-family residential.· The difference

20· ·is the golf course is part of that R-PD7 zone.

21· · · · · · ·So now I'm going to go on to page 47 of

22· ·Exhibit H.· And this is when they present the master

23· ·plan to the planning commission; right.· You've got to

24· ·go to planning commission and then you go to

25· ·city council.· And they always do this in the same



·1· ·order.· They approve the master plan and then rezone

·2· ·the property.

·3· · · · · · ·You've got item 24 on planning commission.

·4· ·This is March 8th, 1990.· And it says, "A maximum of

·5· ·4,247 dwelling units be allowed for phase two."

·6· · · · · · ·And then the director of planning also

·7· ·explains this request.· Says, "Phase two contains

·8· ·996.4 acres predominantly single-family dwellings;

·9· ·however, there will be a multi-family resort,

10· ·golf course, commercial office, school, rights-of-way.

11· ·The significant change is the addition of the

12· ·golf course and a larger resort casino site and a

13· ·100-acre shopping center."

14· · · · · · ·And then the second to the last sentence of

15· ·that paragraph says, "The gaming enterprise district

16· ·indicates this area could contain one destination

17· ·resort/casino, but the applicant would have to have a

18· ·major recreational facility and a minimum of 200 rooms,

19· ·which is the golf course."

20· · · · · · ·Going onto page 49.· So after they approve

21· ·the master plan, they go in and rezone the property.

22· ·It's the 17th zoning application submitted in 1990.

23· ·And the staff recommendation of approval.· Mostly same

24· ·conditions, 4,247 dwelling units per acre; conformance

25· ·to the conditions of approval for the



·1· ·Peccole Ranch Master Development Plan, phase two;

·2· ·approval of plot lands for each parcel.

·3· · · · · · ·At the time it was developed you have to

·4· ·dedicate the right-of-ways, streets, improvements,

·5· ·drainage plan, drainage waste system extension, all

·6· ·that stuff.· And on the right side, you'll see there's

·7· ·William Peccole.· He's there.· He's testifying in

·8· ·support of this application.

·9· · · · · · ·And one of his, you know, people in the

10· ·neighborhood complained about the casino.· He says,

11· ·it's going to be buffered by his golf course on the

12· ·south and Angel Park Golf Course on the north.

13· · · · · · ·And then his planner below also explains.· He

14· ·says, "We've reduced the density by about 2,200 units."

15· · · · · · ·So where did number come from?· We've reduced

16· ·the density by 2,200 units.· And the way to come up

17· ·with that number is you look at the 4,247 units.· Well,

18· ·what would be 2,200 plus that?· That gets you to about

19· ·6,600.

20· · · · · · ·And what he's doing, apparently, is he's

21· ·multiplying the 996.4 acres times 7 to come up with a

22· ·total allowable units of 7 units per acre on the entire

23· ·master planned area, including the commercial,

24· ·including, you know, all of these other uses,

25· ·including, you know, the R3 zoned areas, the high



·1· ·density apartments.· He's looking at the entire master

·2· ·plan through the lens of the general plan, which is 7

·3· ·units per acre at this point in time.

·4· · · · · · ·And so he's saying, we reduced this by

·5· ·2200 acres [sic] because, theoretically, under the

·6· ·general plan that existed at that time, we could do 7

·7· ·units per acre on all 996.4 acres.

·8· · · · · · ·But they reduced it.· They went down by 2,200

·9· ·units because the traffic issues just didn't make

10· ·sense.

11· · · · · · ·So going onto page 50 of Exhibit H, this is

12· ·the city council minutes.· Planning commission approved

13· ·it.· Now it goes to city council.· City council

14· ·approves it subject to all the conditions recommended

15· ·by the planning commission, including --

16· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· Tell me this.· Why didn't the

17· ·city council approve the recommendations of the

18· ·planning commission as it relates to the 35 acres in

19· ·this case?

20· · · · · · ·MR. MOLINA:· Why did or didn't they?

21· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· Didn't they?

22· · · · · · ·MR. MOLINA:· Well, like I was saying before,

23· ·the issue was that they were negotiating this

24· ·development agreement that was saying that they're

25· ·going to do 1 unit per acre or even less than that, I



·1· ·think.· And then they're coming in at the same time

·2· ·applying for a general plan amendment that would allow

·3· ·up to 5 units per acre on 166 acres, not just 35 acres.

·4· ·It didn't have any applications in the pipeline at that

·5· ·time for the other 130 acres.

·6· · · · · · ·And so -- and I'll walk you through that.

·7· ·I've got exhibits.· I've got another binder for that.

·8· ·And we'll talk about that.· Because I'll show you the

·9· ·evidence on that that explains why.

10· · · · · · ·On page 51 of Exhibit H, this is the staff

11· ·report that's included in that application.· It just

12· ·notes the land uses.· And then on page 53 of Exhibit H,

13· ·you've got a rezoning application.· And they approve

14· ·the rezoning application.

15· · · · · · ·And I'm just going to go -- page 55 of

16· ·Exhibit H, it's the last thing I'll say on this

17· ·exhibit, is that on this fourth paragraph from the top,

18· ·just says, "Phase two proposed development will contain

19· ·4,247 dwelling units per acre, overall gross density of

20· ·4.3 units."

21· · · · · · ·Then at the bottom it says, "Conforms to

22· ·general plan, the density recommendations, the general

23· ·plan."

24· · · · · · ·So they're below the 7 units per acre allowed

25· ·on the general plan on the entire property and all



·1· ·996.4 acres.· And they're now at 4.3 units, if you look

·2· ·at the gross acreage of the entire development, of

·3· ·phase two.

·4· · · · · · ·So now I want to go to Exhibit QQQQ page 7.

·5· ·This is that master development plan that they approved

·6· ·on April 4th of 1990.· As I was saying before, you have

·7· ·that Lot No. 31 is the one that is zoned R-PD7, that

·8· ·big, 600-acre piece.· And if we could just zoom in to

·9· ·this top part that's up here north of Charleston

10· ·Boulevard.· The boundary lines for that Lot 31 include

11· ·the golf course.· And we can walk through the meets and

12· ·bounds on the legal description, but I'm pretty sure

13· ·you don't want to do that.

14· · · · · · ·So what happened next?· They approved the

15· ·master development plan.· They approved the rezoning

16· ·application.

17· · · · · · ·And then in 1992, they adopt a new general

18· ·plan.· And this changes a lot.· This changes the way

19· ·that the City handles, you know, general plan

20· ·applications, how they actually handle their rezoning

21· ·applications.

22· · · · · · ·You remember that ordinance that I was saying

23· ·before where they have to submit a justification

24· ·statement?· Now they actually have to apply.· This

25· ·formal application for a general plan amendment to



·1· ·obtain development that's inconsistent with the general

·2· ·plan.

·3· · · · · · ·But I'm going to go through the process

·4· ·really quickly because there's been an argument that

·5· ·this general plan is somehow invalid.· And that's just

·6· ·false.· They worked on this general plan for two years.

·7· ·I won't go through all of that, but I'll just show you

·8· ·the documents and what they are just so you know what

·9· ·the evidence shows.

10· · · · · · ·On Exhibit QQQQ8, this is attached to the

11· ·declaration of the community development director.

12· ·This is the general plan map that existed in 1992

13· ·before the City adopted their new comprehensive master

14· ·plan.· And it's exactly what the City approved in 1990

15· ·when Peccole applied for an amended master plan.· The

16· ·City just took that and they put it in their master

17· ·plan.

18· · · · · · ·And if you zoom in on the top portion north

19· ·of Charleston Boulevard, you'll see the golf course.

20· ·It's "P" for parks.

21· · · · · · ·Now I'm going to go to RRRR2, the

22· ·supplemental declaration of Seth Floyd, community

23· ·planning director.· These are minutes of the citizen

24· ·advisory committee that put all this stuff together.

25· · · · · · ·And there's a lot of big names on here.



·1· ·You've got, all the way at the bottom, Brad Nelson,

·2· ·American Nevada Corporation.· He did the Green Valley

·3· ·master plan.· And then on page 15 -- I'm sorry --

·4· ·page 5 of that exhibit, these are minutes of that

·5· ·meeting.· And it says, "Discussion ensued concerning

·6· ·the time between the committee meetings due to the

·7· ·desire of members to review land uses in the field, as

·8· ·well as staff preparation time, it was determined that

·9· ·there should be three weeks between meetings.· The

10· ·staff also instructed to mail out copies of the

11· ·community profile maps being reviewed to aid in their

12· ·field work."

13· · · · · · ·And this is February 13th, 1991.· If you go

14· ·to page 7 of that exhibit, it's the same map.· This is

15· ·what was mailed out to the citizens advisory committee

16· ·saying, hey, go look at what's existing out in the

17· ·field, but this is what we've already approved.· This

18· ·is our approved general plan area.

19· · · · · · ·And I talked about this yesterday.· These

20· ·community profile maps were part of that 1986 -- or

21· ·1985 general plan, this whole community profile system.

22· ·And back in 1985, the general plan looked like the

23· ·Peccole land use plan that was approved in 1981.· Well,

24· ·they just replaced it with what they approved in 1990.

25· · · · · · ·And then I'm just going to go through this



·1· ·very, very quickly so we make a record that the 1992

·2· ·general plan was validly adopted.· I'm going to go to

·3· ·RRRR2.· This is the planning commission minutes from

·4· ·October 10th, 1991.· And I'll just -- let me just

·5· ·explain the procedure very quickly here.· Under NRS

·6· ·278.250, or maybe 210 or something like that, the

·7· ·planning commission has to adopt the master plan first.

·8· · · · · · ·Then the planning commission sends that

·9· ·master plan to the city council.· And then if the

10· ·city council approves the master plan, it's done.· But

11· ·if they make changes, it's got to go back to the

12· ·planning commission.· So that's why I want to walk

13· ·through this a little bit, but I also just want to show

14· ·the extent of all of the public meetings that were held

15· ·on this general plan.

16· · · · · · ·So the first one is October 10th, 1991.· At

17· ·this point in time, the citizens advisory committee has

18· ·been working on this for over a year.· And then we'll

19· ·go to page -- just that second paragraph says, "The

20· ·citizen advisory committee is 41 members.· They met for

21· ·approximately a year and a half to put this document

22· ·together."

23· · · · · · ·Going to the next exhibit, RRRR3.· This is

24· ·the October 22nd, 1991 planning commission meeting

25· ·minutes.· Remember, they only have to hold one meeting



·1· ·on this plan before they adopt it and send it out to

·2· ·the city council, but they hold a lot.

·3· · · · · · ·We'll go to RRRR4.· November 14th, 1991.

·4· · · · · · ·Let's go to RRRR5.· November 26th, 1991.

·5· · · · · · ·And this is where they actually adopt it.· So

·6· ·if we go to RRRR7, this is the resolution.· And that's

·7· ·what the statute requires to adopt the general plan by

·8· ·resolution.· And then you forward it to the

·9· ·city council.

10· · · · · · ·So then let's go to RRRR8.· City proposes an

11· ·ordinance to adopt the general plan that was adopted by

12· ·the planning commission.· And under the City's

13· ·procedural rules, you have to just read a bill before

14· ·you can adopt it.· So that's all they did.· There's no

15· ·discussion on it at this meeting.

16· · · · · · ·And then what the City normally does is then

17· ·they send a proposed ordinance to a recommending

18· ·committee.· And RRRR9 is the minutes of the

19· ·recommending committee.· And in this instance, the

20· ·recommending committee was the entire city council.

21· ·The entire city council reviewed this general plan.

22· · · · · · ·If you go to page 4 of RRRR9, they talk

23· ·about, it says, "Based on Nevada state case law, the

24· ·courts upheld the master plan as a standard that

25· ·demands deference and production-backed applicability.



·1· ·The Nevada Supreme Court has held the master plans in

·2· ·Nevada must be accorded substantial compliance, while

·3· ·Nevada statutes require that zoning authority must

·4· ·adopt zoning regulations that are in substantial

·5· ·agreement with the master plan."

·6· · · · · · ·So that's the intent.· That was the framework

·7· ·they were working with.

·8· · · · · · ·If you go to page 5, they talk about

·9· ·specifically they're making changes to the procedures

10· ·of how they're going to enforce their general plan

11· ·based on Nova Horizon.· "No application for subdivision

12· ·or land or change in zoning district classification

13· ·which would have the effect of permitting use of land

14· ·or structures in a manner inconsistent with the land

15· ·use plan and/or the land use classification system may

16· ·be approved without a plot without filing a

17· ·simultaneous request to the city council to consider a

18· ·formal planned amendment.· In order for such zoning

19· ·change to be approved the city council must hold a

20· ·public hearing to consider planning commission

21· ·recommendations and formally amend -- to formally amend

22· ·the land use map and/or land use classification."

23· · · · · · ·Finally, "No land use variance which would

24· ·have the effect of permitting use density or intensity

25· ·of land or structures in a manner inconsistent with the



·1· ·land use and/or land use classification system shall be

·2· ·approved."

·3· · · · · · ·And that's the language that they're saying

·4· ·you need to insert into our general plan.· And I'll

·5· ·show you where it is.· And they -- on page 9 of RRRR,

·6· ·you have Councilman Adamsen specifically talking about

·7· ·the Peccole property.

·8· · · · · · ·And he's saying that, "There was also a

·9· ·question of west Charleston at Fort Apache/Rampart

10· ·where they intersect.· We currently have an ongoing

11· ·application there.· With that application forthcoming

12· ·would we want to be proactive and take a look at that

13· ·corner as it relates to commercial and eliminating

14· ·residential, low residential, just immediately north."

15· · · · · · ·And then down below that, the other council

16· ·members say, we don't know what they're actually going

17· ·to do at this point.· We should probably go out and

18· ·contact them.

19· · · · · · ·If you go onto the next page, page 10.

20· ·They're still talking about it.· They say, well, what

21· ·I've seen from the developer is commercial and with the

22· ·first step we've taken reverting it to acreage.· While

23· ·we're in the process of doing this master plan update,

24· ·thought it should be incorporated.· And then down below

25· ·he says, well, let's see if we can get in contact with



·1· ·them to incorporate their changes into our map.

·2· · · · · · ·City just incorporated what Peccole asked

·3· ·for.

·4· · · · · · ·If you go to page 22.· I'm sorry.· Yeah,

·5· ·page 22.· Is this a different exhibit?· There it is.

·6· ·These are the land use categories that they are going

·7· ·to incorporate into their general plan.· Remember, now

·8· ·they're going to insist that you formally amend the

·9· ·general plan in order to change something.· And this is

10· ·where the parks, recreation, open space comes from.

11· ·Down at the bottom it just says "P."· That's all they

12· ·used at the time, just "P."

13· · · · · · ·All right.· Going on to RRRR10.· Remember,

14· ·they want to make changes to this.· And under the state

15· ·statute, if the city council is going to make changes,

16· ·they have to refer it back to the planning commission.

17· ·That's what they do on February 19th, 1992.

18· · · · · · ·On RRRR11, is the planning commission meeting

19· ·where they consider the city council's revisions.· And

20· ·on page 3 of that, they talk about the southwest sector

21· ·map.· And that's where the golf course gets designated

22· ·P, PR-OS, in 1992.

23· · · · · · ·And they say on paragraph 3, "Parcel in the

24· ·vicinity of Rampart/Durango and Charleston/Alta revised

25· ·to conform to revised Peccole Ranch master plan."



·1· · · · · · ·The City just adopted Peccole Ranch master

·2· ·plan as its general plan in 1992.

·3· · · · · · ·And this is a recommending committee meeting.

·4· ·Actually, RRRR12 this is minutes from a recommending

·5· ·committee meeting where they sent -- the planning

·6· ·commission adopted all the changes proposed by the

·7· ·city council.· They sent it back to the city council.

·8· ·And the city council holds another meeting on this.

·9· · · · · · ·He says, "If someone applies for zoning

10· ·that's not consisted with the plan, it's automatically

11· ·taken in as a plan amendment and a hearing will be held

12· ·on a plan amendment at the same time."

13· · · · · · ·And then he says again later on down in that

14· ·same minutes, he says, "In processing a plan amendment,

15· ·the council will get staff background and analysis of

16· ·what is going on so it would not be a spot plan

17· ·amendment.· Staff would recommend changing whatever is

18· ·logical in the area, not just one piece at a time if

19· ·it's time to do that.· That way the plan will not get

20· ·out of date."

21· · · · · · ·So you've got an administrative benefit to

22· ·requiring a general plan amendment in addition to a

23· ·overall land use sort of principle here of making sure

24· ·that you're not doing spot zoning.

25· · · · · · ·RRRR13 is the city council minutes where they



·1· ·adopt the new general plan.· So we've had, I think,

·2· ·four or five different planning commission meetings

·3· ·before the planning commission adopts the 1992 general

·4· ·plan.· Then it goes to the city council.· The

·5· ·city council makes changes.· Then it goes back to the

·6· ·planning commission, just like you're supposed to do

·7· ·under the statute.

·8· · · · · · ·Planning commission approves all of the

·9· ·changes recommended by the city council.· And then the

10· ·city council sends it back -- then the city council

11· ·adopts an ordinance.· And that's final.· It's the law

12· ·now.

13· · · · · · ·RRRR13 -- actually, the next page.· This just

14· ·is a memo that is showing what changes were approved by

15· ·the planning commission.· It says it right there in

16· ·that first paragraph.· "The planning commission at

17· ·their March 12, 1992, reviewed the revisions proposed

18· ·by the city council recommending committee.· They

19· ·concurred with our revisions and unanimously adopted

20· ·the general plan with these revisions."

21· · · · · · ·So, in some of these other cases, the

22· ·developers argued that this was -- you know, because

23· ·the Peccole property wasn't listed on these changes or

24· ·because the golf course wasn't listed on these changes,

25· ·that somehow it wasn't part of the 1992 general plan.



·1· ·And that's just false.· What this is just showing is

·2· ·what was changed by the city council, sent back to the

·3· ·planning commission, and then approved by the

·4· ·city council again on April 1st.· That's all that this

·5· ·is showing.· And, in fact, they do show a change to

·6· ·part of the Peccole Ranch master plan.· They said,

·7· ·we're going to revise this to conform to the Peccole

·8· ·Ranch master plan.

·9· · · · · · ·So now I'm going to go to QQQQ9.· And this is

10· ·what they adopted.· That's the cover page.· This

11· ·gigantic binder, 400 and something pages.· Then if you

12· ·go to page 12 of QQQQ9.· And we've given you all 400

13· ·pages, by the way, in QQQQ9.

14· · · · · · ·But on page 12, in the middle, it explains

15· ·where did these maps come from?· Where did the map that

16· ·made the golf course PR-OS come from?· Well, the City

17· ·just combined all the smaller maps into one big map.

18· · · · · · ·It's all this says.· Aggregation of the 16

19· ·individual community profile area maps into a northwest

20· ·sector map, a southwest sector map, and a southeast

21· ·sector map.

22· · · · · · ·Developers are going to get up, and they're

23· ·going to say, Brad Jerbic said the City studied this

24· ·and they couldn't find out where it came from.· This is

25· ·where it came from.· It was already in the master plan



·1· ·before 1992.

·2· · · · · · ·Go to page 17 --

·3· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· So, I mean, are we testifying or

·4· ·is that -- I just want to make sure I understand that.

·5· ·Because if Mr. Jerbic testified a specific way, I mean,

·6· ·the evidence would be limited to his testimony unless

·7· ·you were placed under oath and we took testimony from

·8· ·you, sir.· And that's my point.

·9· · · · · · ·But go ahead on, sir, because I am going to

10· ·have some questions.· I'm going to think about this

11· ·case.

12· · · · · · ·MR. MOLINA:· I thought the documents speak

13· ·for themselves on that point.

14· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· There you go.

15· · · · · · ·MR. LEAVITT:· Your Honor, if I may lodge one

16· ·objection.· Counsel is testifying.

17· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· Sir, your position is the

18· ·document speaks for itself.

19· · · · · · ·MR. MOLINA:· Yeah.· I thought I walked

20· ·through that.

21· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· I understand.· Continue on.

22· · · · · · ·MR. MOLINA:· Thank you.· On page 17 of the

23· ·1992 master plan explains what is zoning.· Zoning is

24· ·the major implementation tool of the general plan.

25· · · · · · ·And then on the right column it explains,



·1· ·based on case law, Nevada case law in Nova Horizon, the

·2· ·courts upheld that master plan is the standard that

·3· ·commands deference and a presumption of applicability.

·4· ·Nevada Supreme Court has held that master plans in

·5· ·Nevada must be accorded substantial compliance while

·6· ·Nevada statutes require that zoning authority must

·7· ·adopt zoning regulations that are in substantial

·8· ·agreement with the master plan.

·9· · · · · · ·We have to follow the master plan.

10· · · · · · ·And then on page 25 of Exhibit 9, they

11· ·explain what does PR-OS mean, parks, recreation, open

12· ·space.· This category allows large open spaces and

13· ·recreation areas, such as public and private golf

14· ·courses, trails, and easements, drainage-ways, and

15· ·retention basins, and any other large areas of

16· ·permanent open land.

17· · · · · · ·And further down on that page they're talking

18· ·about legal significance of general master plans.

19· ·People call it general plan, people call it master

20· ·plan.· But it says, "With the adoption of this general

21· ·plan."· And, actually, before that, they reference that

22· ·ordinance that I showed you that they adopted after

23· ·Nova Horizon in 1989, where they say that you have to

24· ·have a justification statement for a deviation from a

25· ·general plan.· Now they're saying, with this general



·1· ·plain in 1992, all future deviation requests shall be

·2· ·supported by a formal request to amend the land use

·3· ·map, classification schedule, or text as the case may

·4· ·require.

·5· · · · · · ·Getting back to your question about a

·6· ·variance.· I wasn't trying to dodge the question.· What

·7· ·I was trying to explain is that it's not a variance.

·8· ·Because a variance is -- involves actual development

·9· ·standards.· Whereas, the general plan is talking about

10· ·permitted land uses.· So what I was saying is that you

11· ·have to apply for a general plan amendment, not a

12· ·variance.

13· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· Okay.· In this case, as it

14· ·relates to the 35 acres, would there be a requirement

15· ·to obtain a variance as to the general plan amendment?

16· ·Because it was already -- I keep coming back to this,

17· ·but it was already zoned R-PD7.

18· · · · · · ·MR. MOLINA:· Those are two different types of

19· ·applications in the City code.· And they designate this

20· ·by, when you look at the applications, they put a stamp

21· ·on it, like, with a number.· And a variance has a "VAR"

22· ·and then there's a Bates or a Hansen number.· And a

23· ·general plan amendment is a "GPA" and then there's a

24· ·different Hansen number.· So they're two separate

25· ·applications.



·1· · · · · · ·But you're correct, yeah, they have to --

·2· ·they have to apply for some kind of approval to deviate

·3· ·or to make the development consistent with the general

·4· ·plan.· It's to bring it into conformance as opposed to

·5· ·asking for permission to deviate.

·6· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· So here there would be no

·7· ·necessity to request conformance to the general plan as

·8· ·it relates to the 35 acres at issue based upon the fact

·9· ·that it had been already zoned at R-PD7.

10· · · · · · ·MR. MOLINA:· That's not the position that

11· ·we've taken.· We've stated --

12· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· No, no, no.· I just asked the

13· ·question, that's all.· Is that true or not true?

14· ·That's more of a factual issue.

15· · · · · · ·MR. MOLINA:· And we claim yes.

16· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· And why?· It's already -- it's

17· ·already zoned R-PD7.· Why would they have to do that?

18· · · · · · ·MR. MOLINA:· Because the City designated it

19· ·PR-OS in the general plan, which is zero density.· No

20· ·housing can be development in the general plan.· Which

21· ·is what Peccole asked for; right, and that's the master

22· ·plan be approved zero density on the golf course.· And

23· ·the City said, okay, we're adopting this as our --

24· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· So are you saying there's a

25· ·conflict?· Because I'm trying to figure out if that is



·1· ·the case, why would the 35 acres, and it appears to me

·2· ·there's no issue of fact here, why was it zoned R-PD7?

·3· · · · · · ·MR. MOLINA:· Because the zoning was the

·4· ·entire parcel.· And there's many uses that were allowed

·5· ·in that zoning, the drainage, the golf course.

·6· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· I understand all that.· But I

·7· ·keep coming back to the fact that it was zoned a

·8· ·specific way.· And it appears to me there's not a issue

·9· ·of fact as it relates to how the 35 acres were zoned.

10· · · · · · ·MR. SCHWARTZ:· Your Honor, if I may, I will

11· ·be addressing that in my comments.· You've got zoning

12· ·and master plan.· They're two different things.

13· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· I understand the difference.  I

14· ·do.· I get it.

15· · · · · · ·MR. SCHWARTZ:· So I will be addressing all of

16· ·these questions in my remarks.

17· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· Okay.

18· · · · · · ·MR. SCHWARTZ:· Thank you.

19· · · · · · ·MR. MOLINA:· Let's just go through some maps

20· ·to kind of explain the distinction between the general

21· ·plan and zoning as it relates to --

22· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· We can all agree the general plan

23· ·comes first, and then later comes the zoning; is that

24· ·correct?

25· · · · · · ·MR. MOLINA:· That's our position.· They don't



·1· ·agree with that.

·2· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· You know, I mean, and here's my

·3· ·point.· Regardless of when that occurred, the property

·4· ·was zoned R-PD7.

·5· · · · · · ·MR. MOLINA:· Right.· We're just arguing about

·6· ·what that means.· So QQQQ10 is the southwest sector map

·7· ·that was adopted with the 1992 general plan.· And you

·8· ·have there the golf course in green with the

·9· ·surrounding area.· So let's just kind of establish --

10· ·and this is what I was saying by the documents speak

11· ·for themselves.· And we'll actually put them up and

12· ·compare them.· But I want to show you -- compare the

13· ·1990 master plan with the community profile map the

14· ·City had, you know, put in place before the 1992

15· ·general plan.

16· · · · · · ·You see the golf course is the same shape.

17· ·All of the land uses are the same.· On the left side

18· ·you have the master plan is approved in 1990 by the

19· ·city council.· And on the right you have the community

20· ·profile map, which was part of that general plan that

21· ·was in place before the 1992 general plan.· So the City

22· ·just took what Peccole adopted and they put it into

23· ·their general plan.

24· · · · · · ·And then if you go on, what they just did

25· ·with the existing general plan is then they just took



·1· ·this smaller map and they merged them together and they

·2· ·created a bigger map.· So that's all this is.· They

·3· ·didn't change anything with the 1992 other than that

·4· ·one piece of commercial at Fort Apache and Charleston.

·5· · · · · · ·But the golf course was there.· It was

·6· ·already planned to be part of that community.

·7· · · · · · ·Now, I'm going to show you some other

·8· ·communities in Las Vegas that have basically the same

·9· ·exact characteristics in terms of zoning and general

10· ·plan designations.· And the first one is Canyon Gate,

11· ·which was originally property that Peccole owned as

12· ·well.· And Canyon Gate is zoned R-PD4.· On the left

13· ·side you have the zoning map.· And you see how it's all

14· ·consistent?· The entire development is R-PD4, including

15· ·the golf course.

16· · · · · · ·And on the right side, you have the general

17· ·plan map, which is green on the golf course.· And the

18· ·surrounding is low density residential.

19· · · · · · ·So they're not in conflict because the open

20· ·space golf course was part of the R-PD7 zoning.· The

21· ·general plan just called it out in detail.· So we'll go

22· ·to another example.

23· · · · · · ·Desert Shores.· This is another planned

24· ·community.· And you've got man made lakes that are

25· ·zoned RPD, I think it's 5, R-PD5.· The lakes are zoned



·1· ·R-PD5.· And in the City's general plan they're

·2· ·designated PR-OS.· There's no inconsistency.· The lakes

·3· ·were part of the planned community.· When the City

·4· ·approved the rezoning application for that entire

·5· ·parcel that's encompassed in that blue boundary, the

·6· ·lakes were already part of the development.· They

·7· ·didn't require additional, you know, zoning or

·8· ·entitlements.· And they're designated PR-OS in the

·9· ·general plan.

10· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· When you say entitlements, what

11· ·do you mean by that again?· I just want to make sure

12· ·the record is clear.

13· · · · · · ·MR. MOLINA:· An approved application for

14· ·development.

15· · · · · · ·This is The Lakes at Sahara, which is just

16· ·south of Canyon Gate.· We've got actually phase one and

17· ·phase two of Lakes at Sahara.· There's not so many

18· ·lakes on the western portion, but there is open space.

19· ·And if you look at it on the City's general plan map,

20· ·the lake is designated PR-OS.· It's open space.· And

21· ·there's also, you know, a nice little greenbelts on

22· ·what they call the section 7 side of the property that

23· ·are also designated PR-OS in the City's general plan.

24· ·You go and drive out there, there's nice, little water

25· ·features, big park areas.· Sit down and have a picnic.



·1· ·They're part of the community.· They are all zoned RPD.

·2· · · · · · ·Next one is Los Prados.· This is, I want to

·3· ·say, R-PD6.· It's RPD something.· The entire community,

·4· ·including the golf course, zoned residential planned

·5· ·development.· Golf course is designated parks,

·6· ·recreation, open space in the City's general plan.· No

·7· ·inconsistency.

·8· · · · · · ·Just got one more example to drive the point

·9· ·home.· You got Painted Desert, another master planned

10· ·community.· This one actually really shows, you know,

11· ·the concept of a planned development really well.· You

12· ·can see the area more clearly.

13· · · · · · ·There's all types of density to this.

14· ·There's condos, there's townhouses, there's

15· ·single-family residences, there's apartments.· There's

16· ·all different types of housing.· They're all zoned RPD,

17· ·I want to say, 4.

18· · · · · · ·And in the general plan, the golf course is

19· ·designated PR-OS.· There's no inconsistency.· That's

20· ·just how it was planned.· The City approved these plans

21· ·and the open space that was approved by the City was

22· ·designated PR-OS in the general plan.

23· · · · · · ·So, now, remember that the phase two master

24· ·plan that the City approved in 1990 had 18 holes; okay.

25· ·And the 35 acres is not part of those original



·1· ·18 holes.· There was an additional 9-hole course that

·2· ·was added subsequently.· And if we go to Exhibit J,

·3· ·we'll see some letters about this, Clyde Spitz to

·4· ·Robert Genser, the planning director in 1996.

·5· · · · · · ·And he's asking for conversation that they

·6· ·can expand the golf course in the R-PD7 zone.· And he

·7· ·says, "As you know, the Badlands Golf Course at Peccole

·8· ·Ranch is proposing to develop an additional 9-hole

·9· ·course between the existing golf course and Alta Drive.

10· ·The existing master plan zoning of this area is R-PD7,

11· ·and the golf course would be developed within this

12· ·zoned parcel.· I would like a letter from the City

13· ·stating that a golf course would be compatible within

14· ·the zoning.· I need the letter for the bank."

15· · · · · · ·And we deposed Clyde Spitz, and he confirmed

16· ·that Peccole intended this golf course to be open

17· ·space.

18· · · · · · ·MR. SCHWARTZ:· I have to -- Your Honor.

19· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· Number one, why does what Peccole

20· ·intended matter?· I mean, we're going back -- you know,

21· ·sir, I mean, I think I've been very patient, for the

22· ·record.· I've been letting you go on now for an hour

23· ·and 35 minutes.· I mean, I don't mind saying that.· You

24· ·had about an hour plus yesterday.· And we still haven't

25· ·even gotten to the legal issues in this case.



·1· · · · · · ·MR. MOLINA:· We're getting very close.

·2· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· I mean, we've had this whole

·3· ·historical rendition.· And a lot of my important, I

·4· ·think are important, issues have yet to be addressed as

·5· ·far as this case is concerned.· Remember, at the end of

·6· ·the day, there's three claims the plaintiff is moving

·7· ·for summary judgment on.· And that's what this case is

·8· ·all about.· It's not a historical rendition of the

·9· ·planning by Clark County and the City of Las Vegas over

10· ·the last 20 years.· It's not.· You know, I think I

11· ·asked some pretty good questions.

12· · · · · · ·For example, I remember reading the Sisolak

13· ·case.· And I remember reading the dissent.· And Justice

14· ·Maupin offered the dissent.· He varied from the

15· ·majority because he thought a Penn Central analysis

16· ·should have been conducted.· And the majority rejected

17· ·it; right.· Just as important, too, I don't know if

18· ·this has been discussed, these are things I'm thinking

19· ·about.· So why would I conduct a Penn Central analysis

20· ·right now when, of course, in Sisolak, the Nevada

21· ·majority on the Supreme Court rejected that?· And they

22· ·didn't follow the lead of Justice Maupin.· And I

23· ·understand this.· I really liked Justice Maupin.

24· · · · · · ·But the things I always liked about

25· ·Justice Maupin, he'd give good reasons when he did



·1· ·dissents.· Just as important, too, when he authored

·2· ·opinions, I thought they were so well written, I used

·3· ·to enjoy reading his decisions.· I don't mind saying

·4· ·this.· He's one of my favorite Supreme Court justices

·5· ·over the last 20 years here in the state of Nevada.

·6· ·But my point is this.· The Nevada Supreme Court has

·7· ·ruled.

·8· · · · · · ·Just as important, too, I was wondering about

·9· ·it, and, for example, he discussed the futility

10· ·analysis; right.· He did.· And he goes to exhaustion of

11· ·administrative remedies.· And I thought about that.

12· · · · · · ·For example, futility is not limited to this

13· ·area of the law.· I'm a business court judge.· I deal

14· ·with futility from time to time as it relates to

15· ·shareholder derivative litigation cases, and the demand

16· ·requirement under NRCP 23.1.· And that's what I love

17· ·about the law because a lot of the concepts come into

18· ·play again.· Even when it comes to a simple motion to

19· ·amend the complaint; right.· I have to conduct a

20· ·futility analysis from time to time as to whether or

21· ·not to grant the motion.

22· · · · · · ·So, for example, I was saying to myself, I

23· ·kind of get this, there's this whole big picture issue

24· ·as to what the developer should or shouldn't have done;

25· ·right.· But maybe, based upon the entire way you can



·1· ·look at it, no matter what he intended to do, maybe a

·2· ·futility analysis is appropriate.· I don't know.· But

·3· ·as a trial judge, I will always tell you what I'm

·4· ·thinking.

·5· · · · · · ·MR. MOLINA:· Thank you.

·6· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· I think that's fair so you can

·7· ·address it; right.

·8· · · · · · ·MR. MOLINA:· Thank you.

·9· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· And that's my point.· And I

10· ·think, Kim, you need a break.

11· · · · · · ·Madam reporter, you need a break?

12· · · · · · ·THE COURT REPORTER:· Sure.

13· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· Okay.· We'll give you 15 right

14· ·now.· We'll break and we'll continue on.

15· · · · · · ·(Whereupon, a recess was taken.)

16· · · · · · ·THE MARSHAL:· Department 16 come to order.

17· ·Back on the record.

18· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· All right.· We may continue on.

19· ·Everybody may be seated.

20· · · · · · ·MR. MOLINA:· Thank you, Your Honor.· I'm

21· ·going to spend about 10 to 15 more minutes total before

22· ·I give the floor to Mr. Schwartz.

23· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· Okay.

24· · · · · · ·MR. MOLINA:· Just got a few more exhibits to

25· ·run through.· I want to point out that Exhibit L is the



·1· ·Ordinance 5250.· This is adopting the 2020 master plan.

·2· ·The 2020 master plan is what was in effect when the

·3· ·developer was applying for development approvals.

·4· · · · · · ·And one thing to note is that the 2020 master

·5· ·plan did not have a new land use element so the 1992

·6· ·master plan, that first master plan where you see the

·7· ·golf course designated in green, that one still applies

·8· ·as of 2000.

·9· · · · · · ·Exhibit N is Ordinance 5787.· This is adopted

10· ·in 2005.· And this adopts a new land use element.· And

11· ·this replaces of the land use element from 1992.· The

12· ·reason why this is relevant is because there's been an

13· ·argument that the PR-OS designation on the Badlands is

14· ·somehow invalid even though we walked through all the

15· ·planning commission hearings and all of the, you know,

16· ·city council meetings, the citizen advisory committee

17· ·meetings, I showed you all of that showing that the

18· ·1992 general plan was valid.· But if there is any real

19· ·question about the designation of the PR-OS on the

20· ·35-acre property at issue, this resolves all that.

21· · · · · · ·This is 2005, Ordinance 5787.· And if you go

22· ·to page 14 of that exhibit, it explains the PR-OS

23· ·designation.· It says, parks, recreation, open space.

24· ·Allows large public parks and recreation areas, such as

25· ·public and private golf courses.· Only thing that



·1· ·changes it goes from being just a P designation to

·2· ·being a PR-OS.· That's the only thing that they change.

·3· · · · · · ·And then page 15 of Exhibit N is the

·4· ·southwest sector map.· And let's pull that up.· That's

·5· ·fine because it gets adopted again.· Let's go to the

·6· ·next ordinance.

·7· · · · · · ·Exhibit O is Ordinance 6056.· And this was

·8· ·adopted in 2009.· And what this did is, you may recall,

·9· ·rural neighborhood preservation is required in Nevada

10· ·or was required for some point in time under NRS.· So

11· ·the City amended its land use element to include rural

12· ·preservation neighborhoods, but they left everything

13· ·else in the general plan the same.

14· · · · · · ·And if we go to Exhibit page 11 of Exhibit O.

15· ·There we go.· You'll see that Peccole Ranch or

16· ·Queensridge, the golf course, including all 27 holes.

17· ·We'll zoom in on the middle there.· Zoom in even more.

18· ·There we go.

19· · · · · · ·That's all 27 holes.· That includes the

20· ·35-acre property.· It's PR-OS.· Doesn't allow housing.

21· ·It's the law.

22· · · · · · ·Exhibit P is the 2011 update to the land use

23· ·element.· It's page 17 of Exhibit 7, same map.· No

24· ·changes to the Badlands.· No change to the 35-acre

25· ·property.· It's still designated PR-OS.



·1· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· Why would they zone it R-PD7?

·2· · · · · · ·MR. MOLINA:· Because the zoning included open

·3· ·space use.· Open space was a permissible use in R-PD7

·4· ·zoning.

·5· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· I understand that.· So

·6· ·residential construction of homes was a permissible use

·7· ·too; right?

·8· · · · · · ·MR. MOLINA:· Right.· But -- and this is a

·9· ·key, you know, fundamental part of our defense here, is

10· ·that the City has discretion to change the general

11· ·plan.· And if you want to change the general plan, you

12· ·can.· You just have to apply.· And that's what that

13· ·1992 ordinance says, is that -- or the 1992 master plan

14· ·said, is that every application after that master plan

15· ·has to be in conformance with the master plan.

16· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· I want to understand this.  I

17· ·thought about this.· I'm glad you're talking about

18· ·this.· I don't know.· I never practiced in real

19· ·property law or anything like that.· And so when a

20· ·specific piece of property is already zoned from a

21· ·procedural perspective, and someone comes in for an

22· ·application or for permits and the like specifically

23· ·related to the property, typically, what would the City

24· ·do?· Would they check and confirm what the zoning is as

25· ·part of the process?· Or did they always go back and



·1· ·say, look, let's see if this is conflicting with the

·2· ·master plan?· Because that's what I want to know.

·3· · · · · · ·MR. MOLINA:· So I'll walk you through this

·4· ·because, as you probably picked up on, I'm not a

·5· ·litigator.

·6· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· That's okay, sir.· You're doing a

·7· ·good job.

·8· · · · · · ·MR. MOLINA:· I want to explain how I would

·9· ·approach this.· Because I have handled these

10· ·applications before, and I can give you a detailed

11· ·overview of what that looks like.

12· · · · · · ·So a client comes to me and they say, I want

13· ·to build a condominium on this property.

14· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· I didn't ask you when a client

15· ·comes to you.· My question is this.· What happens with

16· ·the process vis-a-vis City building department?

17· · · · · · ·MR. SCHWARTZ:· Your Honor, it has to comply

18· ·with both.

19· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· I mean, I understand we're making

20· ·that statement, but what do they do?· Because it seems

21· ·to me that, you know, if I wanted to -- example.  I

22· ·bought a lot and it's in MacDonald Highlands, and

23· ·that's already zoned.· And I go in and I say, look, I

24· ·want to put a single-story residential 2500 square foot

25· ·home.· I would anticipate the City of Henderson would



·1· ·look at that and say, okay, this is in conformance with

·2· ·the zoning; right.

·3· · · · · · ·MR. MOLINA:· Yeah, they would look at all of

·4· ·that.· They would look at the zoning and the general

·5· ·plan.· And MacDonald Highland and the City of Henderson

·6· ·is a little bit different in how they handle things.

·7· · · · · · ·In the City of Las Vegas, if you want to have

·8· ·a new development, you would at a minimum have to have

·9· ·a site development review application that's done.· For

10· ·a single house, you know, it would be a little bit

11· ·different.· But we're not talking about a single house.

12· ·We're talking about a subdivision.· So you've got to

13· ·have at least a site plan for the subdivision.· And you

14· ·would submit that to --

15· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· And I want to make sure I

16· ·understand the processes.· So if you wanted to have a

17· ·site plan for the subdivision, in this case, the

18· ·subdivision, would that be the 35 acres?

19· · · · · · ·MR. MOLINA:· It's up to the developer, how

20· ·they want to define subdivision.

21· · · · · · ·So this would get submitted to the planning

22· ·department.· As a developer submitting it, they would

23· ·submit what they think is the right application.· And

24· ·then there would be a conference with the planning

25· ·department, planning staff.· And they would, basically,



·1· ·you know, comment on whether or not that application

·2· ·needed other applications, other requests.

·3· · · · · · ·So, for example, if I took plans down to the

·4· ·City that showed a neighborhood with only 10 feet of

·5· ·streets, the City would say, well, you need a waiver in

·6· ·order to get approval to do only 10-foot-wide streets.

·7· ·And that's actually what happened in the 35-acre case,

·8· ·not 10 feet wide, but reduced-sized streets, no

·9· ·sidewalk on one side, you've got to have a waiver

10· ·application.

11· · · · · · ·So there's multiple applications that you

12· ·would file with one development request for each

13· ·project.· And the City would assign a project number

14· ·for all those applications.· Each of those applications

15· ·would have a separate designation.· And, I mean, I can

16· ·show you what these actually look like.

17· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· And in following that, what did

18· ·the City do in this case initially from the building

19· ·department's perspective?

20· · · · · · ·MR. MOLINA:· So can I --

21· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· You can.· Absolutely, sir.· What

22· ·did the City do?· That's what I want to know.· What did

23· ·the City do prior to the involvement of the

24· ·city council?· What did the City do?

25· · · · · · ·MR. MOLINA:· So there's only 10 things in



·1· ·here so we can cycle through this pretty quickly.· When

·2· ·he acquired the property, it was -- you know, if you

·3· ·look at tab 1, this is the parcels that were -- that

·4· ·existed when he acquired the property, when the

·5· ·developer acquired the property.

·6· · · · · · ·Tab 2 explains, sort of, the mapping history

·7· ·here.· There was a whole lawsuit over the mapping that

·8· ·was done here, but that was, sort of, an initial thing

·9· ·that they did when they -- when they got the property

10· ·is they subdivided it.

11· · · · · · ·This is a declaration of Frank Pankratz.

12· ·That's one of the developer's principals.· And he

13· ·explains that on, page 2 in paragraph 5, he says, "I

14· ·can further attest that the purpose of the parcel map

15· ·was to carve out an approximately 70-acre parcel that

16· ·was required by our bank to be pledged as collateral

17· ·for refinancing."

18· · · · · · ·So that's one, sort of, step in this

19· ·development process is subdividing the property into

20· ·the parcels that would then be the subject of different

21· ·applications that were submitted to the City.

22· · · · · · ·And I won't go through the rest of this,

23· ·but -- actually, on page 4 of that affidavit, at

24· ·paragraph 15, he explains what the 17-acre applications

25· ·were.· And this was the first set of applications that



·1· ·the developer filed with the City was for the

·2· ·17.49-acre parcel over here.· And the City approved 435

·3· ·units over there.

·4· · · · · · ·And he explains what the applications are.

·5· ·He says, there was a GPA 62387, a general plan

·6· ·amendment.· They applied to amend the PR-OS designation

·7· ·from -- to a PR-OS -- to a general plan designation

·8· ·that allowed housing.

·9· · · · · · ·They applied for a rezoning application that

10· ·was ZON 62392.· And that was to change the zoning from

11· ·R-PD7 to, I believe it was initially R4, and then they

12· ·reduced the density to R3.· Originally, they had

13· ·applied for 720 units, and then they reduced that

14· ·application down to 435, and the City approved it.

15· · · · · · ·So there's three applications on that.· There

16· ·was the general plan amendment, the zone, the rezoning

17· ·application, and the SDR, the site development review

18· ·application.

19· · · · · · ·And I think I have those in here if you go to

20· ·tab 6, which is our Exhibit Z.

21· · · · · · ·And when you submit any of these

22· ·applications, there's a checklist of things that you

23· ·submit.· And one of those things is a justification

24· ·letter.· And it kind of harkens back to that

25· ·requirement that they enacted in 1989 where they said,



·1· ·you've got to submit a justification.

·2· · · · · · ·So this is kind of the practice here, is that

·3· ·you submit a justification letter explaining the nature

·4· ·of the request.· And this explains that they want

·5· ·approval for 720 units on the 17-acre property.· And

·6· ·then if you flip to page, I think, the fourth or fifth

·7· ·page of that exhibit, then you have the actual

·8· ·applications that get submitted.

·9· · · · · · ·And the first one there is a general plan.

10· ·And the property owner is 70 Acres, LLC.· When they

11· ·subdivided that 70 acres off, they put it all under one

12· ·entity.· And as Frank Pankratz explained in the

13· ·affidavit, they did that for financing purposes.· This

14· ·is GPA 62387.

15· · · · · · ·Then if you flip to the page after the

16· ·application, there's the map.· Every time that these

17· ·applications get put up in a public meeting, the City

18· ·creates a little map, and that gets part of the agenda.

19· ·That's what this is, this map right here.· It shows you

20· ·the area that's subject to the designation.

21· · · · · · ·And, actually, this map shows it's PR-OS;

22· ·right.· They changed it from PR-OS -- the initial

23· ·application was to high, high density residential.

24· · · · · · ·And then if you flip the page again, you get

25· ·the zoning application.· It's the same form, just



·1· ·slightly -- you just have to submit a separate

·2· ·application.· That's what the City requires.

·3· · · · · · ·Then there's a zoning map.· If you flip the

·4· ·page again at 452, the zoning map.· I don't know if

·5· ·you're looking at the exhibits.

·6· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· I have it right here.

·7· · · · · · ·MR. MOLINA:· Okay.· There's three

·8· ·applications that get filed on that first piece.· And

·9· ·then, you know, the thing about this is that's sort of

10· ·interesting if you want to understand how the -- how

11· ·the homeowners kind of got sideways with the developer,

12· ·I put it in tab 4.· This was a -- this is the agenda

13· ·for general plan amendment 60759.· And what this was is

14· ·a staff-initiated amendment.· And staff does this from

15· ·time to time where they will, you know, apply

16· ·themselves for a change to the general plan to change

17· ·the text.· And that's what this did, is that it was a

18· ·proposed change to the text of the land use designation

19· ·table that would have given the City discretion to

20· ·increase density in certain instances.

21· · · · · · ·And in tab 5, we've got the actual transcript

22· ·of this.· And the thing about this is that this was on

23· ·September 8th, 2015, so that was after --

24· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· And, for the record, I want to

25· ·make sure I'm clear on this.· Like, for example, when



·1· ·you're looking at tab 4, we're talking about a agenda

·2· ·summary page.· And this is from the planning

·3· ·commission; is that correct?

·4· · · · · · ·MR. MOLINA:· Correct.· Correct.· And

·5· ·generally all matters that affect planning or

·6· ·development go to the planning commission first.

·7· ·There's a few things that go to the city council

·8· ·directly.· But to amend the general plan, you obviously

·9· ·have to go to planning commission first.

10· · · · · · ·And the thing about this is that when the

11· ·City publishes its agenda for these meetings, they

12· ·usually publish them the week before.· And the agenda

13· ·here got published on a Thursday before Labor Day.· So

14· ·there was really no time for the public to contact the

15· ·City to ask questions about this because the City is

16· ·closed on Fridays.· So it was published on Thursday.

17· ·The meeting is on Tuesday, following Labor Day.· This

18· ·kind of got jammed through without a lot of notice.

19· · · · · · ·And, honestly, this is really the source of

20· ·the distrust between the homeowners and the developer,

21· ·is the fact that, you know, there's a bunch of

22· ·people -- if you go to tab 5, this is the transcript of

23· ·that meeting.· And all of this is on -- I thought about

24· ·just putting the video up, but I don't think it's going

25· ·to work out with the technical stuff that we have here.



·1· · · · · · ·But you can see the appearance list of people

·2· ·that are there.· You've got Doug Rankin, Frank Schreck,

·3· ·Clyde Turner, Jack Binion, Greg Borgel,

·4· ·Jennifer Lazovich.· Those are attorneys and land use

·5· ·planners for the developer.

·6· · · · · · ·And, you know, the first person who gets up

·7· ·and talks is Frank Schreck on page 4.· And he says,

·8· ·"It's always been my understanding in this community

·9· ·that the Las Vegas 2020 master plan provides homeowners

10· ·with their greatest security in terms of their values

11· ·in their homes against inappropriate zoning.· The

12· ·proposed amendment to the master plan will possibly

13· ·cause a significant and very possibly an adverse impact

14· ·on planned community development throughout Las Vegas,

15· ·not just Queensridge, by eliminating the specific

16· ·density limitation that protects the communities over

17· ·400 -- or over 40 acres."

18· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· I mean, that might sound good, I

19· ·mean, but when it comes to golf courses, that's a

20· ·national problem right now.

21· · · · · · ·MR. MOLINA:· Well --

22· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· And I understand, I really do.  I

23· ·understand that.· That's a national problem.· Because,

24· ·let's face it, there's been a change in demographics;

25· ·right.· There has.· Baby Boomers love golf.



·1· ·Millennials, not quite as much.· Gen-Xers, not as much;

·2· ·right.

·3· · · · · · ·For example -- this is kind of how I see

·4· ·this, I really do.· Here we have a scenario where the,

·5· ·quote, master planned community with a golf course is

·6· ·not really a viable economic model anymore.· I mean,

·7· ·golf courses are closing down.

·8· · · · · · ·And at the end of the day, notwithstanding

·9· ·any argument that's made by real property owners,

10· ·homeowners, I get that, I do.· But at some point, in

11· ·the general sense, city government has to make tough

12· ·decisions; right.

13· · · · · · ·MR. MOLINA:· Yeah.

14· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· They just do.· And my point is

15· ·this.· You don't just kick the ball -- kick the can

16· ·down the road and hope that the trial judge makes the

17· ·decision; right.· These are decisions that should be

18· ·made by the city council.· There's no question about

19· ·that.

20· · · · · · ·I mean, as a trial judge, I don't mind saying

21· ·this, I've made some really tough decisions, I have.

22· ·And I realize it's going to upset somebody.· But at the

23· ·end of the day, I have to do what I think is right

24· ·under the law.· That's all you can do.

25· · · · · · ·I mean, I realize there's a political aspect,



·1· ·and being a county commissioner or city council member

·2· ·and they've got to deal with that.· But sometimes

·3· ·you've got to make decisions, you just do, and they're

·4· ·not popular.· And sometimes you'll make a decision and

·5· ·you might not be there in four years, but you've got to

·6· ·make decisions.

·7· · · · · · ·But go ahead, sir.· I'm following you.

·8· ·You're helping me out.

·9· · · · · · ·MR. MOLINA:· So, I guess, what I'm just

10· ·trying to explain here is that the homeowners in

11· ·Queensridge felt like there was a conspiracy between

12· ·the developer and the City to jam this through because

13· ·staff sponsored the amendment.· And then they got up

14· ·there and they started complaining about it.· And then

15· ·on page 10 of this transcript, you have the developer's

16· ·attorney, and also his expert land use planner,

17· ·Greg Borgel, that get up and stand.· And she says, on

18· ·line 263, the reason why that is important --

19· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· What page are you on, sir?

20· · · · · · ·MR. MOLINA:· I'm on page 10 of tab 5.

21· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· I'm following you.· I just want

22· ·to make sure.· Okay.

23· · · · · · ·MR. MOLINA:· It starts on line 262.

24· ·Jennifer Lazovich says, "We are representing the

25· ·developer that has, in fact, timed applications to



·1· ·follow behind this application moving forward.· The

·2· ·reason why that is important is because you've heard

·3· ·them slightly reference a project that deals with

·4· ·Queensridge, that deals with Badlands.· They have been

·5· ·in initial neighborhood meetings talking about a

·6· ·proposed project which will be before the planning

·7· ·commission and then, of course, move on to the

·8· ·city council."

·9· · · · · · ·So, you know, all these homeowners from

10· ·Queensridge show up to this public hearing and they

11· ·start complaining about this amendment that got put on

12· ·the agenda without really any notice to the public.

13· ·And then, all of a sudden, the developer's attorneys

14· ·stand up and say, hey, we need you to approve this

15· ·because we've got applications in the pipeline that are

16· ·dependent on this.· So that's all I wanted to point out

17· ·about that.

18· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· And what happens at the meeting?

19· · · · · · ·MR. MOLINA:· So, actually, the planning

20· ·commissioners -- I mean, we have the transcript in here

21· ·so I'm not going to paraphrase it.· But, you know, the

22· ·planning commissioners are looking at this kind of

23· ·sceptically.· And let's go to page 17.· And at the

24· ·bottom, Commissioner Trowbridge, and he's saying, "I'm

25· ·going to take a different swat at this.· We're dealing



·1· ·with a master plan land use designation change.· And I

·2· ·think that because the city and the county, the cities,

·3· ·in plural, this is an incredibly important decision

·4· ·that we're making.· I say that because it ranges all

·5· ·the way from the pieces of property that were sold and

·6· ·with the understanding that they would be golf course

·7· ·lots and people pay a lot premium.· Are they going to

·8· ·be reimbursed if their property value goes down?"

·9· · · · · · ·You know, and so there's mixed opinions.

10· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· I mean, I get the concern.  I

11· ·don't mind saying that.· I do.· But what happens when

12· ·that golf course model is no longer viable?

13· · · · · · ·MR. MOLINA:· I think that we agree that it

14· ·would be very difficult to run a golf course profitably

15· ·here, but here's the solution.· You just have to follow

16· ·the right procedures to change the land use.

17· · · · · · ·MR. SCHWARTZ:· Your Honor, I can address the

18· ·legal issues.

19· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· I know.· He's doing a -- he's

20· ·pointing out what happened factually.· And I'm

21· ·following up.· And I have no problem with his response.

22· · · · · · ·MR. MOLINA:· And, you know, if you go to

23· ·page 20 of that transcript, you've got Peter

24· ·Lowenstein.· He kind of talks about that process of how

25· ·you do it.· And he says to the chairman of the planning



·1· ·commission, "When the RPD was an existing zoning

·2· ·district."· In context, the RPD zoning district was

·3· ·eliminated from the code in 2011.

·4· · · · · · ·But he says, "When the RPD was an existing

·5· ·zoning district, it would be affected by the zoning

·6· ·ordinance currently.· It had the ability to develop

·7· ·your own development standards as part of the

·8· ·application process."

·9· · · · · · ·I think I was mentioning that before.· After

10· ·you get the rezoning approval, then you have to get a

11· ·plot plan approval on the individual parcels.· And

12· ·that's what he's talking about, is that process of

13· ·doing the plot plan application is how the development

14· ·standards were created.

15· · · · · · ·I'm actually going to touch on that a little

16· ·bit because I want to address your questions from

17· ·yesterday about the access of fencing.· But he's

18· ·explaining that.

19· · · · · · ·And so, ultimately, this went nowhere.· The

20· ·planning commissioners, I think -- let's go to the end

21· ·of that transcript.· They held it in abeyance for

22· ·60 days.· So then there was subsequent -- I think,

23· ·actually, the planning staff just took it off, out of

24· ·the cycle.· So there may not have been any subsequent

25· ·hearings on this, but I'm not a hundred percent sure



·1· ·about that.

·2· · · · · · ·So the 17-acre property was submitted on

·3· ·first.· And if you go to tab 3 of this binder, it will

·4· ·show you why.· They've already got a deal to sell that

·5· ·property for $25 million.· And the City approved that

·6· ·development.· And, ultimately, this deal fell through

·7· ·because of the litigation with the homeowners.· And,

·8· ·you know, that's unfortunate, but there was a deal

·9· ·lined up with The Calida Group who is a pretty good

10· ·developer in town.· They have all kinds of really nice

11· ·apartments.· And they participated in the design of

12· ·this.

13· · · · · · ·But that was part of the reason why they

14· ·wanted to get that 17-acre piece approved first.· They

15· ·had a deal lined up to do this condo development.· But

16· ·that entitlement still exists.· And that's pretty

17· ·critical in this case because, you know, the homeowners

18· ·challenged this approval of the 17-acre property.

19· ·Judge Crockett said it was void because there was no

20· ·major modification.· That was the whole legal issue

21· ·that went up to the Nevada Supreme Court.

22· · · · · · ·The City said, well, this doesn't actually

23· ·technically have the zoning that's required for --

24· ·that, you know, requires major modification.· It's an

25· ·RPD zoning.· And the code, at least, doesn't say you



·1· ·need a major modification.

·2· · · · · · ·And so the Nevada Supreme Court reversed

·3· ·Judge Crockett, and reinstated the approvals of the

·4· ·17-acre property.· And, you know, after the Supreme

·5· ·Court issued remittitur, the City sent the developer a

·6· ·letter stating that, you can come in and apply for

·7· ·permits.· You know, you've got an existing entitlement,

·8· ·and we'll extend it for two years from the date of

·9· ·remittitur.

10· · · · · · ·And that was late 2020.· The reversal of

11· ·Crockett's order was March, I want to say, 5th, 2020.

12· ·The City waited until remittitur issued, and then sent

13· ·them a letter and said, we'll extend your approval for

14· ·two years after this.

15· · · · · · ·And that approval, the two-year extension,

16· ·really actually only applies to the site development

17· ·review application.· The zoning has been changed on

18· ·that 17-acre parcel.· I skipped over some of this other

19· ·stuff about how resolution of intent zoning worked.

20· ·But they got rid of that, you know, process where

21· ·you're just tentatively zoning things.· That 17-acre

22· ·property is currently zoned R3.· And the general plan

23· ·has permanently changed.· I want to say it's "M" for

24· ·medium.

25· · · · · · ·So they've got an entitlement, what I would



·1· ·call an entitlement.· But they've got the general plan

·2· ·is consistent with the zoning.· And then they've got a

·3· ·site development review application approved, which

·4· ·spells out literally what they can do with the

·5· ·property, 425 units, the actual layout of what that

·6· ·looks like.· And so, you know, they've got an approval.

·7· · · · · · ·And so it's not futile to, you know, suggest

·8· ·that they should come back and continue to apply for

·9· ·other developments.· But things got a little bit

10· ·problematic because of Crockett's order.· And then

11· ·there was this development agreement.

12· · · · · · ·I'll just go to the last tab in this binder,

13· ·which is the general plan amendment application, the

14· ·agenda for the general plan amendment application that

15· ·included the 35-acre property.· And I want to go to

16· ·Bates No. 675, which is the fourth page of that

17· ·exhibit.· And you'll see on that page 675 --

18· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· Which tab is that again, sir?

19· · · · · · ·MR. MOLINA:· Tab 10.

20· · · · · · ·So you see that area right there is

21· ·approximately 166 acres.· Now, they filed individual

22· ·development applications for the 35-acre property, but

23· ·this GPA was intended to apply to this entire area, and

24· ·they submitted it before those other applications for

25· ·the rest of that property came through.



·1· · · · · · ·And it's changing the PR-OS.· In fairness to

·2· ·the developer, you know, they did not want to submit

·3· ·this application.· They protested submitting this.

·4· ·They didn't feel like they needed to submit a general

·5· ·plan amendment application.

·6· · · · · · ·The City code pretty clearly says that they

·7· ·do.· You know, when the initial applications came in,

·8· ·the City planning department did what they basically

·9· ·always do, and required a general plan amendment.

10· ·Later on they kind of got convinced that they didn't

11· ·need a general plan amendment.· You know, there's --

12· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· When you say, they got convinced,

13· ·who are you talking about?

14· · · · · · ·MR. MOLINA:· So if you look at -- let's see.

15· ·So I don't have it in this binder here, but if you look

16· ·at the first page of that exhibit, tab 10, Exhibit II,

17· ·and you look, kind of, closely at the first paragraph

18· ·under the subject line, it explains what the request

19· ·is.· And then it says, "Staff has no recommendation.

20· ·Planning commission failed to obtain a super majority

21· ·vote, which is tantamount to denial."

22· · · · · · ·So, in this instance, staff didn't make a

23· ·recommendation on whether to approve this general plan

24· ·amendment because, you know, technically, you need to

25· ·have the planning commission approving changes to the



·1· ·general plan.

·2· · · · · · ·So there was this big debate about whether

·3· ·you need to actually apply for a general plan amendment

·4· ·when you want to go in and apply for site development

·5· ·that doesn't actually change the zoning.· Because on

·6· ·the 35-acre property, they -- you know, they kind of

·7· ·shifted gears and decided that they were just going to

·8· ·apply for, you know, applications that were based on

·9· ·the R-PD7 zoning.· And so they submitted a site

10· ·development review application, a tentative map

11· ·application, and a general plan amendment application.

12· ·And this is that general plan amendment application

13· ·that extended to a much broader area.

14· · · · · · ·And at the same time, you know, they are

15· ·negotiating this development agreement.· And if you

16· ·turn to the last page of this exhibit, last page of the

17· ·binder, this is the June 21, 2017, this is an excerpt

18· ·of the transcript from the June 21, 2017 city council

19· ·meeting where they denied the applications for the

20· ·35-acre property.· And Brad Jerbic says, you know, "The

21· ·61 units in this application is a very limited corner.

22· ·It's much denser than what would be.· In fact, it's as

23· ·dense as what would be on the entire golf course

24· ·virtually if we had a development agreement.· So it is

25· ·inconsistent, absolutely inconsistent, with that



·1· ·development agreement that's still not finished.

·2· · · · · · ·"And if that development agreement does get

·3· ·finished and it gets up before the council, one of the

·4· ·things that they will have to do, and they're telling

·5· ·you now, they will have to agree is give up the 61 if

·6· ·they win today; is that right?"

·7· · · · · · ·So the problem that the city council was

·8· ·confronted with is that they've got this development

·9· ·agreement that they've been negotiating with the

10· ·developer for a long time.· And, you know, it's got a

11· ·lower density than what he's proposing with these

12· ·applications.· And if they approve these applications,

13· ·then they're, essentially, you know, they're changing

14· ·the negotiation of the development agreement.

15· · · · · · ·And so if you go down to that last paragraph,

16· ·and Brad Jerbic says, "Well, we believe, in my

17· ·negotiations with the neighbors that have participated

18· ·in negotiations, they have told me they requested

19· ·2-acre parcels, which would be one unit per two acres.

20· ·And that was a concession that we won during that

21· ·negotiation.· So the entire golf course, the 183 acres

22· ·except for one small piece" --

23· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· Tell me this.· Why would the

24· ·city council or Mr. Jerbic negotiate with the

25· ·neighbors?



·1· · · · · · ·MR. MOLINA:· So, you know, this is a pretty

·2· ·long, drawn-out conflict where he kind of got involved

·3· ·personally.

·4· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· I mean, I do understand that, but

·5· ·I'm trying to figure out why they would go outside the

·6· ·processes.· Because this is not typical, is it?

·7· · · · · · ·MR. MOLINA:· I can't say that.· I don't know.

·8· ·But I have --

·9· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· But you see what I mean?· It's

10· ·kind like, you know, you go in front of the county

11· ·planning department.· Staff has a recommendation.· They

12· ·do what they do, send it off maybe to the city council

13· ·or reject it.· But my question is this.· Why would

14· ·Mr. Jerbic be in negotiations with neighbors of the

15· ·adjoining properties?· That doesn't seem normal to me,

16· ·you know.· Because I would think if they had complaints

17· ·or any problems like that, they would come to the

18· ·meeting and lodge it publicly.

19· · · · · · ·MR. MOLINA:· And they did.

20· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· I know they did.· I'm not

21· ·questioning that.· I'm talking about the negotiation

22· ·part.

23· · · · · · ·MR. MOLINA:· So at this point in time, when

24· ·this is in front of the council, there's litigation

25· ·going on.· And it's wildfire.· And so, you know,



·1· ·there's talks --

·2· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· The reason why I say that, I

·3· ·mean, hypothetically, if we had neighbors show up today

·4· ·and want to voice their opinions, I would say, well,

·5· ·you can listen, and that's about it; right.· And that's

·6· ·my whole point because we have processes in place.

·7· · · · · · ·MR. MOLINA:· Well, this is a public process,

·8· ·and you have to give somebody at least --

·9· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· I'm not saying you don't have to.

10· ·I'm just wondering why it didn't happen under the

11· ·auspices of a city planning commission meeting and/or a

12· ·city council meeting.· No question you have a public

13· ·comment --

14· · · · · · ·MR. MOLINA:· If I remember correctly, I

15· ·believe the city council asked the developer to meet

16· ·with the homeowners to address their concerns.· And,

17· ·you're right, it is a little rare.· But this is also a

18· ·unique situation where we're dealing with a golf course

19· ·inside a master planned community.· And there's

20· ·litigation that's going on.· It got very complicated.

21· ·And it's, you know, there was a hope, I think, amongst

22· ·certain city council members, at least, that there

23· ·would be some kind of global resolution through this

24· ·development agreement.

25· · · · · · ·But there's a lot of different people that



·1· ·are involved in all of this.· And so, anyways, so

·2· ·that's -- that's the background there.· That,

·3· ·ultimately, is why they denied those 35-acre

·4· ·applications because there was a development agreement

·5· ·in the pipeline that they thought was going to produce

·6· ·a better development than what those applications were

·7· ·going to provide.

·8· · · · · · ·And then after those were denied, he never

·9· ·applied again for another type of development approval

10· ·on that.· So that is, essentially, the last thing I'm

11· ·going to say about that.· And I do want to just very

12· ·quickly address your questions yesterday about the

13· ·access and fencing.

14· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· Yes, sir.

15· · · · · · ·MR. MOLINA:· And what this is, this is part

16· ·of our exhibits to our opposition and our countermotion

17· ·for summary judgment.· And this is the Exhibit DDDD.

18· ·And it's the declaration of Peter Lowenstein.· And

19· ·there are sub-Exhibits DDDD1 through 10.· And I think

20· ·the easiest way to do this, actually, because the

21· ·declaration --

22· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· I do have it right here.· Tell

23· ·me --

24· · · · · · ·MR. MOLINA:· I'll read the declaration and

25· ·then it will go through these exhibits.· But at



·1· ·paragraph 28 of the declaration, Mr. Lowenstein

·2· ·explains that, "In order for a developer to build

·3· ·access or fencing on their property, either, A, the

·4· ·City must approve a site development plan review, SDR

·5· ·application for the development, and that must address

·6· ·access or fencing.· Or, B, the developer must apply for

·7· ·an SDR specifically to build access and/or fencing."

·8· · · · · · ·So either you've got a site development plan

·9· ·that applies to the entire project, and within that

10· ·project there's standards for fencing or access, then

11· ·you don't need to file a separate application for

12· ·access or fencing.

13· · · · · · ·And, you know, in this case, what we're

14· ·showing on tab 2, that little map there, is the yellow

15· ·highlighted areas show the existing access to the

16· ·Badlands property.· And the green highlighted areas

17· ·show the proposed access points.· And then if you look

18· ·down at, sort of, the entrance to Queensridge off

19· ·Charleston Boulevard, it's highlighted blue.· Those are

20· ·the ponds that the developer wanted to add a fencing

21· ·for.

22· · · · · · ·So Mr. Lowenstein explains the process for,

23· ·you know, getting a building permit for access and

24· ·fencing.· He explains both processes slightly

25· ·different, but the basic idea here is that either



·1· ·you've got a site development plan approval that

·2· ·already addresses it or you have to come in, you have

·3· ·to apply for -- you have to specifically apply for site

·4· ·development plan review for the access for the fencing.

·5· · · · · · ·And in this case, because this was part of an

·6· ·old subdivision that got approved in 1990, there's no

·7· ·site development review plan that, at least for these

·8· ·proposed access points on Hualapai, there's no existing

·9· ·site development that addresses the access to those

10· ·points so you have to go into the City and you have to

11· ·apply for a site development review.

12· · · · · · ·Now, if you're still looking at the diagram

13· ·on tab 2, the 17-acre property, that's on the far right

14· ·of the diagram, the third proposed access point.· There

15· ·was an entitlement for that development, and it did

16· ·address access; however, as these exhibits basically

17· ·explain, you had to do a traffic study before they were

18· ·going to let you put that in there.

19· · · · · · ·So there's a process for all of this.· But

20· ·getting back to Mr. Lowenstein's declaration.· He

21· ·explains that there is a minor review application.

22· ·This gets a little technical, but, you know, since you

23· ·asked, we'll kind of walk through it.· There's a minor

24· ·review process that can be administratively approved by

25· ·the director of planning.· Administrative approval



·1· ·means no public hearing.

·2· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· Well, you know, to be candid with

·3· ·you, I'm glad you're going through this because I was

·4· ·saying to myself, we're not talking about a traditional

·5· ·process where you're seeking to obtain building

·6· ·permits.· We're talking about access so you can put

·7· ·fencing up to make the property owners' property safer.

·8· ·That's all.

·9· · · · · · ·And I was just wondering, you know -- he has

10· ·this hyper-technical thing here, but the bottom line is

11· ·they just want to put some fencing up so kids and young

12· ·people don't fall into the lake and drown.· That's kind

13· ·of what it's all about.· That's how I see it.

14· · · · · · ·Now you're telling me they do have an

15· ·administrative process that would potentially apply to

16· ·that.· So I'm looking at Lowenstein.· Is it Lowenstein?

17· · · · · · ·MR. MOLINA:· Peter Lowenstein.

18· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· I mean, the real issue is the

19· ·administrative process.

20· · · · · · ·MR. MOLINA:· Right.· Right.· Well, okay.· So

21· ·you can have an administrative review without a public

22· ·hearing or there's -- and he explains this.· And I

23· ·don't want to paraphrase this.· But he says, "The

24· ·director of planning has the discretion to determine

25· ·whether an SDR, site development review, to build



·1· ·access and fencing requires a major or minor review."

·2· · · · · · ·So there's two processes depending on the

·3· ·nature of the request and potential impacts on the

·4· ·surrounding areas.

·5· · · · · · ·So a site development plan requires a minor

·6· ·review maybe administratively approved by the director

·7· ·of planning.· The minor review process is started by

·8· ·submitting a pre-application conference request or

·9· ·ability permit application.· And a minor site

10· ·development plans for certain construction types,

11· ·including onsite walls and fences, are to be submitted

12· ·and reviewed as part of the building permit

13· ·application.

14· · · · · · ·So what the developer explained yesterday is

15· ·that this is, you know, a, sort of, over-the-counter

16· ·type approval.· And you should just be able to walk

17· ·into the building department, submit your plans, get a

18· ·building permit for this.· And what Mr. Lowenstein is

19· ·explaining is that that's partially true, but you

20· ·actually have to -- you know, they have to look at the

21· ·nature of the request.· It's just not that simple.

22· · · · · · ·If you're putting an access into a major --

23· ·if I wanted to build a ramp up to the freeway,

24· ·obviously, that's not going to work.· You've got to go

25· ·through the processes, and there's got to be engineers



·1· ·that look at this kind of stuff.

·2· · · · · · ·So the planning director has, you know,

·3· ·discretion to require a major review.· And he explains

·4· ·that in paragraph 7.· The site development plan

·5· ·requires a major review and a public hearing if it does

·6· ·not qualify for a minor review or for what doesn't

·7· ·qualify for a minor review.

·8· · · · · · ·And it says, you know, that "The improvements

·9· ·shall be processed as a major review or if the director

10· ·of planning determines that it is necessary based on

11· ·the proposed development's impact on the land uses on

12· ·the site or on surrounding properties."

13· · · · · · ·So it's in the City's code that you can --

14· ·that the plan director has discretion to look at the

15· ·impact on the surrounding properties.· And, I mean,

16· ·that's really the fundamental principle of zoning is

17· ·compatibility with surrounding uses.· You want

18· ·compatible land uses next to each other.

19· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· But isn't health and safety

20· ·another factor?

21· · · · · · ·MR. MOLINA:· That's the underlying power.

22· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· Health and safety.

23· · · · · · ·MR. MOLINA:· That's the police power that the

24· ·statute -- Nevada legislature delegates that police

25· ·power to local governments to carry out zoning for the



·1· ·health, safety, and welfare of their citizens.

·2· · · · · · ·So then he says, "An SDR to build access and

·3· ·fencing will require major review" --

·4· · · · · · ·THE COURT REPORTER:· I'm sorry, sir, I can't

·5· ·even understand what you're saying.

·6· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· And which paragraph is that, sir?

·7· · · · · · ·MR. MOLINA:· Paragraph 8 on page 3.· "An SDR

·8· ·to build access and fencing will require a major review

·9· ·if the director of planning determines that the

10· ·construction of access or fencing would significantly

11· ·impact the land uses on the site or on surrounding

12· ·properties."

13· · · · · · ·And then the citation to the unified

14· ·development code is right there.

15· · · · · · ·And then he goes through the facts of what

16· ·was actually submitted and what the actions that were

17· ·taken.· And he explains that on February 15th, 2017,

18· ·the City approved the construction of 435 units and

19· ·other contiguous property.· And then he says, "The

20· ·City's 17-acre approval required a traffic impact

21· ·analysis prior to the issuance of any building or

22· ·grading permits, including permits to construct

23· ·additional access or fencing."

24· · · · · · ·And then he says, on June 28th, 2017, which

25· ·is just three months, you know, three, four months



·1· ·later, he says, "The developer applied to build three

·2· ·additional access points to the Badlands, only one of

·3· ·which was on the 17-acre property."

·4· · · · · · ·So what he's explaining here is that there's

·5· ·a request for access to the 35-acre property that's at

·6· ·issue in this case, but there's no existing site

·7· ·development review application that addresses access or

·8· ·fencing.· And so he's got discretion to require an SDR,

·9· ·a site development review application.· And he's got

10· ·discretion to determine whether to put that through the

11· ·minor or the major review process.

12· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· But why would this be considered

13· ·a major review process?

14· · · · · · ·MR. MOLINA:· So he explains --

15· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· Especially -- I'm just talking

16· ·about the fencing itself.· Because we're not talking

17· ·about -- I don't think that would involve any grading;

18· ·right?

19· · · · · · ·MR. MOLINA:· Oh, it would.

20· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· Would it?

21· · · · · · ·MR. MOLINA:· Yeah.· Absolutely.

22· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· I don't know about that.· So

23· ·you're telling me we're going to have -- to put a chain

24· ·link fence up there, they'd have to conduct grading?

25· · · · · · ·MR. MOLINA:· I was just talking about the



·1· ·access.

·2· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· I'm just talking about the

·3· ·fencing.· But go ahead.

·4· · · · · · ·MR. MOLINA:· We'll get to the fencing.· Just

·5· ·a second.

·6· · · · · · ·So if you go to tab 3.· This is a --

·7· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· I don't know this.· These are

·8· ·factual questions I'm asking you.· Was part of the

·9· ·request to put in permanent access roadways and that

10· ·type of stuff?

11· · · · · · ·MR. MOLINA:· I'll show you the plans.

12· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· You can answer that.· Was it

13· ·putting in asphalt or concrete?

14· · · · · · ·MR. MOLINA:· I'm not a hundred percent sure

15· ·what the nature of that road was going to look like,

16· ·but we can take a look at the plans if you want to go

17· ·to tab 5.· It doesn't really say.· I can tell you, at

18· ·least with respect to the 17-acre property, there was a

19· ·grade change there.· On the 35-acre property, not so

20· ·much, but, you know, there's still -- there's still

21· ·some construction to do.· And really it's not just

22· ·about the grading.· It's also about the traffic impact,

23· ·too.

24· · · · · · ·So what Peter Lowenstein is saying in his

25· ·declaration is that you've got to go through the



·1· ·process.· And originally their engineer, the

·2· ·developer's engineer, submits the SDR, the site

·3· ·development review application, the approval.· This is

·4· ·the approval letter for the 17-acre property.· And he

·5· ·says that this entitles them to develop access at three

·6· ·different points, including on the 35-acre property,

·7· ·which it just can't.· It's only limited to the 17-acre

·8· ·property.

·9· · · · · · ·And it specifically says, if you go to tab --

10· ·let's see, this is page 3 of tab 3 -- page 4 of tab 3,

11· ·item 19.· One of the conditions of approval was a

12· ·traffic impact analysis must be submitted to and

13· ·approved by the department of public works prior to the

14· ·issuance of any building or grading permits, submittal

15· ·of construction drawings, all that good stuff.

16· · · · · · ·MR. LEAVITT:· I'm sorry, where was that at,

17· ·counsel?

18· · · · · · ·MR. MOLINA:· That's on, I believe it's page 3

19· ·of the approval letter for SDR 62393 in paragraph 19.

20· · · · · · ·MR. LEAVITT:· That's for the 17-acre parcel?

21· · · · · · ·MR. MOLINA:· That's correct.· And if you go

22· ·back to the first page on tab 3, the developer's

23· ·engineer is submitting the approval for the 17-acre

24· ·parcel and requesting access on the 35-acre parcel.

25· · · · · · ·So, clearly, the approval on the 17-acre



·1· ·parcel doesn't necessarily mean you can just go and get

·2· ·a building permit for access on the 35-acre parcel.

·3· ·And even in this approval, it's got conditions that

·4· ·says, you can't get a building permit until you do the

·5· ·traffic study.

·6· · · · · · ·So that's what we're talking about here.

·7· ·We're talking about technical processes that, you know,

·8· ·you have detailed code requirements on this stuff.· And

·9· ·that's really where this stuff kind of breaks down.

10· · · · · · ·So, you know, going back to Mr. Lowenstein's

11· ·declaration.· There was request for an access that was

12· ·submitted on June 28th, 2017.· And that was what --

13· ·Exhibit 3 was the email letter and exhibit -- or tab 4,

14· ·which is also Exhibit 4 to this declaration, is the

15· ·actual permit application.

16· · · · · · ·And it's pretty basic.· There's really not a

17· ·lot there.· Mr. Lowenstein goes on to explain that on

18· ·August 24, 2017, the acting director of the department

19· ·of planning informed the developer that the proposed

20· ·construction of additional access could significantly

21· ·impact the land uses on the site or the surrounding

22· ·properties and a major development review would be

23· ·required.· And that was Exhibit 5.· It's actually

24· ·tab 6.

25· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· How does it impact land uses on



·1· ·the site?

·2· · · · · · ·MR. MOLINA:· He says it in his letter at

·3· ·tab 6.· He says, "I have determined that proximity to

·4· ·adjacent properties has the potential to have

·5· ·significant impact on surrounding properties.· As

·6· ·such" --

·7· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· I asked a specific question.

·8· ·Because I see here he says two things.· He said, impact

·9· ·land use on the site or surrounding areas.· I didn't

10· ·ask about surrounding areas.· I asked specifically as

11· ·it relates to the site.

12· · · · · · ·MR. MOLINA:· As it relates to the site?

13· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· Yes.

14· · · · · · ·MR. MOLINA:· So I think if we go back --

15· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· If he doesn't address it, that's

16· ·okay, but he has this.· If you take a look at

17· ·Exhibit 3, I guess in Exhibit 1, his affidavit and/or

18· ·declaration, and I'm just looking at page 4 starting at

19· ·line 5, paragraph 16.

20· · · · · · ·MR. MOLINA:· So I think if you hold your

21· ·finger on that and flip to tab 5, it's the last page of

22· ·tab 5., there's a letter that explains a request for

23· ·it, and the nature of the request.· And it says, "The

24· ·access points on Hualapai are necessary for the service

25· ·operations and ingress and egress, but not limited to



·1· ·the trucks and equipment required for tree and plant

·2· ·cutting, removal of related debris, and soil testing

·3· ·equipment."

·4· · · · · · ·And that's, essentially, what he's saying.

·5· ·He's saying we need to bring heavy equipment onto the

·6· ·property.· And then down in the last paragraph, he

·7· ·explains that the bridge from the clubhouse to -- you

·8· ·know, they could theoretically drive all the way across

·9· ·the golf course.· What he's saying is that there's a

10· ·little wash right next to the golf course that has a

11· ·little bridge.· It's next to the clubhouse.· And what

12· ·he's suggesting here is that to bring trucks across

13· ·that bridge would not support the weight of the trucks.

14· · · · · · ·Now, there's actually a different way to get

15· ·across there.· You don't have to cross the bridge.· As

16· ·I showed on tab 2, there is another access point that's

17· ·over by the Las Vegas Valley Water District reservoir.

18· ·So you didn't technically need to go across the bridge

19· ·there.

20· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· But isn't he saying that they

21· ·can't use the bridge because of weight limits?

22· · · · · · ·MR. MOLINA:· Right.· And what I was just

23· ·trying to say is there's another way.

24· · · · · · ·So that's the story with the access points.

25· ·You know, that's the planning director's determination.



·1· ·I don't know everything that went into that.· And I'm

·2· ·not going to testify on his behalf right here.

·3· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· No, I understand.· And the only

·4· ·reason I thought about that because, in a general

·5· ·sense, this property, for all practical purposes from a

·6· ·maintenance perspective, had been abandoned for how

·7· ·long?

·8· · · · · · ·MR. MOLINA:· At this point, this is

·9· ·February -- no, June or July of 2017.· The golf course

10· ·closed in late 2016.· So we're talking, like, six

11· ·months.

12· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· What do we know about the

13· ·maintenance of the golf course prior to closing?

14· · · · · · ·MR. MOLINA:· Well, there was a golf course

15· ·operator.

16· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· I mean, that can mean a lot of

17· ·things.· Do we know when they pulled out?· Did they

18· ·operate as a golf course up until the very last day?

19· ·Because I don't know this.· I don't.

20· · · · · · ·MR. MOLINA:· They -- towards the end of 2016,

21· ·I think was December 1st, 2016, is when the golf course

22· ·closed.· And there was a lot of back and forth between

23· ·the developer trying to renegotiate the management

24· ·agreement.· They were basically trying to keep it

25· ·alive, it looks like, for a while.· But the golf course



·1· ·operator ultimately said, you know, we can't do this

·2· ·anymore.· And then that's when they closed the course.

·3· ·And that was, I want to say, late 2016.

·4· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· Because I'm sitting here, I'm

·5· ·anticipating, I'm looking at, you said the access

·6· ·point, Rampart Boulevard is necessary for service

·7· ·operations and ingress/egress of, but not limited to,

·8· ·the trucks and equipment required for tree and plant

·9· ·cutting, removal of related debris, and soil testing.

10· · · · · · ·So it appears to me there might be two things

11· ·going on there.· That they needed to know, number one,

12· ·I would anticipate from a maintenance perspective

13· ·there's trees and debris, they wanted to remove that

14· ·from the property.· And I see nothing wrong with that.

15· ·Then, secondly, this might be a future issue, I would

16· ·anticipate part of it he talks about -- let me see

17· ·here.· Soils testing, I think that would go to

18· ·potential issues regarding future use of the property

19· ·because, you know, you have to go out and test for

20· ·expansive soils and the like; right?· And that's kind

21· ·of what they did.

22· · · · · · ·MR. MOLINA:· So --

23· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· So there's two things going on.

24· · · · · · ·MR. MOLINA:· What's interesting is that the

25· ·access was not -- access request was not granted, but



·1· ·the trees have been removed.· And if you look at their

·2· ·expert reports, there was soil testing done.· So they

·3· ·found a way to get it done without that access.

·4· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· Do we know how they did that?

·5· · · · · · ·MR. MOLINA:· Not sure.

·6· · · · · · ·So with respect to the fencing, on page 3 of

·7· ·Mr. Lowenstein's declaration, he says that in June and

·8· ·July of 2017, which is really around the same time,

·9· ·"the developer discussed with the City planning

10· ·department its intent to build fencing around the

11· ·entire perimeter of the Badlands" -- around the entire

12· ·perimeter, not just the ponds -- "without filing a

13· ·request for an SDR."

14· · · · · · ·What he's saying is that there was

15· ·discussions, but there hadn't been an application yet.

16· ·And he goes to what's tabbed 7.· It's Exhibit 6 to his

17· ·declaration.· And there's an email there from

18· ·Peter Lowenstein to Robert Summerfield.· I believe at

19· ·this time, Robert Summerfield was still in the planning

20· ·department.· And he explains, sort of, what happened

21· ·there.· And he says, "EHB Companies has indicated that

22· ·they intend to submit a building permit request for use

23· ·of a chain link fence along the perimeter of the

24· ·golf course adjacent to the Queensridge north and south

25· ·subdivisions.· On Monday of this week, EHB Companies



·1· ·provided an update via email to the planning commission

·2· ·stating, we are still working on the fence exhibits and

·3· ·looking to submit to the planning development

·4· ·department -- department of building and safety

·5· ·sometime tomorrow.· We will provide you an emailed copy

·6· ·at the same time.· You will note that the areas along

·7· ·Regent Park Road and Palace Court in lieu of a chain

·8· ·link fence we are requesting a masonry fence along the

·9· ·property line."

10· · · · · · ·So chain link fence for almost all of the

11· ·Badlands, and a masonry fence for these parts by Regent

12· ·Park Road and Palace Court.

13· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· Explain that.· So they had

14· ·approved the utilization of a chain link fence for most

15· ·of it.· What does that mean?

16· · · · · · ·MR. MOLINA:· That was the initial -- it

17· ·wasn't even a request.· It was just a discussion.· And

18· ·they said, submit the plans for this.· And it was

19· ·mostly a chain link fence around the entire

20· ·golf course.· We're not talking about the ponds yet.

21· ·And part of it was going to be a masonry fence.· That's

22· ·at least what the discussion said.

23· · · · · · ·Then he goes on to explain that, "Since that

24· ·communication, staff has had verbal communications with

25· ·EHB Companies to get further clarification pertaining



·1· ·to the masonry fence.· In that discussion EHB Companies

·2· ·indicated that they intend to match the existing walls

·3· ·within the Queensridge north and south communities.

·4· ·Staff had requested an architectural exhibit of the

·5· ·proposed wall to review."· Which is very typical.

·6· · · · · · ·"It was known to EHB Companies that perimeter

·7· ·walls are governed by a Title 19.06, and that they are

·8· ·to be decorative walls with contrasting materials."

·9· · · · · · ·The code says that.

10· · · · · · ·"An argument could be made that the zoning

11· ·district governing the perimeter walls is not called

12· ·out within Title 19.06, as the subject site district is

13· ·R-PD7, and, therefore, the standard is what they

14· ·proposed."

15· · · · · · ·And, remember, with R-PD7 zoning, the process

16· ·was that the development standards it created through

17· ·the plot plan review process.

18· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· I mean, I clearly get that.· But

19· ·my question is this.· This wasn't meant to be permanent

20· ·fencing.

21· · · · · · ·MR. MOLINA:· Well, a masonry wall.

22· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· I mean, as far as a chain link.

23· ·You see that a lot in Las Vegas; right.· You go by

24· ·any -- up and down Las Vegas Boulevard, they have a lot

25· ·of chain link fencing up, and it's there temporarily.



·1· ·That's not part of the overall permanent plan.· It's

·2· ·there many times for safety reasons, and we all

·3· ·understand that.

·4· · · · · · ·So I'm trying to figure out if you're asking

·5· ·for chain link fencing and it's more temporary in

·6· ·nature, until this issue can be resolved, why are they

·7· ·treating it like permanent fencing?

·8· · · · · · ·MR. MOLINA:· There's also a rule for

·9· ·temporary fencing.

10· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· Okay.· What's that rule?

11· · · · · · ·MR. MOLINA:· It has to be for construction

12· ·activities.· And I think there's maybe one other

13· ·situation where it's allowed.· But, for the most part,

14· ·it's allowed when you have construction activities,

15· ·which haven't been approved in this case yet, at least

16· ·not for the majority of the Badlands.

17· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· Is there a catchall for that?  I

18· ·mean, I don't know.· But it seems to me, and I guess

19· ·you can look at it this way, there's anticipating

20· ·construction activities.· But I don't see how you can,

21· ·especially for a homeowner -- I mean, I'm sorry, for a

22· ·property owner.· And there are some public safety and

23· ·welfare issues out there.

24· · · · · · ·And I don't mind saying I was a tort lawyer.

25· ·And I understand doctrines like attractive nuisance and



·1· ·those things.· Just as important, too, you have

·2· ·potential hazards on the property.· And at the end of

·3· ·the day, if the property is not made safe and this is a

·4· ·non-delegable duty; right, you can't delegate that as a

·5· ·property owner, why wouldn't the City say, look, yeah,

·6· ·we get it, no permanent fencing or anything like that,

·7· ·but if you want to make the property safer for the time

·8· ·being until we work this out.· There has to be a

·9· ·mechanism in place like that, I would think.

10· · · · · · ·MR. MOLINA:· So what he says at the bottom of

11· ·that email is that there was a permit file.· When they

12· ·came in and they originally submitted something, the

13· ·City assigns a permit file on June 29th, 2017, for a

14· ·chain link/concrete fence.· And the applicant left with

15· ·the plans.· There was no recent activity.· And then

16· ·there was a --

17· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· I mean, really, I'm just going

18· ·through it in my mind.· I mean, in a way, I understand

19· ·discretionary function of the City.

20· · · · · · ·MR. MOLINA:· This isn't even that.· This is

21· ·they just didn't follow through --

22· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· Okay.· Go ahead.

23· · · · · · ·MR. MOLINA:· -- is the problem.

24· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· Where are you at?· I want to make

25· ·sure I'm following you.



·1· · · · · · ·MR. MOLINA:· I'm at tab 7.· It's at the

·2· ·bottom of just right before the last sentence in there,

·3· ·the permit numbers.

·4· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· Is that permit no. C1700371?

·5· · · · · · ·MR. MOLINA:· Right.· So they created a permit

·6· ·file when they came in and initially submitted the

·7· ·application form, but they left with the plans and

·8· ·there wasn't any subsequent activity as of July 26th,

·9· ·which is basically a month later.· And so there's these

10· ·two fencing requests, once for chain link and I think

11· ·ones for concrete.· And if you go to tab 8, DDDD7,

12· ·there's that application form, but we don't have the

13· ·plans.· I have never seen the plans for these fences.

14· ·I have no idea what they look like.

15· · · · · · ·And then he explains that -- Peter Lowenstein

16· ·explains in, let's see, paragraph 16 on August 24th,

17· ·"The director of development informed the developer

18· ·that the proposed fencing around the ponds could

19· ·significantly impact the land use on the site."

20· · · · · · ·So they just sent them the same letter about

21· ·the access at the same time, even though there weren't

22· ·any plans on file yet.· They just said, if you're going

23· ·to do this, then bring it through the major review

24· ·process, apply for a site development review

25· ·application, and let us know what you're doing.



·1· · · · · · ·And then he goes on to explain in paragraph

·2· ·18, "The developer never filed an application for major

·3· ·review to construct access or fencing.· The City has

·4· ·not denied any developer request to construct

·5· ·additional access to the Badlands or to install

·6· ·fencing."

·7· · · · · · ·So, I mean, that's just the whole thing in a

·8· ·nutshell, is that they didn't follow through with the

·9· ·procedures that the City requested them to follow.· And

10· ·that's kind of the story of the entire development here

11· ·is that the City said, you should follow the process.

12· ·Developer said, nope, I don't think I have to.

13· · · · · · ·And that's where really everything breaks

14· ·down and, pretty much, the situation with almost all of

15· ·these parcels of land.· There was a fight about what

16· ·the process was.

17· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· So I have a question for you.  I

18· ·was looking at the exhibit you pointed out.· And I

19· ·think this would be Exhibit 8, and that's part of the

20· ·DDDD-7, there's photographs -- do you have any idea --

21· ·this is maybe three or four pages in, that are circled.

22· ·Appears to be water.· Do we know what that represents?

23· · · · · · ·MR. MOLINA:· Those are ponds.· Those were

24· ·ponds that were on the golf course.

25· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· And as far as the red line that



·1· ·surrounds the pond, what would that be?

·2· · · · · · ·MR. MOLINA:· That's just the proposed fencing

·3· ·line, I guess.

·4· · · · · · ·And we actually toured those ponds or toured

·5· ·the Badlands.· We did a site inspection.· And, for the

·6· ·most part, they're drained.· So talk about attractive

·7· ·nuisance issue.· You can drain these ponds.· They have

·8· ·drainage.· And they're going to say, yeah, okay, you

·9· ·have to maintain the pipes.· Sure.· But you're right,

10· ·it's non-delegable duty.

11· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· But you can't do it if you can't

12· ·access it.

13· · · · · · ·MR. MOLINA:· You can access this.

14· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· Well, apparently, they weren't

15· ·given access for the fencing.

16· · · · · · ·MR. MOLINA:· The access and the fencing have

17· ·no relationship whatsoever, two separate requests.

18· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· I mean, I'm looking here.· This

19· ·is the August 24th, 2017, letter by Robert Summerfield,

20· ·department of planning.· And he says, "After reviewing

21· ·the permit submitted C17-01047, for chain link fencing

22· ·to enclose the two water features/ponds on the subject

23· ·site, I determined that the proximity to adjacent

24· ·properties has the potential to have a significant

25· ·impact on the surrounding properties."



·1· · · · · · ·So that's their decision; right?

·2· · · · · · ·MR. MOLINA:· I'm not going to try to read his

·3· ·mind, but what I would assume is that he's got a

·4· ·tremendous amount of political pressure on him at this

·5· ·point in time and he wants to punt this to the

·6· ·city council.

·7· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· That's kind of -- I mean, I get

·8· ·that.· I'm not throwing anybody under the bus for that.

·9· ·But if you make decisions, sometimes they have an

10· ·impact.

11· · · · · · ·MR. MOLINA:· Right.

12· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· I'm sure there was a lot of

13· ·political pressure on him.· I'm not denying that at

14· ·all.· I would imagine there's a lot.

15· · · · · · ·MR. MOLINA:· And the way that I read this is

16· ·this is above my pay grade at this point.

17· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· I understand.

18· · · · · · ·MR. MOLINA:· So, you know, ultimately, all

19· ·these exhibits, when you just kind of -- he also talks

20· ·about the whole open space bill.· There's additional

21· ·stuff.· I don't need to get into that.

22· · · · · · ·I think I've spent enough time up here.· I'd

23· ·like to turn the floor over to Mr. Schwartz so he can

24· ·address the summary judgment arguments.

25· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· What we're going to do, and I'll



·1· ·be candid with you, in the last hour, sir, you answered

·2· ·a lot of questions I had and specifically focused on

·3· ·what we needed to make a decision so thank you.

·4· · · · · · ·I think it's time for a break for lunch.

·5· ·Does everyone agree to that?

·6· · · · · · ·MR. LEAVITT:· Yes, Your Honor.· I just wanted

·7· ·to get timing issue because today --

·8· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· I don't mind telling everybody my

·9· ·concern.· I set aside a day and a half for this; right.

10· ·I mean, I should have pulled a Judge Gonzalez and said,

11· ·you got 15 minutes per side and I'm done.· A day and a

12· ·half is a lot of time.

13· · · · · · ·MR. LEAVITT:· Right, Your Honor.

14· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· We're going to take an hour.· And

15· ·you've got to convince me why I shouldn't say we're

16· ·limited at this point on two hours per side, and we can

17· ·go home and make a decision.· You've got to convince me

18· ·why that would be improper.

19· · · · · · ·Anyway, right now it's 12:20.· We'll be ready

20· ·to go at 1:45.· That would be an hour and five minutes.

21· · · · · · ·(Whereupon, a recess was taken.)

22· · · · · · ·THE MARSHAL:· Department 16 come to order.

23· ·We're back on the record.

24· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· Everyone may be seated.· All

25· ·right.· Before we get started, I just have a quick



·1· ·question.· How much more time do we need?

·2· · · · · · ·MR. SCHWARTZ:· Your Honor, I'm going to need

·3· ·at least three hours to address the legal issues that

·4· ·are raised in this motion for a taking, this summary

·5· ·judgment motion.· We also have the City's countermotion

·6· ·for summary judgment, where we address three causes of

·7· ·action that weren't addressed in the developer's

·8· ·motion.

·9· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· So how are we supposed to

10· ·accomplish all of this today?

11· · · · · · ·MR. SCHWARTZ:· Your Honor, I do not think we

12· ·can, and if I could explain.· The developer has asked

13· ·for $54 million in damages in this case alone.

14· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· But here's my point.· And we

15· ·spent time on issues that I don't think were very

16· ·important to my decision-making process.· So we have to

17· ·be efficient.· Now, if you say you need three hours,

18· ·I'm not going to sit back and say, well, you can't have

19· ·it, but I need efficiency.· I just want to say that.

20· · · · · · ·I'll just tell you right now, I looked at

21· ·this as far as when we're coming back, and it has to be

22· ·Monday or Tuesday.· If it's Monday, it will be for half

23· ·a day, that's it.· 1:00 o'clock this courtroom goes

24· ·back to Judge Krall.· This is her courtroom.· If we

25· ·can't do it then, then there will be no live



·1· ·appearances.· It will be done by video, BlueJeans.

·2· · · · · · ·MR. SCHWARTZ:· Your Honor, I am not available

·3· ·on Monday.

·4· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· Well, then it will be done by

·5· ·video.

·6· · · · · · ·MR. SCHWARTZ:· If necessary, Your Honor.

·7· · · · · · ·Your Honor, I think it's important not to

·8· ·lose sight of how important this case is.· The

·9· ·developer is asking this Court to do nothing less than

10· ·turn the whole land use regulatory system in this state

11· ·upside down.

12· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· I understand the importance of

13· ·the case, but I do understand the importance of

14· ·efficiency.· I don't need to know land use in the state

15· ·of Nevada going back to 1950; right.· I don't need

16· ·that.

17· · · · · · ·MR. SCHWARTZ:· I think that's what the

18· ·developer is asking the Court to do.

19· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· I'm just telling you what I need.

20· ·And there are certain things I didn't need from a

21· ·factual perspective.· I think your co-counsel did a

22· ·good job after he got beyond that answering my

23· ·questions, but a lot of it would have been, I don't

24· ·think, necessarily germane to my decision making.

25· · · · · · ·So, anyway, whatever we do now is going to be



·1· ·done by BlueJeans.· I want everyone to understand that.

·2· · · · · · ·MR. SCHWARTZ:· I promise to be efficient,

·3· ·Your Honor, but there are many legal issues here that

·4· ·are very important to this case.

·5· · · · · · ·MR. LEAVITT:· If I could be heard,

·6· ·Your Honor?

·7· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· Yes.

·8· · · · · · ·MR. LEAVITT:· We presented our entire case in

·9· ·two hours.· And it's two narrow issues, what's the

10· ·Nevada law for taking, and did the government engage in

11· ·taking actions.· The government decided not to address

12· ·even one of those issues for five hours now.· They've

13· ·been up here for five hours.

14· · · · · · ·And so, Your Honor, my point is counsel can

15· ·take an hour and a half.· That would give them six and

16· ·a half hours.· We can take an hour and a half.· That

17· ·would give us three and a half hours.· And I will

18· ·respond to him, and we can be done.· Or if we are going

19· ·to go Monday, Your Honor --

20· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· We're not going Monday.

21· · · · · · ·MR. LEAVITT:· I get it.· So if we each do an

22· ·hour and a half, that would give them six and a half

23· ·hours and the landowner only three and a half hours,

24· ·and we would agree to that.· If we could get that done

25· ·and we should be able to resolve this and get it done



·1· ·today.

·2· · · · · · ·Counsel can be very pointed.· Here's Nevada

·3· ·law on the take.· Here's the taking acts.· He can try

·4· ·and justify the City's taking acts.· That's only why

·5· ·we're here today.

·6· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· I don't mind saying we're not

·7· ·going to get done today.

·8· · · · · · ·MR. LEAVITT:· Then if we go Monday,

·9· ·Your Honor, it would be impossible for us to respond to

10· ·this by BlueJeans.· We can be here live, and counsel

11· ·can appear by BlueJeans.· We've done that, actually, in

12· ·some of these other cases.· Because we have specific

13· ·documents that are necessary to rebut what the

14· ·government has stated here today, hard copies of those

15· ·documents.

16· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· We can handle it this way, too.

17· ·If we do it in my courtroom, which I'll only be there

18· ·for another month, they tell me, because I will happily

19· ·be moving to the 16th Floor again, if we do it live, it

20· ·will be one counsel per side.

21· · · · · · ·MR. LEAVITT:· Well, Your Honor, if we can do

22· ·it live here on Monday, that's one thing.

23· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· See, Monday I have limitations.

24· ·This is Judge Krall's courtroom.

25· · · · · · ·MR. LEAVITT:· If counsel needs three hours,



·1· ·he'll be done today.· I can tell you I'll be done in

·2· ·one morning, on Monday.

·3· · · · · · ·MR. SCHWARTZ:· I need at least three hours,

·4· ·and I can explain why.

·5· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· I don't need explanations.· I've

·6· ·going to give you three hours.

·7· · · · · · ·MR. LEAVITT:· One last -- I'll put on the

·8· ·record one last thing.· And I've told you this numerous

·9· ·times in the past, Your Honor, that we tried to get

10· ·this on in March, and we're finally here.· And this

11· ·happens in every case, the City delays everything.

12· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· It will be done next week.· I'm

13· ·going to tell you this right now.· I can do this.

14· ·Either we're done Monday or Tuesday or everything is

15· ·going to be submitted on submission on the points and

16· ·authorities.

17· · · · · · ·On an appellate review perspective, and I

18· ·think we probably have timers; is that correct, madam

19· ·court reporter, as to how much time each side has been

20· ·given for their argument?· Do we have that?

21· · · · · · ·THE COURT REPORTER:· Do you mean can I tell

22· ·you how much time we've taken?

23· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· Yes.

24· · · · · · ·THE COURT REPORTER:· Yes.

25· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· Yeah.· And so we'll have a



·1· ·record.· So if there's any question as to whether or

·2· ·not, well, judge is being unfair as far as time

·3· ·allocation -- like I indicated before, Judge Gonzalez,

·4· ·what was it, 15 minutes per side, and that's it, you

·5· ·know.· I don't believe in that.· I don't believe in

·6· ·artificial limitations as far as arguments are

·7· ·concerned, but I do have another thousand cases.  I

·8· ·have other cases I have to deal with so I thought I was

·9· ·being very gracious in giving a day and a half for

10· ·this, which is a long time; right.

11· · · · · · ·MR. LEAVITT:· I agree it should have been

12· ·done in a day and a half.

13· · · · · · ·MR. SCHWARTZ:· Your Honor, I am not available

14· ·Monday afternoon, but if --

15· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· It would be Monday morning.

16· · · · · · ·MR. SCHWARTZ:· Okay.

17· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· It would be Monday morning

18· ·because this courtroom is not available Monday

19· ·afternoon.

20· · · · · · ·MR. SCHWARTZ:· Am I to understand that I have

21· ·three hours for my opposition to the motions filed by

22· ·the developer, and then I will get --

23· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· Actually, you've had more than

24· ·three hours.· We've given you how much time already,

25· ·your side, sir?



·1· · · · · · ·MR. SCHWARTZ:· That was just on the facts.

·2· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· I'm being very gracious in that

·3· ·regard, too.· Because, normally, I don't permit sides

·4· ·to split it up like that.· Just one lawyer per side.

·5· ·We don't do Ping-Ponging.

·6· · · · · · ·I know it's an important issue, but you say

·7· ·you need another -- and here's another issue.· I just

·8· ·want to raise it.· I want you to raise every issue,

·9· ·both factually and also issues of law as to why I

10· ·shouldn't grant the summary judgment motion.  I

11· ·understand you filed a countermotion or whatever.  I

12· ·would anticipate that can be covered in that time

13· ·period, too.· At the end of the day, we're talking

14· ·about issues of law; right.· And I'm going to look

15· ·at -- it seems to me, the controlling case I have to

16· ·deal with as far as this case is concerned would be

17· ·Sisolak in many respects; right.· And we can all agree

18· ·to that?

19· · · · · · ·MR. SCHWARTZ:· I agree with that, Your Honor.

20· ·And the developer has so tortured that case, I'm going

21· ·to need some time to take the Court through that to

22· ·explain why that case is a physical takings case and

23· ·doesn't apply to the first and second cause of action.

24· ·That is going to take time.

25· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· See, here's the thing.· I'm not



·1· ·going to have any -- okay.· How do we handle this from

·2· ·a procedural perspective.· Normally, what happens when

·3· ·I have a motion in front of me, I ultimately decide

·4· ·that before I move on to the next motion; right.

·5· ·That's how we do that.· My question is this.· We have a

·6· ·countermotion for summary judgment.· It's on the same

·7· ·issues; right, basically?

·8· · · · · · ·MR. SCHWARTZ:· Well, yes and no.· We've got

·9· ·this Penn Central claim that the developer didn't move

10· ·for summary judgment on.· I'll explain why.· I think

11· ·that's significant.· We need to argue on that.

12· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· Why is that relevant?· The reason

13· ·why I bring that up is this.· If you look, I think it

14· ·was the first claim for relief, the third claim for

15· ·relief, and the fourth claim for relief.· And these all

16· ·are issues that relate to taking.· And if there's a

17· ·taking, does that other claim for relief even matter.

18· · · · · · ·MR. SCHWARTZ:· It's a Penn Central taking

19· ·claim, Your Honor.· They pled it, and we are entitled

20· ·to summary judgment on it.· And I'm going to explain

21· ·why.

22· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· Here's the difference.· So what

23· ·you're saying is, Judge, you can decide their first,

24· ·third, and fourth claim for relief.· We have a pending

25· ·motion for summary judgment as to the Penn Central



·1· ·claim.· You should decide that.· We can do that.

·2· · · · · · ·MR. SCHWARTZ:· And their temporary taking

·3· ·claim.· And on those issues, we should be able to argue

·4· ·first and last.

·5· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· Okay.· I get that.· So why do we

·6· ·need three hours for the legal issues right now when

·7· ·I've already given you more than that?

·8· · · · · · ·MR. SCHWARTZ:· Well, we have some very

·9· ·significant issues about what zoning means, about

10· ·whether zoning confers rights.· There's a lot of law on

11· ·that issue.· It all says, no.· And what's the

12· ·relationship between zoning and the general plan

13· ·designation.

14· · · · · · ·And there's been a big disconnect in this

15· ·case between this claim that all property owners have a

16· ·constitutional right to build whatever they want as

17· ·long as it's a permitted use under the zoning

18· ·ordinance.· There's a big disconnect between that and

19· ·the tests for liability for a regulatory taking.  I

20· ·need to explain to the Court what -- why they're making

21· ·that claim and how it has nothing to do with a

22· ·regulatory taking.· So I need to explain the origins of

23· ·the regulatory taking doctrine and what the rules are.

24· ·Then I need to fit the facts of this case within those

25· ·rules.



·1· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· But we've had facts.

·2· · · · · · ·MR. SCHWARTZ:· I need to fit those facts

·3· ·within the law.

·4· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· Here's my question.· Why did we

·5· ·spend three hours on -- if you're going to do that, why

·6· ·did we spend three hours this morning?· You should have

·7· ·stepped up -- going back to yesterday, we should have

·8· ·just dove into this head first.· I mean, I don't mind

·9· ·saying this because I think counsel did his best and he

10· ·did an admirable job, but the first hour and a half or

11· ·two hours of this discussion was almost like watching

12· ·something on Channel 10 regarding the history of

13· ·planning and zoning in Clark County.

14· · · · · · ·MR. SCHWARTZ:· Well, I think the point was

15· ·that the history of land use planning in Nevada is that

16· ·the state has found the general plan to be more and

17· ·more important, and that zoning has to be consistent

18· ·with the plan.· And in this case --

19· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· And you can make that argument,

20· ·sir, but my point is this.· I mean, when I deal with a

21· ·products liability case, I don't have to go back to the

22· ·origin of products liability.· I'm just saying that.  I

23· ·don't.· What is the law.

24· · · · · · ·MR. SCHWARTZ:· I will be very brief on those

25· ·facts and how they fit into the law.· But I will



·1· ·explain how those facts fit into the law, Your Honor.

·2· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· All right.· I think this is the

·3· ·only fair way to do it today.· I'm going to allocate,

·4· ·and this is fair, I'm going to allocate one hour per

·5· ·side.· And you don't have to use it all today.· As far

·6· ·as Monday is concerned, is Monday going to be a go?

·7· · · · · · ·MR. LEAVITT:· Are you talking to me?

·8· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· I'm talking to everybody.· I'm

·9· ·talking to the plaintiff and the defense as far as

10· ·Monday is concerned.

11· · · · · · ·MR. SCHWARTZ:· I'm available Monday morning

12· ·by BlueJeans.

13· · · · · · ·MR. LEAVITT:· Your Honor, we will appear here

14· ·in person.

15· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· I have to be done by noon.

16· · · · · · ·MR. LEAVITT:· What time will we start,

17· ·Your Honor?

18· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· Start at 9:15.

19· · · · · · ·MR. LEAVITT:· And did you say you're going to

20· ·give each party an hour today?

21· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· I'm looking at the totality of

22· ·time because we do have the pending motions.· But what

23· ·I'm thinking, maybe can the City be done today because

24· ·I plan on getting out of here by 4:50?

25· · · · · · ·MR. SCHWARTZ:· I will do my best.



·1· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· This is Friday; right.· We

·2· ·started at 9:15 in the morning.

·3· · · · · · ·MR. SCHWARTZ:· I will do my best, Your Honor.

·4· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· Okay.· And then on Monday, I'll

·5· ·hand the floor back over to the plaintiff.· And then

·6· ·you can go for an hour, sir.· And then he'll get the

·7· ·last word, something like that, regarding his

·8· ·counterclaim.· This case has to come to an end.

·9· · · · · · ·MR. LEAVITT:· I agree, Your Honor.

10· · · · · · ·MR. SCHWARTZ:· Thank you, Your Honor.

11· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· So, sir, you have the floor.

12· · · · · · ·MR. SCHWARTZ:· Thank you, Your Honor.

13· · · · · · ·Your Honor, I have delivered to you two

14· ·binders of exhibits that I'll be referring to, Volumes

15· ·I and II.

16· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· Yes, sir.· I've got them.

17· · · · · · ·MR. SCHWARTZ:· They each have tabbed numbers.

18· ·I want to refer the Court to the first three exhibits,

19· ·which, in a sense, tells the Court everything you need

20· ·to know to grant summary judgment for the City in this

21· ·case.

22· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· Okay.

23· · · · · · ·MR. SCHWARTZ:· Tab 1 are the approvals of 435

24· ·units on the 17-acre property.· Now, takings, in

25· ·takings, Your Honor, the parcel as a whole is a very



·1· ·important concept.· The Court doesn't look at the

·2· ·property and the effect of the regulation on a part of

·3· ·the property.· It looks at the whole property.· And

·4· ·there are rules to decide what is the whole property.

·5· · · · · · ·In this case, the PRMP, the 1500-acre Peccole

·6· ·Ranch master plan, is the parcel as a whole.· And in

·7· ·taking jurisprudence, the Court should look at the

·8· ·effect of the City's regulation on the parcel as a

·9· ·whole.· If the PRMP is not the parcel as a whole, at

10· ·minimum, the 250-acre Badlands is the parcel as a whole

11· ·for purposes of takings.

12· · · · · · ·And that's why the first three tabs are so

13· ·important, Your Honor.· If the parcel as a whole is the

14· ·PRMP, the City will have allowed 84 percent of it to be

15· ·developed so there can't be a taking if the City

16· ·doesn't allow the other 16 percent to be developed.

17· ·The developer has got substantial value.

18· · · · · · ·If the parcel as a whole is the Badlands, the

19· ·City has approved 435 luxury units in the Badlands.· So

20· ·it's allowed substantial development of the parcel as a

21· ·whole.· So the developer can't carve up the property

22· ·into different segments and apply for development on

23· ·each segment.· And if the City says no on a particular

24· ·segment, okay, now, you've wiped me out; you have to

25· ·pay me for a taking.



·1· · · · · · ·The courts are onto that.· The U.S. Supreme

·2· ·Court and the Nevada Supreme Court have said, you can't

·3· ·do that.

·4· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· Okay, but tell me this.· And

·5· ·these are my thoughts.· What about this current case?

·6· ·And the reason why I say that is this.· There's no

·7· ·question there was a development as a whole when the

·8· ·entire parcel was developed, including the golf course,

·9· ·single-family residential homes, condos, and the like.

10· ·But at some point, the golf course failed; right.

11· ·That's an important point to bring up.· And the

12· ·golf course has failed.

13· · · · · · ·And so it seems to me, you have, what is it,

14· ·approximately 150 acres, give or take, and this case

15· ·happens to be about 35 acres.· And so once the

16· ·golf course fails, are you saying that there can never

17· ·be the right to develop the golf course because the

18· ·surrounding properties were developed?· That's what

19· ·that bottom line would be under that scenario.

20· · · · · · ·MR. SCHWARTZ:· I am saying that only in part,

21· ·Your Honor.· It's a bit more complicated than that.

22· ·Because you can't exclude the history of this property.

23· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· I get that, but you can't exclude

24· ·the fact that we had a failure of the golf course.· How

25· ·many acres is it total, once again?



·1· · · · · · ·MR. SCHWARTZ:· The R-PD7 zoned area was

·2· ·614 acres.· Then the golf course is 250 of those.· So

·3· ·the City designated the residential in the general

·4· ·plan.· The general plan is the highest law.· It

·5· ·designated the housing portion of that 614-acre R-PD7

·6· ·zoned area housing or medium density housing.· And it

·7· ·designated the golf course PR-OS; okay.· That means

·8· ·that you can't use the golf course for residential.

·9· ·That's the law.· And the City has discretion as to

10· ·whether to change that.

11· · · · · · ·Now, the developer came along, bought the

12· ·property in 2015 for $4.5 million.· The City -- the

13· ·developer claims that they're an experienced developer.

14· ·They did their due diligence.· They claim they did

15· ·their due diligence as to the law.· Although, they

16· ·failed to find all of the state statutes and the case

17· ·law that prevented development of the golf course area

18· ·because it was designated PR-OS, unless the City

19· ·exercises discretion to change it.

20· · · · · · ·So the developer knew, Exhibit Y -- Exhibit Y

21· ·is tab 56, Your Honor, in the second binder.· That

22· ·shows the developer knew that the Badlands, the

23· ·golf course, was designated PR-OS when they bought the

24· ·property.· And if they didn't know, they should have

25· ·known because it's right there in the general plan and



·1· ·all the ordinances that approved the PR-OS designation.

·2· · · · · · ·So if the developer did their due diligence,

·3· ·they bought a golf course.· They still have a

·4· ·golf course today.· And that's why there can't be a

·5· ·taking.

·6· · · · · · ·Now, the Court asked a very good question.

·7· ·What if the golf course is not an economic use.· They

·8· ·either should not have bought the golf course or they

·9· ·should have paid a nominal amount for it if it wasn't

10· ·an economic use.· They bought a golf course that, by

11· ·law, could not be developed with residential unless the

12· ·City exercised its discretion to change that.· That's

13· ·state law, state statutory law and state case law.

14· ·They knew it.· If they didn't know it, it's the law.

15· ·They bought a golf course, and the City didn't make

16· ·them buy the golf course.· They didn't have to buy it.

17· · · · · · ·So they can't buy something that they now say

18· ·they can't use, it's got no economic use.· And say to

19· ·the City, oh, you have to change the law to allow me to

20· ·make money on this.· That's not the City's job.

21· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· Now, when you say they have to

22· ·change the law, what does that mean?· Because at the

23· ·end of the day, understand we're talking about the

24· ·35 acres at issue.· And I know we know the answer to

25· ·that, but it was zoned; right?



·1· · · · · · ·MR. SCHWARTZ:· Your Honor, there's zoning and

·2· ·there's a general plan.

·3· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· I understand that.· But my

·4· ·question was, it was zoned R-PD7; correct?

·5· · · · · · ·MR. SCHWARTZ:· Yes, Your Honor.· And that

·6· ·zoning, that zoning requires -- that's for a planned

·7· ·development area.· That's for large acreage.· I can

·8· ·take that Court through that zoning statute and tell

·9· ·you exactly what that does.· That's tab 27.

10· ·Your Honor, let's go through the R-PD7 zoning

11· ·ordinance.

12· · · · · · ·And, Your Honor we've highlighted the key

13· ·points of this zoning ordinance.· This says in the

14· ·first part that, yeah, PD means planned development.

15· ·Your Honor, I think it's crucial to distinguish between

16· ·PD zoning and regular R, which stands for residential,

17· ·zoning.· This is not an R1 district.· R1 are

18· ·single-family lots.

19· · · · · · ·And if the City were to say, you can't build

20· ·a house on that lot, regardless of what the general

21· ·plan said, that might be a taking because you wouldn't

22· ·have an economic use of the property.

23· · · · · · ·But this is very different.· This is a large

24· ·acreage, over 600 acres.· And it's a planned

25· ·development district.· So that means the City has to



·1· ·use flexibility and innovation in residential

·2· ·development.· And in the first sentence, that says it

·3· ·all, Your Honor.· That's what this case is about.

·4· ·"With emphasis on enhanced residential amenities,

·5· ·efficient utilization of open space."

·6· · · · · · ·So open space is encouraged in an RPD

·7· ·district, and it is a permissible use.

·8· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· But if the City wants to maintain

·9· ·open space, you're going to pay for it.

10· · · · · · ·MR. SCHWARTZ:· No.· Of course, not.

11· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· Why shouldn't they?

12· · · · · · ·MR. SCHWARTZ:· Because the City has its

13· ·police power.· And in a planned development district,

14· ·it has the power to tell developers how high the

15· ·buildings can go, where the buildings can go, how the

16· ·buildings should look, how the traffic circulation

17· ·should look, where the open space is supposed to look.

18· ·I'll refer you to Nevada Revised Statutes.

19· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· The reason why I'm bringing that

20· ·up, I mean, I've lived in Las Vegas a long time, and I

21· ·don't remember golf courses being in everybody's

22· ·neighborhood.· I don't mind saying that because it's

23· ·true.· So I get parks and open spaces, but it seems to

24· ·me when it comes to some of this property, I still

25· ·haven't been given an adequate explanation as to why



·1· ·the 35 acres shouldn't have been allowed to be

·2· ·developed for residential purposes.· And, yeah, maybe

·3· ·some of the others, but I haven't heard that.

·4· · · · · · ·MR. SCHWARTZ:· Well, Your Honor, if you could

·5· ·turn to tab 19, please.· I want to take you through

·6· ·Nevada law.

·7· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· Make sure you explain to me

·8· ·because I want to make sure I don't miss what your

·9· ·point as far as tab 27.· It appears to be --

10· · · · · · ·MR. SCHWARTZ:· I'm at tab 19.

11· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· So you've moved on from tab 27?

12· · · · · · ·MR. SCHWARTZ:· Yeah.· I'm going to start from

13· ·the -- I'm going to answer the Court's question by

14· ·explaining to you why Nevada law absolutely allows

15· ·local agencies in a planned development to designate

16· ·certain parts for housing, certain parts for open

17· ·space, certain parts for roads, certain parts for

18· ·perhaps a fire station or a school or drainage or any

19· ·of those things.· And it's not a taking to require that

20· ·the developer provide amenities for their development.

21· ·The powers of the City are so broad --

22· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· But is a golf course really -- in

23· ·essence, what a golf course was was a business that

24· ·failed; right?· I mean, it was.· It was a golf course.

25· ·It was there for economic purposes, to make money.· And



·1· ·the golf course failed and it went out of business.· It

·2· ·didn't go into bankruptcy.

·3· · · · · · ·MR. SCHWARTZ:· It did not.

·4· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· Why did it stop operating?

·5· · · · · · ·MR. SCHWARTZ:· The developer shut it down.

·6· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· Why?

·7· · · · · · ·MR. SCHWARTZ:· Because, according to the

·8· ·developer, it wasn't an economic use.· But that's not

·9· ·relevant.

10· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· Sir, you can just tell me what

11· ·happened.· It's my understanding they weren't making

12· ·money; right.· The golf course went -- you're saying --

13· ·I want to make sure you're going to say what I think

14· ·you're going to say.· You're going to say that the

15· ·golf course wasn't experiencing economic problems that

16· ·impacted its ability to conduct its day-to-day business

17· ·as a golf course?

18· · · · · · ·MR. SCHWARTZ:· I'm not going to say that.  I

19· ·am not.· But it's not relevant, Your Honor.

20· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· Well, that's another issue.· But

21· ·you were referring to it like it was a park that had

22· ·already been designed and it was in place.· And you

23· ·can't buy public parks, we know that.· But it wasn't a

24· ·park.· It was a golf course.· It was a money-making

25· ·venture; right?· We can all agree to that.



·1· · · · · · ·MR. SCHWARTZ:· No, Your Honor.· Can I

·2· ·explain?

·3· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· Okay.· Tell me why a golf course

·4· ·was put there for other purposes other than making

·5· ·money.· Because a golf course has to be viable.

·6· · · · · · ·MR. SCHWARTZ:· That may be true, but the

·7· ·purpose -- the City's purpose was not for Peccole or

·8· ·any developer to make money on the golf course.· The

·9· ·City's purpose in requiring a golf course, and, in

10· ·fact, Peccole's purpose in setting aside the

11· ·golf course, was to provide an open space, recreational

12· ·for the community.

13· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· Why wasn't it just made to be a

14· ·public park?

15· · · · · · ·MR. SCHWARTZ:· Well, there are all types of

16· ·open space, recreation.· There's --

17· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· Answer my question.· Why wasn't

18· ·this dedicated to the City then; right, as a park?

19· · · · · · ·MR. SCHWARTZ:· There's a big difference --

20· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· I know the difference.· That's

21· ·why I'm asking the question.

22· · · · · · ·MR. SCHWARTZ:· They don't have to dedicate

23· ·it.

24· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· They don't have to, but I'm

25· ·asking you why?· I understand your argument, but this



·1· ·is not a park.· It was a golf course.· And the golf

·2· ·courses are undergoing financial problems right now

·3· ·because they can't meet the day-to-day operations.

·4· ·People don't play as much golf as they used to.· The

·5· ·cost of water has gone up.· I'm not a businessman, but

·6· ·they're failing.

·7· · · · · · ·MR. SCHWARTZ:· Your Honor --

·8· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· Right?

·9· · · · · · ·MR. SCHWARTZ:· Yes.

10· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· Okay.

11· · · · · · ·MR. SCHWARTZ:· They are.· But that's not

12· ·relevant to the -- this case concerns land use

13· ·regulation and the law of takings.

14· · · · · · ·So if the Court were to look at tab 19.· This

15· ·is NRS 278.150.· This states that there shall be --

16· ·that each city shall prepare a comprehensive, long-term

17· ·general plan for the physical development of the city.

18· · · · · · ·So it's the state legislature telling cities,

19· ·we want you to plan.· And then it says, "the plan will

20· ·be known as the master plan and be prepared as a basis

21· ·for development of the city."

22· · · · · · ·In subsection 5, Your Honor, on the second

23· ·page, tab 19, it says that the city has to address the

24· ·elements of the physical development of the city, A

25· ·through H of section 160.



·1· · · · · · ·278.160 is tab 20.· That says, "The master

·2· ·plan with the accompanying charts, drawings, diagrams,

·3· ·schedules, and reports, may include such of the

·4· ·following elements."

·5· · · · · · ·Okay.· So on the third page of this exhibit,

·6· ·subsection D says, "The land use element must include

·7· ·provisions concerning community design, including for

·8· ·subdivision of land and suggestive patterns for

·9· ·community design and development."

10· · · · · · ·Then it says, "It shall include an inventory

11· ·of classification of types of natural land and

12· ·comprehensive plans for the most desirable utilization

13· ·of land."

14· · · · · · ·Now --

15· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· And which one are you at, sir,

16· ·again?

17· · · · · · ·MR. SCHWARTZ:· Page 3, subsection D.

18· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· D, as in dog?

19· · · · · · ·MR. SCHWARTZ:· D, as in dog.· It says, "The

20· ·land use plan has to address mixed-use development,

21· ·transit-oriented development, master planned

22· ·communities, and gaming enterprise districts."

23· · · · · · ·So the open space, the PR-OS space, the

24· ·Badlands in this case, is there for two reasons.· One,

25· ·because under -- well, let me back up.



·1· · · · · · ·Tab 21, Your Honor, is the zoning, state

·2· ·zoning law.· This is NRS 278.250.

·3· · · · · · ·This says, "Within the zoning district it may

·4· ·regulate and restrict the erection, construction,

·5· ·reconstruction, et cetera of building structures on

·6· ·land."

·7· · · · · · ·Now, right there, Your Honor, that tells you

·8· ·that the purpose of zoning is not to grant rights.· It

·9· ·restricts use.· The whole premise of the --

10· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· Sir, I understand that.· Go

11· ·ahead.

12· · · · · · ·MR. SCHWARTZ:· No.· No.· This says, zoning

13· ·restricts uses.· Zoning doesn't grant rights.· The

14· ·developer claims that just the zoning.· And all

15· ·property is zoned.· So they're saying that every

16· ·property owner in this state that owns property that's

17· ·zoned -- and, again, all property is zoned -- has a

18· ·constitutional right to build any use that's

19· ·permissible -- that's permitted in that zoning

20· ·district.· And the city, and the local agency, has no

21· ·discretion.

22· · · · · · ·That's what this case is about.· That is

23· ·absolutely false.· This Court found that it was wrong

24· ·in denying the PJR.· The zoning law says --

25· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· Sir, I was very clear on this.



·1· ·There's a difference as far as proof and standards are

·2· ·concerned as it pertains to a petition for judicial

·3· ·review.· This is not a petition for judicial review.

·4· ·This is a civil action with a preponderance of the

·5· ·evidence standard in place.

·6· · · · · · ·There are claims for relief being made by the

·7· ·landowner.· There's affirmative defenses being asserted

·8· ·by the City.· And the City has its claims, too.· That's

·9· ·a totally different issue.· It is.· And I have a high

10· ·level of confidence as far as those issues are

11· ·concerned as a matter of law, i.e., the different

12· ·standards.· As far as the petition for judicial review,

13· ·my charge under Nevada law was very limited; right.

14· · · · · · ·MR. SCHWARTZ:· Your Honor, may I address

15· ·that?

16· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· I can't substitute my judgment

17· ·for that of the council.· I was pretty clear on that.

18· · · · · · ·MR. SCHWARTZ:· May I address that?

19· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· Yeah.· Go ahead.· It's

20· ·interesting.· I got a decision from the Nevada Supreme

21· ·Court on a case where there was a petition for judicial

22· ·review filed in one of my cases, and they reminded me,

23· ·although I knew this, it was never an issue, there's

24· ·different standards involved.· The only thing I felt

25· ·bad about, when I got the decision, they didn't give me



·1· ·a chance to address that.· I knew that.

·2· · · · · · ·MR. SCHWARTZ:· Your Honor, I would like to

·3· ·address that.· I think this is an extremely important

·4· ·issue, and I would appreciate the chance to --

·5· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· You have the floor, sir.

·6· · · · · · ·MR. SCHWARTZ:· Your Honor, there is no

·7· ·question that the standard for judicial review of a PJR

·8· ·is substantial evidence for failure to proceed by law,

·9· ·which could lead to an abuse of discretion.· There's no

10· ·dispute that the remedy for a PJR is an equitable

11· ·remedy.· Court issues an order.

12· · · · · · ·There's no dispute that the evidence in a PJR

13· ·is limited to the administrative record.· There's no

14· ·dispute that in an inverse condemnation claim, a taking

15· ·claim, that the standard for liability for a taking is

16· ·there has to be a wipeout or near wipeout of economic

17· ·value of the property or interference with

18· ·investment-backed expectations.

19· · · · · · ·Different standard for liability.· There is

20· ·no dispute that the remedy for a regulatory taking is

21· ·damages, not equitable relief.· And there is no dispute

22· ·that the Court can seek to review evidence outside an

23· ·administrative record in ruling on a taking claim.

24· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· I think everyone might agree to

25· ·that.· But go ahead, sir.· I'm listening to you.



·1· · · · · · ·MR. SCHWARTZ:· That's not to say, Your Honor,

·2· ·a PJR is an empty vessel.· It's a process.· It's a

·3· ·procedure and a remedy.· There is no substantive law of

·4· ·PJR.· There is no substantive law of PJR.· PJRs are

·5· ·based on underlying substantive law.

·6· · · · · · ·In the PJR, this Court found, it said, "The

·7· ·Court rejects the developer's argument that R-PD7

·8· ·zoning designation on the Badlands property somehow

·9· ·required the council to approve its applications."

10· · · · · · ·And then the Court cited the Stratosphere

11· ·case and other cases.· Yes, they are PJR cases, but

12· ·there are other cases that say the same thing that are

13· ·not PJR cases that are constitutional challenges.· And

14· ·the Ninth Circuit in a case between these same parties

15· ·on the very same issue, issued a decision and said,

16· ·Nevada law of property -- this is Nevada law of

17· ·property.· There's no such PJR law of property.· Again,

18· ·it's an empty vessel.· The Nevada law of property is

19· ·that you do not have constitutional rights conferred by

20· ·zoning.· That's absolutely clear.

21· · · · · · ·Let me refer the Court to the Boulder v.

22· ·Cinnamon Hills case.· That's tab 13.· In Boulder City,

23· ·the Court said -- and I've highlighted the portion of

24· ·that case.

25· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· Hold on.· I want to follow this



·1· ·here.· Go ahead, sir.

·2· · · · · · ·MR. SCHWARTZ:· So on page 6 of the opinion,

·3· ·upper left, I've highlighted the portion that says,

·4· ·"Boulder City could not have violated Cinnamon Hills

·5· ·substantive due process rights.· The grant of a

·6· ·building permit was discretionary.· Therefore, under

·7· ·the applicable land use laws, Cinnamon Hills did not

·8· ·have a vested entitlement to a constitutionally

·9· ·protected property interest."

10· · · · · · ·That wasn't a PJR challenge.· That was a due

11· ·process challenge.· That was under the constitution.

12· ·And the Court there is referring to the underlying

13· ·Nevada law of property.· There is no case anywhere, in

14· ·any jurisdiction in this country, and certainly not in

15· ·Nevada, that says that a property owner whose property

16· ·is zoned, and, again, that's all property, has a right

17· ·to do anything under zoning, no less a constitutional

18· ·right.

19· · · · · · ·We have set forth the Ninth Circuit decision

20· ·in our papers.· That's tab 37.· We contend that this

21· ·Ninth Circuit memorandum decision has issue preclusive

22· ·effect.· It is between the same parties.· It is the

23· ·very same issue; the developer argued they had a

24· ·constitutional right to build residential under the

25· ·zoning.· And the Court said, no.



·1· · · · · · ·We quoted from the decision in our papers.

·2· ·There the Court said -- and I'm reading from page 4,

·3· ·the memorandum decision, Your Honor, the fourth line

·4· ·down.· The court said, "To have a constitutionally

·5· ·protected property interest in a government benefit,

·6· ·such as a land use permit, an independent source, such

·7· ·as state law, must give rise to a legitimate claim of

·8· ·entitlement that imposes significant limitations on the

·9· ·discretion of the decision maker."

10· · · · · · ·So they're referring to Nevada law of

11· ·property and land use regulation.· And they outright

12· ·reject the claim that the developer made to you.

13· · · · · · ·And, again, I refer the Court to the

14· ·Stratosphere case, which involves the very same land

15· ·use regulations that are at issue here.· A site

16· ·development permit was required to develop the property

17· ·and the uniform development code of the City of Las

18· ·Vegas.

19· · · · · · ·This is tab 30.· The Court there said in the

20· ·Stratosphere case, tab 30, page 3, that, "The context

21· ·of governmental immunity, we have to find a

22· ·discretionary act as an act that requires a decision

23· ·requiring personal deliberation and judgment."

24· · · · · · ·And then on the next page, page 4 of the

25· ·Stratosphere decision, it says, under section



·1· ·19.18.050, and that's the Las Vegas Municipal Code,

·2· ·unified development code, "The city council must

·3· ·approve the Stratosphere's proposed development of the

·4· ·property through the city's site development plan

·5· ·review process.· That process requires the council to

·6· ·consider a number of factors and to exercise its

·7· ·discretion -- I emphasize the word discretion -- in

·8· ·reaching a decision.· There is no evidence that the

·9· ·Stratosphere had a vested right to construct the

10· ·proposed rights."

11· · · · · · ·We've attached the American West opinion at

12· ·tab 31.· We've attached the Teague opinion, tab 32, the

13· ·City of Reno opinion at tab 33.· The Nevada Contractors

14· ·case, tab 34, the City of Reno case, tab 35, the CMC of

15· ·Nevada, tab 36.· And then that's followed by the Ninth

16· ·Circuit opinion.

17· · · · · · ·They all say the same thing, that under the

18· ·underlying rights, underlying Nevada law of property,

19· ·there's no vested right to do anything if the agency

20· ·has discretion.

21· · · · · · ·And I was taking the Court through the state

22· ·law that grants the City wide discretion in approving

23· ·or disapproving development permits.· And that answers

24· ·the Court's question, well, can the City require a

25· ·developer in a planned development to set aside



·1· ·property for roads?· Absolutely.· They have that police

·2· ·power under NRS 278.250.

·3· · · · · · ·And I was going to take the Court through 250

·4· ·to show you how broad the state legislature has granted

·5· ·discretion to public agencies.

·6· · · · · · ·And I think, Your Honor, this goes to the

·7· ·heart of the case.· Tab 21.· So tab 21 is NRS 278.250.

·8· ·I apologize, Your Honor, for going so quickly through

·9· ·this.

10· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· I'm following you at each step of

11· ·the way.· You actually are very clear and to the point,

12· ·sir.

13· · · · · · ·MR. SCHWARTZ:· All right.· Now, this tells

14· ·local agencies, you shall zone and your zoning shall do

15· ·the following things.· So in subsection 2, Your Honor,

16· ·it says the zoning regulation must be adopted in

17· ·accordance with the master plan for land use.

18· · · · · · ·Okay.· Right there.· Why did we go through

19· ·these facts this morning with the Court?· To explain

20· ·that zoning is subordinate to the master plan.· The

21· ·master plan is a higher authority.· Zoning must be

22· ·consistent with the master plan.· And in this case, the

23· ·Badlands Golf Course was PR-OS in the general plan.

24· · · · · · ·The zoning is consistent -- and I'm jumping

25· ·around here --



·1· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· When you say that with the master

·2· ·plan, what do you mean by that, sir, as far as the

·3· ·golf course is concerned?

·4· · · · · · ·MR. SCHWARTZ:· Well, okay.· Your Honor, I

·5· ·will answer that question.· Can I do that by taking you

·6· ·through -- because to answer that, I need to show

·7· ·you --

·8· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· You have the floor, sir.

·9· · · · · · ·MR. SCHWARTZ:· Tab 21.

10· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· Whatever you want to do, sir.

11· · · · · · ·MR. SCHWARTZ:· Tab 21 says what local agency

12· ·is supposed to do with zoning.· So subsection 2.· The

13· ·zoning regulations must be designed.· I'm paraphrasing

14· ·here.· So let's go through these, Your Honor.

15· · · · · · ·A.· Air quality and water source.

16· · · · · · ·B.· Promote the conservation of open space.

17· · · · · · ·So they're telling cities, you have to

18· ·conserve open space.· And protection of other natural

19· ·and scenic resources.

20· · · · · · ·So they gave the City the tool to protect

21· ·open space.· And that's exactly what it did in this

22· ·case.· It designated one part of the property for

23· ·housing, another part for the open space.· They're

24· ·doing what they're supposed to do.

25· · · · · · ·2C.· Consider existing views.



·1· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· Now, I'm asking you this question

·2· ·because I don't know the answer to it, sir.· Do they

·3· ·have specific zoning requirements as far as

·4· ·golf courses are concerned and how they define --

·5· · · · · · ·MR. SCHWARTZ:· Good question.· In this case,

·6· ·the City did two things in creating the golf course.

·7· ·It approved the R-PD7PR-OS zoning for this 614-acre

·8· ·part of the PRMP.· And part of that approval was

·9· ·contingent on the developer setting aside the

10· ·golf course, open space.· They're following their

11· ·mandate from the state legislature, and they're also

12· ·following the mandate in the R-PD7 zoning ordinance of

13· ·the city.

14· · · · · · ·And the second thing they did was the

15· ·developer was required by state law, to be included in

16· ·a gaming district to have recreation.· And the

17· ·developer decided the recreation in this case would be

18· ·a golf course.

19· · · · · · ·So the requirement that a gaming -- to

20· ·participate in a gaming enterprise district to have

21· ·recreation and open space, it's not so that the

22· ·developer of the casino will make money or that their

23· ·casino and hotel will make money.· It's for the

24· ·surrounding community.· That's what zoning is for.

25· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· Here's the thing, though.· And I



·1· ·think this is kind of getting lost.· And understand

·2· ·this was not my area of practice.· But I'm looking at

·3· ·it from this perspective when they have these master

·4· ·plans.· And, for example, if the plan is -- if the

·5· ·development is big enough -- we can use maybe

·6· ·Green Valley as an example.· They might say, okay,

·7· ·developer, when you come in, in order to do this, you

·8· ·have to set aside maybe certain portions of your

·9· ·development for schools; right.· And then they'll do

10· ·the same thing for parks; right.· And they'll do the

11· ·same thing for a fire station and all those things;

12· ·right.· And they do that.· And we all know that's

13· ·common.

14· · · · · · ·But my point is this.· When they do that,

15· ·does the developer still retain ownership of the land

16· ·upon which the school is located?

17· · · · · · ·MR. SCHWARTZ:· Depends.

18· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· You see where I'm going on that?

19· · · · · · ·MR. SCHWARTZ:· I'll address it, Your Honor.

20· ·I do.· I do.· In this case -- in this case, the

21· ·developer retained ownership.

22· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· Of the school?

23· · · · · · ·MR. SCHWARTZ:· And that's very common.

24· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· But, I mean, what happens if --

25· · · · · · ·MR. SCHWARTZ:· Okay.· Let met address that.



·1· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· Don't they dedicate the school.

·2· ·And at the end of the day, the school becomes owned by

·3· ·the Clark County School District?· And I don't know

·4· ·what the exact term of art would be, but it's set aside

·5· ·for public ownership, library, and so on and so on.

·6· · · · · · ·So when it comes to open spaces, it seems to

·7· ·me that would come under a park or a -- I mean, we have

·8· ·parks all over Las Vegas and those are dedicated and

·9· ·owned by the county or city.· So I'm trying to -- this

10· ·is what I'm trying to do.· Is the City saying, look,

11· ·open spaces and golf courses are the same?

12· · · · · · ·MR. SCHWARTZ:· It depends on the facts of

13· ·each case.· But, Your Honor, you have all kinds of open

14· ·space requirements imposed on all types of projects.

15· ·Sometimes in a rare situation do they require public

16· ·dedication of a park.· The parks that you see around

17· ·you are largely acquired by the city either by

18· ·voluntary purchase or eminent domain.· They are not set

19· ·aside from buildings.

20· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· Does the county or city require

21· ·that as part of a large master plan like Green Valley?

22· · · · · · ·MR. SCHWARTZ:· It could.· And let me address

23· ·that.· If it requires a dedication to the public, in

24· ·other words, the public is going to take physical

25· ·possession of that property, then there is a regulatory



·1· ·takings doctrine that addresses that.· That's not at

·2· ·issue in this case because the City did not take title

·3· ·to the property.

·4· · · · · · ·But when it approves a development and

·5· ·requires that the developer provide certain amenities

·6· ·for the community, the developer often owns the land,

·7· ·often owns that property, but it's required to provide

·8· ·amenities to the community.· In this case, the

·9· ·golf course provided recreation, park, open space, not

10· ·only to the residents that lived on the golf course,

11· ·but to the surrounding community.· That is the purpose

12· ·of zoning.

13· · · · · · ·The developer's theory of zoning, Your Honor,

14· ·turns zoning upside down.· Exclusionary zoning that we

15· ·have here, it excludes certain uses from certain areas

16· ·in order to protect the residents of that zone or the

17· ·occupants of that zone from uses that the legislature

18· ·doesn't want to see there.· It doesn't confer rights.

19· ·It can't confer rights.· That's contrary to the whole

20· ·concept of zoning.

21· · · · · · ·But when it plans a planned development area,

22· ·it commonly asks the developer, requires the developer,

23· ·to plan for a quality, safe community.· And more to the

24· ·Court's point, public agencies commonly require

25· ·dedication of property for road widening before you



·1· ·develop the property.

·2· · · · · · ·The only thing they have to do there is show

·3· ·that there's a connection between the need for that

·4· ·dedication, again, if it's going to go to the public,

·5· ·the public agency has to show a connection, and that

·6· ·they're not exacting too much land from the property

·7· ·owner.

·8· · · · · · ·That's a regulatory takings test for

·9· ·exemptions that the U.S. Supreme Court has adopted.

10· ·That does not apply here because the City didn't exact

11· ·a physical interest in property.· It replanned a

12· ·planned development.

13· · · · · · ·So going back to NRS 278.250.· It says

14· ·that --

15· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· Wait.· I want to go back and

16· ·follow you, sir.

17· · · · · · ·MR. SCHWARTZ:· This is tab 21, 278.250.

18· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· I'm with you.

19· · · · · · ·MR. SCHWARTZ:· This says, in Subsection 2E,

20· ·"Cities have to plan to provide for recreational

21· ·needs."

22· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· I get that.· I do.· I understand

23· ·that.· But at the very outset, you have the master

24· ·plan.· And I think Green Valley is probably a great

25· ·example because that was the first master plan type



·1· ·development in Clark County.· I get it.· You go in

·2· ·front of the Henderson City Council, and you have this

·3· ·plan for Green Valley.· And there were certain areas

·4· ·set aside for parks, set aside for greenbelts, set

·5· ·aside for allotted schools, and so on.

·6· · · · · · ·And so once that master plan is approved,

·7· ·under those circumstances, the parks, for example, once

·8· ·construction is completed, they're no longer owned by,

·9· ·quote, the developer.· There's some sort of dedication.

10· ·And that's kind of what I'm focusing on.· And

11· ·this is the reason why I think it's important to point

12· ·this out, and this is where I see a distinction when it

13· ·comes to open spaces.

14· · · · · · ·Here we're talking about recreational.

15· ·That's fine.· But the recreational needs are typically

16· ·parks, walkways.· I get that.· But, once again, coming

17· ·back to a failed business where there's private

18· ·property, what happens then?· Are you saying that, you

19· ·know what, the developer has an obligation to keep that

20· ·golf course running even though it doesn't make money?

21· · · · · · ·MR. SCHWARTZ:· No.· The City is not the

22· ·insurer for developers.· Let's say the Peccoles still

23· ·owned the property and the golf course failed.· Well,

24· ·the City has no responsibility to make sure that the

25· ·Peccoles make money on that golf course.



·1· · · · · · ·If the City says, we want that to remain the

·2· ·open space amenity, because this golf course provided

·3· ·open space for the community.· It provided recreation

·4· ·for the community.· It provided a park for the

·5· ·community.· That's what cities are supposed to do.

·6· ·That's what they did.

·7· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· Don't they have to pay for that?

·8· ·See, here's the thing about it.· And I'm not throwing

·9· ·anyone under the bus as far as the decision-maker is

10· ·concerned.· I'm looking at it from a legal perspective.

11· ·But in your analogy, when the failed Peccole

12· ·golf course and the City says, yeah, we want that to

13· ·remain an open space, it seems to me, okay, if you want

14· ·to do that, City, that's all right, but you're going to

15· ·pay the Peccoles for that.

16· · · · · · ·MR. SCHWARTZ:· No, you don't.· Because they

17· ·bought the golf course knowing it couldn't be used for

18· ·residential.

19· · · · · · ·Now, I'll refer you to the Guggenheim case.

20· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· Remember, I mean, a golf course

21· ·is a really great example because that was never a,

22· ·quote -- that was private property.· It's not a public

23· ·golf course.

24· · · · · · ·MR. SCHWARTZ:· That's right.

25· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· Yeah, it provides some open



·1· ·space, no question about it, but there's limited

·2· ·access; right.· It's the best example, really and

·3· ·truly, I think, that we could have.· And all I'm saying

·4· ·is this.· Once the golf course fails, how can the City

·5· ·say, look, it has to remain an open space; you can't do

·6· ·anything else with this property?· If the City does

·7· ·that, it seems to me, that we start conducting

·8· ·potentially, if the Peccoles wanted fair compensation

·9· ·for the City's use of their property and the

10· ·restrictions, then I have to start conducting some sort

11· ·of analysis that's being raised right now.

12· · · · · · ·Go ahead, sir.

13· · · · · · ·MR. SCHWARTZ:· Your Honor, for three reasons

14· ·that's not correct.· First --

15· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· And we're making a good record

16· ·here.· Just want to tell you that.· We are.

17· · · · · · ·MR. SCHWARTZ:· They're not liable for a

18· ·taking if they don't wipe out the value of the parcel

19· ·as a whole.· That's the rule.· The parcel as a whole is

20· ·the PRMP.· If the developer -- if part of the PRMP is

21· ·not making money, that doesn't mean that the City is

22· ·liable to compensate the developer for that part that's

23· ·not making money.· Because they made money on the other

24· ·part.

25· · · · · · ·It's the same if the Court says, well, I



·1· ·don't think the PRMP is the parcel as a whole.· We have

·2· ·demonstrated in our papers that this meets the factors

·3· ·of the Herrera case, the U.S. Supreme Court case.

·4· ·There has been no, no opposition points and authorities

·5· ·because they can't.· Because there is no law supporting

·6· ·the developer.

·7· · · · · · ·The PRMP is the parcel as a whole.· You can't

·8· ·carve it up and say, now, if you won't let me develop

·9· ·something on a tiny part of it, or 16 percent of it,

10· ·where I've been able to develop 84 percent of it with a

11· ·casino and a hotel and retail and thousands of housing

12· ·units, now I'm going to carve out this one part and

13· ·because the golf course may not be making money,

14· ·according to the developer, I'm going to carve that

15· ·out, you must let me build housing on it.· And, not

16· ·only that, I have a constitutional right to build

17· ·whatever housing I want.· That's ludicrous and that's

18· ·not the law.· And that's what's going on here.

19· · · · · · ·But finally, finally, I've referred the Court

20· ·to tabs 1 through 3.

21· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· Which tabs, again?· I want to

22· ·follow you.

23· · · · · · ·MR. SCHWARTZ:· Tabs 1 through 3.· Tab 1.· The

24· ·City approved 435 luxury housing units on the Badlands.

25· ·Tab 1.· The Supreme Court, in its order of reversal,



·1· ·reinstated those approvals after Judge Crockett voided

·2· ·them.

·3· · · · · · ·Then the City sent a letter to the developer

·4· ·saying -- and the City approved the development.· And

·5· ·it supported its decision in the Supreme Court with an

·6· ·amicus brief saying, please reverse Judge Crockett.

·7· ·Reinstate these approvals.

·8· · · · · · ·Tab 3 is the City's letter to the developer

·9· ·saying, you're ready to go.· You can now build your 435

10· ·luxury housing units, and we'll extend the period of

11· ·time in which you have to do that by two years because

12· ·this case was on appeal.

13· · · · · · ·So we have a situation here where the City

14· ·approved substantial development of the parcel as a

15· ·whole.· And that the developer here carved the property

16· ·into four different development sites, applied on the

17· ·individual sites, and now is suing -- I mean, not only

18· ·on the three -- it's also suing on all four for damages

19· ·for those parcels claiming, he wiped me out; I've got

20· ·no use of this segment.

21· · · · · · ·They segmented the property.· That is

22· ·forbidden in regulatory takings law.· You can see why,

23· ·for precisely this situation.

24· · · · · · ·That allows a developer to say, okay, I've

25· ·got this piece of property, and I want to build 1,000



·1· ·units.· The City has discretion.· There's no way

·2· ·they're going to let me build 1,000 units.

·3· · · · · · ·So what I'll do is I'll carve it up into

·4· ·different pieces and see what I can get on some of the

·5· ·pieces.· And then if the City says, well, no, we don't

·6· ·want you to develop these parts, we want it to be open

·7· ·space, or we want it to be some other use, then the

·8· ·developer, you know, we want you to leave it at open

·9· ·space.· It was originally open space.· We want you to

10· ·leave it open space.· We've let you develop significant

11· ·development over here on this other part of the

12· ·property.

13· · · · · · ·So the developer says, no, these are now

14· ·discrete segments of property.· You wiped me out.

15· ·That's a taking and pay me.· That's a way to get more

16· ·density.· That's a developer trick.· The courts are

17· ·onto it.· We briefed this.

18· · · · · · ·The Penn Central case in 1978 started by

19· ·saying, you can't carve the property into Grand Central

20· ·Terminal and the airspace above the terminal, that's

21· ·not the parcel as a whole, and then say, because we

22· ·won't let you build in the airspace, that's a taking

23· ·because you have no use of the airspace.· No, it's not.

24· ·If you look at the parcel as a whole of that property,

25· ·they've had substantial use of the property



·1· ·historically for Grand Central Terminal.

·2· · · · · · ·Tahoe Sierra case.· Sierra Tahoe v. Tahoe

·3· ·Regional Planning Agency case says the same thing.· You

·4· ·can't carve up the property temporally, if there's a

·5· ·moratorium on development, for 33 months and then

·6· ·afterwards the government can lift the moratorium.· So

·7· ·you can't say that during that 33-month period, you

·8· ·wiped me out because I couldn't do anything with my

·9· ·property during that period.· No, you don't carve up

10· ·the property interest in that fashion.

11· · · · · · ·Then we cited a number of other cases, and

12· ·including the Murr case that is a recent case that sets

13· ·forth clear standards for how to determine the parcel

14· ·as a whole.

15· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· Hang on.· Which tab is that, sir?

16· · · · · · ·MR. SCHWARTZ:· In our brief.

17· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· I just wondered if you have a

18· ·tab.

19· · · · · · ·MR. SCHWARTZ:· I don't have the Murr case in

20· ·a tab, Your Honor.· It is in our brief.· That's only

21· ·our third argument as to why the developer -- we should

22· ·get summary judgment.· Because our first argument is

23· ·that the case is ripe.· That's going to require some

24· ·time to explain.· The second argument is that even if

25· ·it's ripe for development, because the developer bought



·1· ·the property with the PR-OS designation that did not

·2· ·permit housing, the developer can't now say, you have

·3· ·to let me develop housing because I have no economic

·4· ·use of these segments of the property.

·5· · · · · · ·And, of course, the City did approve the

·6· ·435 units.

·7· · · · · · ·So we've got a situation here where a

·8· ·developer buys property that legally can't be used for

·9· ·housing.· That's the law.· It voluntarily shuts down

10· ·the golf course.· Then it applies to develop the

11· ·golf course.· It carves the property into four parts

12· ·and applies to develop one part.

13· · · · · · ·In the first application, the City up-zones

14· ·the property.· It changed the zoning from R-PD7, which

15· ·has a maximum of 7 units per acre, but, again, also

16· ·allows the open space.· So they up-zone the property to

17· ·R3, which allows medium density housing.· And they lift

18· ·the PR-OS designation that prohibited housing, and

19· ·designate the property for a general plan designation

20· ·that allows housing development.

21· · · · · · ·According to the developer's own evidence,

22· ·the value of just the 17-acre property increased by

23· ·$26 million.· Now the developer is suing the City not

24· ·only on the 17-acre property where the City approved

25· ·its project, but for the entire Badlands $386 million.



·1· ·And it denies, it denies, that it has an approval of

·2· ·the 435 units on the 17-acre property.

·3· · · · · · ·So you don't need to know much about takings

·4· ·to know that something is very wrong here.· They buy

·5· ·property for $4.5 million.· They now want $386 million

·6· ·in damages, even though the City approved 435 units on

·7· ·the property.

·8· · · · · · ·So really they've got no injury, only a

·9· ·windfall project.· And during the break, Your Honor, I

10· ·was out in the hall and I saw on the wall this saying

11· ·by Confucius.· "Recompense injury with justice.

12· ·Recompense kindness with kindness."

13· · · · · · ·So you recompense injury with justice.· The

14· ·developer wasn't injured.· They took a flyer on buying

15· ·a golf course that they either knew or should have

16· ·known might not be viable, that could not legally be

17· ·developed for residential.· And now -- and they want

18· ·$386 million in damages because the City simply did not

19· ·change the law.

20· · · · · · ·Now, kindness with kindness.· The City did

21· ·change the law.· 435 units, Your Honor, is a lot of

22· ·units.· And these are luxury units, too.

23· · · · · · ·So what do they recompense the City for its

24· ·kindness with?· They even sued the City on the 17-acre

25· ·property.· So the only conclusion here is -- and,



·1· ·again, this isn't -- I've just giving you an idea.

·2· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· I'm listening, sir.· I'm

·3· ·listening.

·4· · · · · · ·MR. SCHWARTZ:· This is a Court -- this Court

·5· ·wants to do justice.· And, you know, the law -- I find

·6· ·the law -- it's very impressive, the law in this

·7· ·country, Your Honor.· The law is generally just and

·8· ·it's reasonable.· It makes a lot of sense.· You know,

·9· ·really sensible people are making these laws.

10· · · · · · ·So how can we have a law in this country

11· ·where a developer, as I said, buys a golf course not

12· ·legally used for residential, $4.5 million, $18,000 an

13· ·acre.· And the City approves substantial development.

14· ·And they now claim that they don't have a permit, which

15· ·is absolutely preposterous, ludicrous.· It's hard to

16· ·find words at how ridiculous that is.· And they want

17· ·$386 million of damages.

18· · · · · · ·This can't be the law, Your Honor, that they

19· ·would now be entitled to $386 million in damages or any

20· ·damages.· And, in fact, it is not the law.

21· · · · · · ·If the Court were to apply the law here, the

22· ·law is quite reasonable.· The law says, basically,

23· ·local public agencies have broad discretion to regulate

24· ·land use.· It's a political issue.· You've heard a lot

25· ·about the politics of this, Your Honor.· And these land



·1· ·use issues are very highly charged.

·2· · · · · · ·The community is involved because the

·3· ·community is affected.· And the land use regulatory

·4· ·laws are to protect the community.· They're not to

·5· ·protect the property owner.· They don't confer rights.

·6· ·That's what these statutes that I've shown the Court

·7· ·show.

·8· · · · · · ·And so the legislative and administrative

·9· ·branches have broad discretion to regulate land use

10· ·delegated by the state legislature.· And it exercises

11· ·the general police power for the general health, safety

12· ·and welfare.

13· · · · · · ·I was going to read you the last section of

14· ·the zoning law .250.

15· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· And which tab is that, sir?

16· · · · · · ·MR. SCHWARTZ:· That's tab 21.· Which says,

17· ·"In exercising the powers granted in this section" --

18· ·this the zoning, state zoning law, tab 4.

19· · · · · · ·"In exercising the powers granted in this

20· ·section, the governing body may use any controls

21· ·relating to land use or principles of zoning the

22· ·governing body determines to be appropriate."

23· · · · · · ·And if you go above that, Your Honor, and

24· ·look at Subsection K.· They're supposed to zone to

25· ·promote health and the general welfare.· There couldn't



·1· ·be anything more broad, and there couldn't be anything

·2· ·that makes it clearer that the agencies are entitled to

·3· ·discretion.

·4· · · · · · ·So here's how the law of taking works in a

·5· ·nutshell.· Local agencies have broad power to regulate

·6· ·use of land for the general health, safety, and welfare

·7· ·for open space, recreation, all these other uses.· Only

·8· ·if they go too far is the property owner entitled to

·9· ·compensation, only if they go too far.

10· · · · · · ·And the courts have said -- and I want to get

11· ·into that in a moment.· The courts have said a

12· ·regulation is a taking only if -- we're not going to

13· ·interfere with this, what is a local political process,

14· ·we're not going to interfere with that.· These

15· ·decisions are best made by planners and by legislators

16· ·and city officials, in connection with the property

17· ·owners.· They all work together.· They work it out.

18· ·Only if there's a wipeout, because that's the

19· ·functional equivalent to eminent domain.

20· · · · · · ·And this law, again, makes a lot of sense

21· ·when you think, well, all land is different, all

22· ·communities are different.· They have different values.

23· ·We're going to leave it up to the local planners as to

24· ·how they want to decide as to each property what's best

25· ·for the community.· Again, not what's best for the



·1· ·landowner, what's best for the community.

·2· · · · · · ·So I want to take the Court through -- before

·3· ·we do this, I want to refer the Court to the R-PD7

·4· ·zoning because I want to finish with that.· I didn't

·5· ·finish my explanation of how that works.

·6· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· Sir, take your time.· Which tab

·7· ·was that?

·8· · · · · · ·MR. SCHWARTZ:· Tab 27.· This is the zoning

·9· ·ordinance at issue in this case.· The entire Badlands

10· ·was under this section.· The first section says, "The

11· ·purpose of a PD district is to provide for flexibility

12· ·and innovation in residential development and efficient

13· ·utilization of open space."

14· · · · · · ·So what are they saying there?· The City is

15· ·going to look at a big piece of acreage, not a

16· ·single-family lot, big piece of acreage.· And we want

17· ·to have the best plan for the community.· We want to

18· ·have the streets where they're going to make the most

19· ·sense and the open space where it's going to make the

20· ·most sense, and the housing where it's going to make

21· ·the most sense.

22· · · · · · ·Then it says later in that paragraph, and

23· ·I've highlighted it for the Court, "flexible to

24· ·accommodate innovative residential development."

25· · · · · · ·Then the ordinance lists the uses that are



·1· ·permitted in the zone.· Your Honor, I need time to

·2· ·address what does permitted mean.· Because the

·3· ·developer has misled the Court into thinking if a use

·4· ·is permitted, that means they have a constitutional

·5· ·right to build.· And that's actually false.

·6· · · · · · ·A permitted use is a use that is not

·7· ·permitted -- it's a use that is not excluded from the

·8· ·zone.· That's the whole purpose of zoning.· In Euclid

·9· ·v. Amway, the first zoning case of 1926, U.S. Supreme

10· ·Court said, it is constitutional for a city to limit

11· ·uses in a zone by excluding other uses.· It's

12· ·permissible to limit this zone to houses.· You can't

13· ·put a pig farm in.· That's exclusionary zoning.· That's

14· ·what all of this is.

15· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· Way back in the day, I used to

16· ·represent Mr. Robert Combs, RC Farms.· I know all about

17· ·RC Farms.

18· · · · · · ·MR. SCHWARTZ:· Did you try to put one in a

19· ·residential neighborhood?

20· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· Well, he was there before the

21· ·residential neighborhoods came.· We can agree.· If

22· ·you've been around in Las Vegas, I think everyone has

23· ·been here for a longer period of time.· And that's my

24· ·limited involvement in this type of issue.· Because

25· ·Mr. Robert Combs was a very close friend of Neil



·1· ·Galatz, where I used to work.· And I remember Mr. Combs

·2· ·and his many issues that would come up from time to

·3· ·time specifically involving, I think it was, North Las

·4· ·Vegas City Council.· That's my only --

·5· · · · · · ·MR. SCHWARTZ:· I didn't mean to maline

·6· ·agriculture, Your Honor.· Agriculture is great.· But

·7· ·the City has a right to exclude it from a residential

·8· ·zone.· And that's how zoning works.· Again, the theory,

·9· ·the developer's theory here that the zoning provides is

10· ·contrary to all of the authorities.

11· · · · · · ·So Subsection C says what uses are permitted

12· ·in the zone.· Single-family and multi-family houses,

13· ·home occupation, childcare, family home and childcare

14· ·group home.· And then it says -- and we know it also

15· ·includes open space.· Because in Subsection A, the

16· ·section says, you want to put the houses in the open

17· ·space in the right places, you're encouraged to have

18· ·open space.· You don't have to, but you can.· It's

19· ·within your police power.

20· · · · · · ·Now, in Subsection C2, it says, "The director

21· ·may apply the development standards and procedures."

22· · · · · · ·And then in Subsection 3 it says, which in

23· ·the director's judgment.

24· · · · · · ·And now Subsection D, that really puts an

25· ·exclamation point on this.· "The approving body may



·1· ·attach to the amendment to the site development plan

·2· ·review whatever conditions are deemed necessary to

·3· ·ensure the proper amenities and to ensure that the

·4· ·proposed development will be compatible with

·5· ·surrounding existing and proposed land uses."

·6· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· All right.· And I thought about

·7· ·that.· And we can kind of agree that that's not

·8· ·necessarily what happened here.· And here's my point.

·9· ·And understand this is not my bailiwick.· I'm not a --

10· ·I didn't practice in the area of application before the

11· ·building commission and the like as it relates to

12· ·developing parcels and land and plans, et cetera.· But

13· ·say, hypothetically -- and I'm reading, for example,

14· ·this provision that you referred to that was in tab 27.

15· ·And it was the intent of the RPD district.

16· · · · · · ·And so when I'm reading it, it says, quote,

17· ·"The RPD district has been provided for flexibility and

18· ·innovation in residential development with emphasis on

19· ·enhanced residential amenities, efficient utilization

20· ·of open spaces, the separation of pedestrian and

21· ·vehicular traffic and homogeneity of the land use

22· ·patents."

23· · · · · · ·Here's my point.· And I was thinking about

24· ·it.· I understand it's a big parcel.· There's a lot of

25· ·issues going on.· Say, hypothetically, the City



·1· ·rejected the initial plan of the developer, but they

·2· ·said something like this.· You know what, we realize

·3· ·the golf course is no longer functioning, but maybe if

·4· ·you had wider greenbelts between the separation between

·5· ·the existing homes and the proposed homes.· Just as

·6· ·important, too, we want to make sure the lot sizes are,

·7· ·quote -- let me see, what did they say here -- would be

·8· ·homogeneous to the community; right, and everything

·9· ·is -- so you would look in there with a new plan, you

10· ·would never know that this wasn't part of the original

11· ·plan.· And that's kind of my point.

12· · · · · · ·If they rejected it and said, this is what we

13· ·want or something like this, as an alternative to their

14· ·plan, I mean, that's a totally different animal versus

15· ·open space, nothing more, nothing less.

16· · · · · · ·MR. SCHWARTZ:· Not for purposes of taking,

17· ·Your Honor.

18· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· Well, that's my point.· For the

19· ·purposes of a taking.· Because, in essence, you're

20· ·saying, look, this land would have no value to the

21· ·owner because it can't be used for any purpose other

22· ·than providing open spaces for the public's use.· And

23· ·if you're going to do that, maybe the public should pay

24· ·for that.· That's kind of my point.

25· · · · · · ·MR. SCHWARTZ:· It was set aside for the



·1· ·public's -- for public use, not physically, but it was

·2· ·set aside as recreation, park, and open space in the

·3· ·original plan.· The City has discretion to keep that.

·4· ·So they can say, well, the golf course is -- to avoid a

·5· ·taking, again, assuming that there's no parcel as a

·6· ·whole doctrine, assuming that the Court allows them to

·7· ·segment the property and say, now the Court has to

·8· ·focus on just one segment, again, that's not the law.

·9· ·And we've established in our papers they can't do that.

10· ·They've already had substantial development of even the

11· ·Badlands.· But assuming that the Court dispenses --

12· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· Answer this question.· We talked

13· ·about Penn Central.· We're talking about vertical air

14· ·spaces; right?· Is that different?· Because we're not

15· ·talking about vertical air spaces here.· We're talking

16· ·about land, tracts of land.· How is that different.

17· · · · · · ·MR. SCHWARTZ:· Because it's the parcel as a

18· ·whole doctrine.· If it includes temporal segmentation,

19· ·like in Sierra Tahoe, it certainly includes vertical or

20· ·horizontal segmentation.· It depends on the situation.

21· ·And that's why you have to analyze each case on its

22· ·facts.

23· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· That's kind of what I'm getting

24· ·to.

25· · · · · · ·MR. SCHWARTZ:· The PRMP was developed as a



·1· ·single master plan by a single developer.· It was

·2· ·approved.· Then they sold off parts to other

·3· ·developers.· Each part, each part, complemented the

·4· ·other parts.· So you can't later come along and take

·5· ·out one part.· That's the parcel as a whole doctrine.

·6· ·You can't do that.

·7· · · · · · ·Let's say an analogy is to a machine.· You've

·8· ·got a machine that's running fine.· It's got all its

·9· ·parts.· You take a part of the machine out.· You expect

10· ·the machine to run.· No.· Each part complements the

11· ·other parts.· That's kind of a good analogy for the

12· ·parcel as a whole doctrine.

13· · · · · · ·And the courts are very clear on this,

14· ·Your Honor.· While we're on -- you know, I keep

15· ·getting -- I think the Court had a good question that

16· ·leads me to my discussion of the ripeness doctrine.

17· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· At least I'm asking decent

18· ·questions.· Go ahead.

19· · · · · · ·MR. SCHWARTZ:· I've got limited time here.

20· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· Take your time.

21· · · · · · ·MR. SCHWARTZ:· Tab 14 is the Kelly case.

22· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· I'm following you, sir.

23· · · · · · ·MR. SCHWARTZ:· This is the Nevada Supreme

24· ·Court saying this is a parcel as a whole case.· This is

25· ·a segmentation case.· Kelly develops, buys property,



·1· ·subdivides it in 39 lots.· Builds on 32.· Says, hey,

·2· ·you have to let me build on the other 7.· Nevada

·3· ·Supreme Court says, no way.· You've segmented the

·4· ·property.· You've had substantial development on the

·5· ·parcel as a whole.· You don't have the right to build

·6· ·on the 7 lots.

·7· · · · · · ·The Kelly case also says on page 6 of the

·8· ·opinion I've cited to the Court on tab 14 top left --

·9· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· This is in Kelly, for the record?

10· · · · · · ·MR. SCHWARTZ:· Yes, Kelly v. Tahoe Regional

11· ·Plan.· 109, page 6.· Kelly there says what the test for

12· ·a taking is.· And I'm going to talk about three cases,

13· ·the State v. Eighth Judicial District case, the

14· ·Boulder City case, and the Kelly case.· These are the

15· ·Nevada Supreme Court cases that said that a taking for

16· ·a use, a regulation of use type taking, not a Sisolak

17· ·taking.· That's a physical taking.· A regulation of use

18· ·taking, like the developer has alleged in its first two

19· ·causes of action, the test is you have to deny all

20· ·economically beneficial use of the land.

21· · · · · · ·And the Court there found it did not deny all

22· ·beneficial or economically productive use of the 7 lots

23· ·because you got development of the 32 lots.· And you'll

24· ·notice in the developer's presentation of what they say

25· ·is the law in the case, they scrupulously avoid these



·1· ·three cases, which are directly on point.· That's the

·2· ·test for a taking for a regulation of use, excessive

·3· ·regulation of use, in Nevada, as well as every other

·4· ·court in the country.

·5· · · · · · ·They don't cite that.· Instead they say that

·6· ·they have this constitutional right conferred by zoning

·7· ·to build whatever they want.· That's not the takings

·8· ·test.· They have no such right.· But even if they did,

·9· ·it wouldn't be a taking because a taking has got to be

10· ·a wipeout or a near wipeout or interference with

11· ·investment-backed expectations.

12· · · · · · ·Why aren't they moving for summary judgment

13· ·on their Penn Central case?· Begs the question.· One of

14· ·the factors in the Penn Central claim is the government

15· ·has to interfere with your investment-backed

16· ·expectations.· In other words, the takings law is

17· ·really designed for the situation like you have in the

18· ·Lucas case.· Where you buy property that's where a

19· ·certain use is permitted.· Let's say it's residential

20· ·use.· Not this case, of course, because residential use

21· ·was not permitted.· But you buy property where

22· ·residential use is permitted by the general plan, by

23· ·zoning.· And then the government changes the law.

24· ·Nope, you can't use it for residential.· You can't use

25· ·it for anything.· That's the Lucas case.· Court there



·1· ·said, that's a taking.· That's a taking.

·2· · · · · · ·We don't have that case here.· This isn't the

·3· ·case where the City changed the law.· The City declined

·4· ·to change the law.· They're under no obligation to

·5· ·change the law.· This was part of the Peccole Ranch

·6· ·master plan, and they were under no obligation to do

·7· ·it.· And, in fact, they did change the law to allow

·8· ·substantial development of the Badlands.

·9· · · · · · ·So the Kelly case is directly on point.· And

10· ·the landowner has not even attempted to refute that

11· ·case.

12· · · · · · ·Your Honor, I'd like to --

13· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· And tell me, what do I do with

14· ·this language from Kelly?· And this would be on, I

15· ·guess, looking here at the cite, 648.· This is where

16· ·the court said, "The court, however, did point out

17· ·these situations where regulatory actions are

18· ·compensable without case specific inquiry and to the

19· ·public interest advanced in support of their

20· ·restraints.· One, regulations that compel the property

21· ·owner to suffer physical invasion of his property no

22· ·matter how minute the intrusion and no matter how

23· ·weighty the public purpose behind it.· And, two, where

24· ·regulations denied all economically beneficial or

25· ·productive use of the land."



·1· · · · · · ·And so do I -- I'm just asking questions

·2· ·here.· Do I consider that second point that was raised

·3· ·by the Nevada Supreme Court, where it says, "where

·4· ·regulations denied all economically beneficial or

·5· ·productive use of the land"?

·6· · · · · · ·MR. SCHWARTZ:· You absolutely do.· I think,

·7· ·Your Honor, you hit on -- that's the test for a taking.

·8· · · · · · ·Now, what I want to do here is I want to

·9· ·explain this takings test and how it fits in with this

10· ·case.· I'm going to give the Court just advanced

11· ·notice.· The Sisolak case the developer relies on --

12· ·they came Sisolak says everything and anything.· The

13· ·Sisolak is a physical taking case.· And the passage the

14· ·Court just read from Kelly citing the Lucas case, Kelly

15· ·and Lucas distinguish between physical takings and

16· ·regulations of use.· Regulations of the owner's use has

17· ·to be a wipeout or interference with investment-backed

18· ·expectations.· A physical takings case has to be a

19· ·government law that denies the owner the ability to

20· ·exclude others.· In other words, it allows people, it

21· ·allows planes or people, to physically invade the land.

22· ·That's a physical takings case.

23· · · · · · ·So Sisolak does not apply to the

24· ·developer's -- what the developer calls -- the

25· ·developer's regulation of use claims for denial of a



·1· ·permit.· Physical takings have nothing to do with

·2· ·denial of a permit.

·3· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· Here's a question I have on that.

·4· ·What about the statement of the members of the

·5· ·city council as it relates to this is public court.

·6· ·We're making this public spaces.· I'm just paraphrasing

·7· ·it, but I think there's some of that in the record

·8· ·right now.· Is that a physical taking?

·9· · · · · · ·MR. SCHWARTZ:· Absolutely not.· There's a

10· ·claim that a member of the city council told people

11· ·they could trespass on the Badlands.· That's not the

12· ·City.· That doesn't bind the City.· They can say

13· ·whatever they want.· That's not the City's official

14· ·policy.· And what we're dealing with here is -- it has

15· ·to --

16· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· Here's my question.· Trust me, I

17· ·don't want to cut you off, but in many respects,

18· ·ultimately, doesn't the city council determine what the

19· ·ultimate policy will be of the City as it pertains to

20· ·land usage and the like?

21· · · · · · ·MR. SCHWARTZ:· Yes, it is.

22· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· Okay.

23· · · · · · ·MR. SCHWARTZ:· And so the Court should

24· ·concern this case, all of that evidence that

25· ·Mr. Leavitt spent hours on about the politics of this



·1· ·situation, who said what and who did what and

·2· ·disparaging remarks about his client and individual

·3· ·city council members saying this or that, I think this

·4· ·or that, and the City staff saying this to the

·5· ·developer and saying that to the developer and the City

·6· ·attorney, none of that is at all relevant in this case,

·7· ·Your Honor.· Because the only thing that counts is the

·8· ·law.· And the law is made by a majority vote of the

·9· ·city council.· And that's the only thing that can

10· ·affect the owner's use of the property or legally

11· ·authorize the public to go on.· It's got to be a law.

12· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· I agree.· But how did the

13· ·city council vote in this case?

14· · · · · · ·MR. SCHWARTZ:· It voted to deny a permit

15· ·application; okay.· So that has to fit within a takings

16· ·test.· And I want to explain that to the Court; okay.

17· · · · · · ·1922.· Pennsylvania Coal v. May, the first

18· ·regulatory takings case.· So we have this takings

19· ·clause in the Fifth Amendment of the U.S. Constitution.

20· ·The U.S. Supreme Court said for the first time, if you

21· ·deny the coal company the right to use this coal in

22· ·order to require it to hold up the surface of the land,

23· ·that could be the functional equivalent of a direct

24· ·condemnation.· Up to that point, the takings laws only

25· ·meant eminent domain, direct condemnation.
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